
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE

10.00 am

FRIDAY
7 APRIL 2017

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, 
Gloucester

MEETING PAPERS





AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

TIME: 10.00 am
DATE: Friday 7 April 2017
VENUE: Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

A G E N D A

ITEM TOPIC CONTACT

1.  Apologies 
To note any apologies for absence. Andrea Griffiths

2.  Declarations of Interest Andrea Griffiths
Members of the Committee are invited to declare any pecuniary or 
personal interests relating to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (b) at the end of the agenda

3.  Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 1 - 14) Andrea Griffiths
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Meeting held on 
20th January 2017.

4.  Grant Thornton Audit Plan for GCC & Pension Fund (Pages 15 
- 54)

Elizabeth Cave

The Committee is asked to note the report.

5.  Grant Thornton Annual Progress Report (Pages 55 - 74) Elizabeth Cave
The Committee is asked to note the report.

6.  Grant Thornton Audit Standards Communication and IA 
Fraud Law & Regulations (Pages 75 - 106)

Elizabeth Cave

The Committee is asked to note the report.
  

7.  Internal Audit Plan 2017/18 (Pages 107 - 152) Theresa Mortimer
That the Committee notes that the Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18 
makes adequate provision for the risks arising from organisational 
change and is asked to approve the 2017/2018 Internal Audit 
Plan.

8.  Internal Audit Activity Progress Report 2016/17 (Pages 153 - 
174)

Theresa Mortimer



9.  Freedom of Information Annual Report (Pages 175 - 182) Jenny Grodzicka
The Committee is asked to note the report.

10.  Exclusion of the Press and Public Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE
THAT in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 the public be excluded from the meeting for 
the business specified in agenda item 14because it is likely that if 
members of the public were present there would be disclosure to 
them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 and 7 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Act and the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public     

11.  Exempt Limited Assurance Report (Pages 183 - 188) Theresa Mortimer
The Committee is asked to note the report.  

NOTES

(a) MEMBERSHIP – Councillors Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Tony Hicks, Cllr Barry Kirby, 
Cllr Shaun Parsons, Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE, Cllr Mike Sztymiak, 
Cllr Brian Tipper and Cllr Roger Wilson

(b) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification 
about whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the 
Monitoring Officer: Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/e-mail: 
jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk prior to the commencement of the meeting. 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

(1) Will Members please sign the attendance list.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the 
meeting please leave as directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the 
assembly point which is outside the main entrance to Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  
Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee held on Friday 20 
January 2017 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Tony Hicks
Cllr Barry Kirby
Cllr Shaun Parsons
Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE 
(Chairman)

Cllr Mike Sztymiak
Cllr Brian Tipper
Cllr Roger Wilson

Officers: 

 

Jo Walker, Jane Burns, Paul Blacker, Theresa Mortimer,                  
Kathy Oakey, Terry Tobin (Grant Thornton), Andy Gilbert, Amanda     
Henderson and Andrea Griffiths.  

Apologies: Cllr Colin Hay

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Parsons declared he was a member of Cotswold District Council, GFirst 
and a member of the Pensions Committee.  

2. MINUTES 

All matters arising had been dealt with and communicated to members of the 
committee.

Resolved 

That the minutes of the meeting held on the 16th September 2016 be approved 
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  

3. GRANT THORNTON ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 

Terry Tobin, Grant Thornton presented the report in detail.  The report summarised 
the findings from the 2015/16 audit, which was undertaken by Grant Thornton.  It 
included key messages arising from the audit of the Council’s financial statements 
and the results of the work that had been undertaken to assess the Council’s 
arrangements to secure value for money in its use of resources.  

Members were informed that Highways Network Assets have been delayed by a 
year, it was explained that this was a national decision and was subject to a robust 
conversation.  Officers explained that GCC was well placed with this piece of work, 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

as they had been working on the issues for some time.   Terry confirmed that the 
Chief Internal Auditor (CIA) had also undertaken a piece of work on this area too.  
The committee appreciated the considerable efforts officers had made, in relation to 
asset classification.  Members requested, if possible that a draft balance sheet be 
produced over the summer 2017, so they could see the potential impact the 
Highways Network Asset would have in relation to the accounts.  

Members reiterated that Highways were assets of the Authority, however it was not 
possible to buy or sell them.  It was explained that the valuation officers made, was 
based on a technical model and consultants were also used to ensure the asset 
valuation was accurate.  In response to a question, it was explained that it was not 
known at this stage how the level of deterioration would impact on the accounts and 
should reflect the state of the road.  

The CIA explained that Internal Audit had undertaken a Highways Network Asset 
valuation consultancy review.   It was confirmed that good systems and processes 
were in place in accordance with the code of practice.  

In response to a question concerning the Section 75 agreement, The Director of 
Strategic Finance explained that the pooled budget was reviewed annually as the 
budget tended to fluctuate and was signed off by herself and The Commissioning 
Director for Adults and their equivalent positions at the CCG.  

Some members felt that accountability was difficult to understand and it was 
essential to be clear on what the outcome was primarily.  It was explained that 
ideally a whole funded approach was required, however the reality was that this 
was more difficult, as the funding streams were different.  Members noted that the 
CCG and GCC were actively trying to align the strategic intent and the Director of 
Integration Kim Forey, was now in post to manage the situation.  

It was noted that the fee charged for the audit was £98,010.  Members were 
reassured that the financial statements were brought to the attention of the relevant 
bodies and any views were shared with stakeholders.  

Resolved

THAT the report be noted.

4. GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 

Terry Tobin presented the report, which detailed the progress Grant Thornton had 
made in delivering their responsibilities as the external auditors.  It was noted that 
Grant Thornton had devised the plan in association with the Authority.  Members 
were informed that accounting, audit and emerging issues would be flagged up as 
part of the regular report.  Members were informed that internal and external 
auditors met on a regular basis to discuss any issues that may arise.  In response 
to a question relating to Governance it was noted that Internal Audit’s role was to 
provide an objective opinion on the effectiveness of the control environment, 
comprising, risk management, control and governance.

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Members reiterated their request to have the accounts earlier this year, to allow 
more time to review the accounts in advance of the September committee meeting.   
Officers explained that bringing the closure of accounts forward would improve the 
situation, and that the Director of Strategic Finance would ensure, where possible, 
that the accounts and supporting narrative would be produced earlier in the process 
to allow members to have sufficient time to comment.  

Terry informed the committee that earlier audit testing was already taking place, to 
assist Grant Thornton and the Authority during the main part of the audit. It was 
suggested that in the future perhaps a section on value for money, fraud and 
decision making would be useful in the document to aid the discussion. 
 
The committee referred to the Audit Committee Effectiveness Review section of the 
report, many members felt that a presentation on this area would be most beneficial 
to the committee.  

Members were informed that copies of Grant Thornton publications, such as joint 
ventures, etc, could be accessed via the website: 
www.grant.thornton.co.uk/en/insights   

Councillors discussed Integrated Reporting (on page 48 of the report) and 
welcomed the concept, as concerns were raised over joint ventures, boards and the 
need to retain accountability.  The Director of Strategic Finance explained that GCC 
was very clear over the accountable body arrangements and ensured that each 
party had separate duties.  In terms of GCC there were different roles, these were 
noted as accountable body and for some schemes “scheme promoter”.

Members felt that democratic governance issues required due consideration and 
requested that in the new Council, the Audit and Governance Committee could 
undertake a deep dive into integrated reporting, financial and governance 
arrangements in relation to the GCC shareholder role.  The committee was 
informed that Councillor Theodoulou as the cabinet portfolio holder undertook the 
shareholder responsibility in relation to UBICO.  Members felt this was an important 
role, which all Councillors should be made aware of at full Council.  

Members were reminded that they should never join a board without fully 
understanding their role and responsibilities.  It was explained that officers took the 
accountable body role very seriously and if they had any concerns they requested 
Internal Audit to investigate the role and procedures in place before any agreement 
was signed as a precautionary measure.  

In response to a question, concerning the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) it was 
explained that a collaborative approach considered the entity and that there was a 
clear process for financial input into commissioning decision making and legal 
agreements were in place to safeguard the authority.  The Director of Strategic 
Finance reiterated that she was not prepared to put GCC at risk when undertaking 
the accountable body role.  It was explained that the LEP had evolved and other 
authorities looked at GCC as a good example of positive working.  The CIA 

Page 3

http://www.grant.thornton.co.uk/en/insights


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

confirmed that Internal Audit undertook work each year on the LEP to check the 
adequacy of the control environment.  

It was noted that not all members clearly understood joint bodies and working 
arrangements, it was suggested that the reporting mechanism needed to be raised 
in order to promote a clearer understanding.  The Monitoring Officer informed the 
committee that Councils took decisions via their appropriate processes.  The 
committee noted that GCC did not have a significant number of joint bodies and to 
officers’ knowledge GCC was only a shareholder of UBICO and Brunel Pension 
Partnership.  

Members felt that the Council had a direct responsibility in relation to joint bodies 
and it was incumbent on the Audit and Governance Committee to ensure the 
appropriate procedures were adhered too.  The CIA informed members that as part 
of the 2017/2018 risk based internal audit planning process an internal audit review 
of the effectiveness of governance arrangements, where the Council has been 
nominated as the Accountable Body, will be included within the 2017/2018 plan.

In response to a question, it was noted that there was a risk included within the 
Council’s Strategic Risk Register relating to workforce planning, skills and capacity 
gaps / challenges which is monitored and reported on a quarterly basis, as this was 
an inherent risk of the Council. 

Resolved

That the report be noted.

5. JOINT WORKING AGREEMENT BETWEEN INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL AUDIT 

Terry Tobin, Grant Thornton presented the report which summarised how Internal 
and External Audit worked closely together. It was noted that the Internal Audit 
Team at GCC was very good and the service was a credit to the CIA.  

Resolved 

That the report be noted.

6. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

Paul Blacker, Head of Financial Management presented the proposed Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy for 2017/18, which met 
the CIPFA Code of Practice, and governed how the Authority undertook Treasury 
Management activities.  It was noted that the Committee was required to consider, 
comment and recommend the new Treasury Management Strategy to Council for 
approval.  

It was noted that the strategy will be approved by full Council as part of the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and was being submitted to the Audit and 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

Governance Committee in accordance with its terms of reference to regularly 
monitor the Council’s Treasury Management policy and practices.

It was noted that the Audit and Governance Committee undertook a detailed 
Treasury Management training session in December 2016, which was well 
attended.  Therefore, the following key changes to the report, as agreed with 
Arlingclose the Treasury Management Advisors were highlighted: 
- The lowest risk category approved for use had been raised from BBB to 

BBB+
- For non-specified investment limits, total long term investment is proposed to 

be increased from £120M to £200M, to enable the Council to take advantage 
of secured investments which were normally available at maturity levels 
greater than 1 year.

- Increase the investment limit per broker from £75M to £100M due to current 
limitations on investment custody arrangements.

- Money Market Funds limit to be increased from £100M to £150M to provide 
greater flexibility in maintaining liquidity funds.

In response to a question, it was explained that finance officers had quarterly 
meetings with Arlingclose and if there was any volatility it would be reported back to 
the Committee.  Members noted that an update report was presented to the 
committee at its October meeting.  The committee felt reassured by these actions.  

Resolved 

That the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy 
2017/18 be commended for approval by Council.   

7. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2015/16 

Theresa Mortimer, Chief Internal Auditor (CIA) presented the report.  The report 
provided assurance to the Audit and Governance Committee that the improvement 
actions identified as part of the annual review of the governance arrangements 
operating within GCC had been/were being addressed.  It was recommended that 
the Committee reviewed and considered the actions taken to address the 
governance improvement areas identified.

Overall, the CIA confirmed that actions had been or were being addressed. It was 
noted that page 84 of the action plan referred to the revised Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS) assurance framework which was currently being developed and 
would apply to the 2016/2017 AGS being presented to the Committee in July 2017.

Members were informed that the action relating to the counter fraud arrangements 
had been completed and as a result the revised fraud polices were being presented 
to the Committee later as part of the agenda.

Resolved 

That the report be noted.  

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

8. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT AND STRATEGY 2017/18 

Theresa Mortimer, Chief Internal Auditor (CIA) presented the report in detail.  The 
proposed Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy, reflected national good 
practice/standards and aligned with the Council’s operating model.  

The CIA explained that it has always been important for GCC to identify and 
manage its risks.   Identifying risks enabled the Council to effectively manage 
strategic decision making, service planning and delivery to safeguard the wellbeing 
of our stakeholders and increased the likelihood of us achieving our outcomes. 

Taking into account the overall future strategic direction of the Council, its structure 
and its services, it is now deemed an appropriate time to refresh and reaffirm our 
Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy, to ensure that the Council’s risk 
and assurance framework continues to build on our existing successes. This should 
enable the Council to effectively manage the potential opportunities and threats, 
thus improving service delivery to our communities.

The CIA advised members that there were only very minor changes to the strategy 
such as renaming service areas e.g. Performance and Improvement, deleting 
reference to a delivery board and reflecting up to date legislation such as the 
Accounts and Audit regulations 2015. It was noted that the general principles of 
how risked was managed within the Council had not changed.

It was noted that Internal Audit provided an opinion of the effectiveness of risk 
management arrangements when undertaking individual audit assignments which 
provided the Committee with reasonable assurance that risk was being managed 
effectively across the Council. 

During the discussion, members requested to know if managers were required to 
sign a statement confirming they had read and understood the Risk Management 
Strategy.  The CIA explained that it would have to be a corporate decision to make 
it a mandatory function.  It was suggested that this could be delivered as an online 
exercise and the policy would have to be read and accepted online.  Some 
members felt that when things went wrong, staff could say they weren’t aware of 
the policy and hadn’t read it.  Therefore, they should be made to read the policy 
and sign off on it, in an effort to mitigate the risk.  

The CIA informed the Committee that as part of the Annual Governance Statement 
assurance framework, Directors/Heads of Service were asked to complete an 
assurance statement which included awareness of and applied the principles of the 
Risk Management Strategy and the Anti-Fraud Policies, etc.  If they answered no, 
or partial to any of the questions, the necessary training was provided.  Members 
were satisfied with the response and the approach.  

A discussion took place relating to risk monitoring and reporting arrangements, it 
was reiterated that risk monitoring and reporting were integral to the corporate 
performance management and monitoring arrangements and was within the 
Overview Scrutiny Management Committee (OSMC) remit.  The Council’s strategic 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

risks were reported on a quarterly basis to OSMC and provided to the Audit and 
Governance Committee as part of the Annual Report on Risk Management Activity. 

The CIA explained that a virtual risk management group existed, where staff within 
service areas such as Business Continuity, Performance and Improvement, Health 
and Safety, etc., would liaise virtually to discuss and raise issues and share good 
practice accordingly.  The committee felt that this was a good efficient way of 
dealing with such issues.

The CIA reiterated that it was management’s responsibility to manage their risks. 
Internal Audit’s role was to provide reasonable assurance that risks are being 
managed effectively.  It was noted that GCC had a good risk culture.  

The committee was asked to agree to recommend the Strategy for approval to 
Cabinet, and once approved it would be disseminated to members and managers 
via a Communications Plan in order to reaffirm GCC’s risk management objectives.  

Resolved 

That the Strategy be recommended to Cabinet for approval.  Once approved 
be disseminated to members and managers via a Communications Plan, to 
reaffirm GCCs risk management objectives.

9. INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY PROGRESS REPORT 2016/17 

Theresa Mortimer, Chief Internal Auditor presented the report which informed 
members on the progress of the internal audit activity in relation to the 2016/2017 
Internal Audit Plan and provided a progress report on those audits undertaken 
during the period October – December 2016, including the opinions provided on risk 
and control. 

The Committee welcomed the report which provided the relevant risk and control 
assurance opinions in relation to the audit activity during the above period.  The 
report included a graphical summary that highlighted the opinions provided during 
this period, which showed an overall satisfactory and above rating of 82% on 
control and 86% on risk. Members’ attention was drawn to the fact that 18% of the 
opinions on control were limited. Officers explained that this may be due to 
transformational change, whilst focusing audit activity on the key risks of the 
Council and as a result of specific requests from Directors, who requested areas to 
be reviewed where issues had arisen or where independent assurance was 
required. 

The CIA informed the committee that all 30 recommendations made by Internal 
Audit to improve the control environment during this period, had been accepted by 
management.  

The CIA highlighted two key points, which related to:
• the one exempt limited assurance report which would be discussed in the 

exempt section of the meeting; and

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

• Page 134 (of the report) which related to the review of the effectiveness of 
the systems and processes in place to value the Highways Network Asset, 
ready for the future inclusion within the statement of accounts. 

The Committee discussed the progress report in detail, and were informed that 
Internal Audit also carries out consultancy work as well as assurance activity. Whilst 
consultancy work provides a conclusion on the control environment, a formal 
assurance opinion would not be provided. However, if there were any significant 
control weaknesses identified and subsequent recommendations made as part of 
the consulting activity, an audit would be undertaken to provide the assurance that 
the recommendations made and agreed with management have been addressed. 
At this stage an assurance opinion would be provided.  Members were reassured 
by the processes in place.

Resolved

That the report be noted.  

10. INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 2016/18 

Theresa Mortimer, the Chief Internal Auditor (CIA) explained the purpose of this 
report was to inform members of revisions to the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) which were effective from 1st April 2016. It was noted that the 
key changes had been highlighted in italics within the report.  Members were 
informed that the changes related to the new mission statement and the revised 
core principles which underpinned the delivery of the mission statement.

The committee discussed the charter in detail and members’ attention was drawn to 
the Mission Statement and Core Principles (on page 146 of the report).  The CIA 
was pleased to report that “Be Insightful, proactive and future focused” had now 
been included as a core principle and explained the importance of this principle in 
terms of the Audit Service.  

Members appreciated the report and felt that many services were demand led and 
questioned the impact on these services.  In response to a question, The Director of 
Finance explained some strategic risks were on held on the strategic risk register.  
In addition, she explained that the specific reserves were detailed within the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and as such these reserves were deemed 
to be reasonable.  It was noted that GCC was investing in Adult & Child Social 
Care, however the individual scrutiny committees and the Overview Scrutiny 
Management Committee would closely monitor and challenge the budget and the 
performance.  

A discussion took place relating to the role of the Section 151 Officer, some 
members felt the role should be clearly documented within the Charter.  The CIA 
explained that the Charter was a high level strategic document defining the role, 
purpose and authority of the Internal Audit Function with the role of the S151 Officer 
and Corporate Management Team depicted within the report.  In addition, the 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) contained a section on the roles of the 

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer.  Members requested that this point 
be given more thought and officers agreed to take away this point and discuss in 
more detail.  

The Director of Finance suggested that it would be beneficial to provide members of 
the committee with a chart, detailing the appropriate governance roles and 
responsibilities. The Committee welcomed this approach and requested that the 
document be made publicly available.    

Resolved

That the Committee formally approved the Internal Audit Charter and its 
adoption.  

11. ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION POLICY STATEMENT AND STRATEGY 
2017/19 

Theresa Mortimer, Chief Internal Auditor, presented the report.  The committee was 
asked to consider and comment on the revised Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
Policy Statement and Strategy 2017/19, which included the Anti Bribery Policy and 
Anti Money Laundering Policy and the Confidential Reporting Procedure 
(Whistleblowing policy) and recommend its approval to cabinet.  

To put the strategy and policies into context and in order to respond and protect the 
public purse, the CIA referred members to the proposed Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
Policy Statement which stated that fraud costs the UK economy billions of pounds 
with fraud risk significantly rising within the public sector.

The CIA explained that the policies and strategy had been rewritten to ensure 
adherence with relevant legislation and was based on three key themes: 
Acknowledge, Prevent and Pursue and adheres to the new Local Government 
Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy 2016 - 2019: Fighting Fraud and Corruption 
Locally, which was supported by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) Counter Fraud Centre.

Members were reminded that the Audit and Governance Committee’s role was to 
provide independent assurance on the adequacy of the Council’s Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption response and framework. 

Members welcomed the report and requested to know if the communications plan 
included an online approach.  The Committee felt that culturally, the principle of 
Anti-Fraud should be disseminated to all staff.  Officers explained that the 
communications plan was yet to be confirmed, pending Cabinet’s approval but the 
points raised would be given due consideration.  The Committee requested to be 
kept appraised of the situation.  It was suggested that the Anti-Fraud Policies 
should be included within the new member induction programme.  

Page 9



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 10 -

The CIA informed the Committee that once the policies had been approved, she 
proposed that the policies were disseminated to Members and Officers via a 
communications plan to help reaffirm GCC’s anti-fraud culture and objectives. 

Resolved 

That the report be recommended to Cabinet for approval and once approved 
be disseminated to managers in accordance with a Communications Plan.

12. INTERNAL AUDIT LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORTS 

Data Storage Structures - Andy Gilbert, Head of ICT presented the report in detail.  
The committee was informed that the ICT service continually strived to maintain a 
balance between security and usability to support business users.  The Audit had 
identified a number of improvement actions and Members were advised of the 
actions taken to date and proposed within the report.  

In response to a question, it was explained that super user privileges enabled the 
user to have elevated access rights to key council information and systems.  Mr 
Gilbert explained that a procedure was now in place and monthly ICT risk 
management meetings occurred with Sopra Steria (outsourced ICT managed 
service provider) to monitor and control these elevated access rights.  All ICT risks 
are presented to Directors at the established ICT Governance Board. The 
committee was advised that Jane Burns, in her role as the Senior Information Risk 
Owner (SIRO), was also a member of the ICT Governance Board and closely 
monitored the information security risks.     

Members were informed that a report outlining a solution to address the huge 
quantities of electronic data at the council was due to be presented to CoMT for its 
approval in early February 2017, this report would outline the issues, timescales 
and costs involved in addressing the problems.  

In response to a question, the committee noted that the churn of staff presented the 
biggest problem to the Authority.  Mr Gilbert advised the committee that when a 
member of staff was due to the leave the Authority, ICT were notified by the BSC of 
the end date.  The network account of the leaver is then disabled and they would 
no longer be able to access the system after that date.  

The issue of backing up to tape was raised and it was noted that a disc to disc back 
up solution had now been implemented.   It was explained that the Authority had 
migrated to a dedicated and secure data centre and was in the process of 
transferring the remaining servers.   

The CIA added that a follow up review would take place in 2017/18.  Members felt 
some assurance by these actions.  

Resolved 

That the report be noted.  

Page 10



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 11 -

Direct Payments - Amanda Henderson, Lead Manager for Children with 
Disabilities presented the report in detail.

It was explained that a direct payment was money given to parents/carers of young 
people so that services and/or equipment could be purchased to meet their 
assessed needs, instead of the Authority providing the support through its own 
commissioned services.    As this allowed carers, parents and young people greater 
choice and flexibility in obtaining individual services.  Officers explained that the 
direct payment scheme an account held by the parents, where by the paperwork 
could be requested as per the policy to be checked, reviewed and raised with Audit 
if necessary.  

Members were informed that the direct payments team worked with parents and 
carers to identify and refresh what the payment could be used for.  As in some 
cases where anomalies had been found, a reimbursement scheme had been set up 
to recuperate the funds in the best interests of the family and limit the distress to the 
child.  It was noted that the team, preferred to have a conversation first and 
foremost with the carer/parent where fraudulent activity was suspected.  

The CIA explained that counter fraud specialists worked closely with the team and 
would continue to monitor the situation.  

Adult social care are in the process of procuring a direct payment card system in 
which direct payment cards can be issued, which allowed for online monitoring of 
the account and thus reduce the opportunity for misuse.   This was due to 
commence in April 17. It was noted that Children’s Social Care were joining this 
system with a plan to join this scheme by July 17. The service hoped to move to a 
full payment card system in the long term, as this provided a better system for all 
and could be monitored centrally.   

In response to a question, the committee noted that Direct Payments for children 
who were in receipt of early help were reviewed annually and children in need were 
reviewed on a more regular basis.  Mrs Henderson explained that the needs of the 
disabled child and the impact on the family were of paramount importance.  It was 
noted that there was an information flow between the care professionals involved in 
a child’s case.  

Members requested to know if there was a backlog of cases.  Mrs Henderson 
explained that there was no backlog at the moment, however this would depend on 
the service demand.    

Resolved

That the report be noted.  

13. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

THAT in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the business specified in minute 12 

Page 11



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 12 -

because it is likely that if members of the public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12 A to the Act and the public interest in withholding the information 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information to the public.

14. EXEMPT LIMITED ASSURANCE INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 

The committee received and discussed the report in detail. 

Resolved 

That the report be noted.

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 1.17 pm

Page 12



Audit & Governance Committee – 20th January 2017

Topic Action Responsibility Progress
1 Grant Thornton 

Annual Audit letter
That a draft balance sheet, including the 
Highways Network Asset be produced over the 
summer 2017.  

Paul Blacker Currently being developed

2 GRANT THORNTON 
AUDIT PROGRESS 
REPORT

That in the new council, the Audit and 
Governance Committee would undertake a deep 
dive into integrated reporting, financial and 
governance arrangements in relation to the 
shareholder role.   

That the link to Grant Thornton publications be 
circulated via email.

Paul Blacker

Andrea Griffiths

To be included on the work 
programme

Completed 

316. RISK MANAGEMENT 
POLICY STATEMENT 
AND STRATEGY 
2017/18

Once approved be disseminated to members 
and managers via a Communications Plan, to 
reaffirm GCCs risk management objectives.

Theresa Mortimer Communications Plan currently 
being developed

4 INTERNAL AUDIT 
CHARTER 2016/18

That a chart be devised, detailing the 
appropriate governance roles and 
responsibilities.

Theresa Mortimer Currently under review and will 
form part of assurance framework 
which underpins the Annual 
Governance Statement

517. ANTI FRAUD AND 
CORRUPTION POLICY 
STATEMENT AND 
STRATEGY 2017/19

Once approved be disseminated to managers in 
accordance with a Communications Plan  

Theresa Mortimer Communications Plan currently 
being developed

18.

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 

DRAFT 

This version of the 

report is a draft. Its 

contents and subject 

matter remain under 

review and its contents 

may change and be 

expanded as part of the 

finalisation of the report. 

 

The Audit Plan 

for Gloucestershire County Council 

 Year ended 31 March 2017 

Elizabeth Cave 

Director 

T 0117 305 7785 

E  liz.a.cave@uk.gt.com 

Audit and Governance Committee 

7 April 2017 

Cover page 

 

Guidance note 

Please ensure you enter the 

date of the issue of the report. 

 

David Bray 

Senior Manager 

T 0117 305 7889 

E  David.Bray@uk.gt.com 

 
Megan Gibson 

In Charge Auditor 

T 01173 057 681 

E  megan.gibson@uk.gt.com 

 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 4



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 2 

Chartered Accountants 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.  

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and 

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one Gloucestershire County and are not liable for one Gloucestershire County’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further 

details. 

This Audit Plan  sets out for the benefit of those charged with governance (in the case of Gloucestershire County Council, the Audit and Governance Committee), an 

overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. This document is to help you understand the 

consequences of our work, discuss issues of risk and the concept of materiality with us, and identify any areas where you may request us to undertake additional procedures. 

It also helps us gain a better understanding of the Council and your environment. The contents of the Plan have been discussed with management.  

We are required to perform our audit in line with Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and in accordance with the Code of Practice issued by the National Audit Office 

(NAO) on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2015. Our responsibilities under the Code are to: 

-give an opinion on the Council's financial statements 

-satisfy ourselves the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair 

view. 

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process.  

It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change. In particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks 

which may affect the Council or all weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely for your benefit. We do not accept any responsibility for any 

loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other 

purpose.  

We look forward to working with you during the course of the audit. 

Yours sincerely 

Elizabeth Cave 

Director 

Grant Thornton UK LLP  

Hartwell House 

Victoria Street 

Bristol 

 

T +44 (0) 117 305 7600 

www.grant-thornton.co.uk  

March 2017 

Dear Members of the Audit and Governance Committee 

 
Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council for the year ending 31 March 2017 

Gloucestershire County Council  

Shire Hall 

Westgate Street 

Gloucester 

GL1 2TG 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

 

The disclaimer paragraph 

should not be edited or 

removed as this is there for 

the auditor’s protection and 

its absence could possibly 

weaken our defence if a 

complaint or claim is made. 

 

 

 

Letter 

P
age 16



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Contents 

Section  

Understanding your business and key developments  

Materiality  

Significant risks identified  

Other risks identified 

Value for Money 

Other audit responsibilities 

Results of interim audit work  

The audit cycle 

Audit fees  

Independence and non-audit services  

Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance  

  

3 

P
age 17



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Understanding your business and key developments 

Key challenges 

 

Financial reporting changes 

 

Developments 

 

Key performance indicators (as at Dec 2016) 

Measure Value £000 

Revenue Budget 2016/17 420,059 

Forecast outturn 419,166 

Capital Budget 2016/17 (re-profiled) 91,023 

Forecast outturn 

 

89,384 

Our response 

 We will discuss with you your progress in implementing the HNA requirements, highlighting any areas of good practice or concern which we have identified. 

 We aim to complete all our substantive audit work of your financial statements by 21 July 2017 

 As part of our opinion on your financial statements, we will consider whether your financial statements accurately reflect the financial reporting changes in the 2016/17 Code  

 We will review the Council's progress  in managing its responsibilities for public health and how it is working with partners, as part of our work in reaching our VFM conclusion.. 

 We will keep you informed of changes to the financial  reporting requirements for 2016/17 through on-going discussions and invitations to our technical update workshops. 

Highways network asset (HNA) 

On the 14 November, 2016 CIPFA/LASAAC announced a 

deferral of measuring the Highways Network Asset at 

Depreciated Replacement Cost in local authority financial 

statements for 2016/17. This deferral was due to delays in 

obtaining updated central rates for valuations.  

CIPFA/LASAAC reviewed this position at its meeting in 

March 2017 and, in summary, they have decided not to 

proceed with the introduction of the Highways Network 

Asset Code into the financial reporting requirements for local 

authorities. 

 

Autumn Statement  

The Chancellor detailed plans in the Autumn Statement to 

increase funding for Housing and Infrastructure, and further 

extend devolved powers to Local Authorities. Whilst there 

was no new money, savings of £241 million from the reform 

of the New Homes Bonus have been allocated to social care 

authorities through a new Adult Social Care Support Grant.  

In March 2017 additional funding for adult social care was 

promised.  

CIPFA Code of Practice 2016/17 (the Code) 

Changes to the Code in  2016/17 reflect aims of the 'Telling 

the Story' project, to streamline the financial statements to 

be more in line with internal organisational reporting and 

improve accessibility to the reader of the financial 

statements. 

The changes affect the presentation of the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement and the Movement in 

Reserves Statements, segmental reporting disclosures and 

a new Expenditure and Funding Analysis note has been 

introduced .The Code also requires these amendments to 

be reflected in the 2015/16 comparatives by way of a prior 

period adjustment. 

 

Earlier closedown 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require councils 

to bring forward the approval and audit of financial 

statements to 31 July by the 2017/2018 financial year. The 

Council will be completing a 'dry run' in 2016-17. This will 

involve 'buy-in' from both the finance team and the wider 

Council, including the Business Service Centre. 

In line with this the Council will require information from its 

maintained cheque book schools earlier, to consolidate into 

the main Council accounts. An improved process was 

implemented in 2015-16 which will become further 

embedded in 2016-17.  

 

Integration with health sector 

Wider transfers of responsibility for public health to local 

government, and more specifically Better Care Fund (BCF) 

plans and the associated pooled budgets have been 

operational since 2015/16. Work in 2015/16 identified that 

the majority of the schemes involved  aligned, rather than 

pooled budgets. The Council and NHS Gloucestershire 

CCG have agreed to extend the original s75 agreement until 

31 March 2018.  

Understanding 

your business  

Guidance note 

KPI table – these should be the 

key indicators that client 

management use to monitor 

business performance. Please 

update as required. 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

 

P
age 18



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Materiality 
In performing our audit, we apply the concept of materiality, following the requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 320: Materiality in planning and 

performing an audit. The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but 

also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law. An item does not necessarily have to be large to be considered to have a material effect on 

the financial statements. An item may be considered to be material by nature, for example, when greater precision is required (e.g. senior manager salaries and allowances).  

We determine planning materiality (materiality for the financial statements as a whole determined at the planning stage of the audit) in order to estimate the tolerable level of misstatement in 

the financial statements, assist in establishing the scope of our audit engagement and audit tests, calculate sample sizes and assist in evaluating the effect of known and likely misstatements in 

the financial statements. 

We have determined planning materiality based upon professional judgement in the context of our knowledge of the Council. In line with previous years, we have calculated financial 

statements materiality based on a proportion of the gross revenue expenditure of the Council. For purposes of planning the audit we have determined overall materiality to be £15m (being 

approximately 1.9% of gross revenue expenditure). In the previous year, we determined materiality to be £15m (being approximately 1.9% of gross revenue expenditure). Our assessment of 

materiality is kept under review throughout the audit process and we will advise you if we revise this during the audit. 

Under ISA 450, auditors also set an amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial and would not need to be accumulated or reported to those charged with governance because 

we would not expect that the accumulation of such amounts would have a material effect on the financial statements. "Trivial" matters are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually 

or in aggregate and whether judged by any criteria of size, nature or circumstances. We have defined the amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial to be £750k. 

ISA 320 also requires auditors to determine separate, lower, materiality levels where there  are 'particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures for which misstatements of 

lesser amounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users'. We have identified the following items 

where separate materiality levels are appropriate: 

Balance/transaction/disclosure Explanation Materiality level 

Disclosures of officers' remuneration, salary 

bandings, exit packages and members' allowances 

in the notes to the financial statements 

Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for 

them to be made. 

£10,000 

Statutory audit fee Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for 

them to be made. 

£10,000 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

Ensure you amend the  table to 

reflect the  specific materiality 

levels  you have agreed for your 

audit .  

Please bear in mind that you will 

need to  test the balances  to the 

specific materiality levels you 

set, so do not set unrealistic 

materiality levels  for  these 

items. 

Auditor's remuneration should  

not be included  as a balance 

with a specific materiality level  

as it would not influence the 

economic decisions of users. 

 

5 

Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of the financial statements; Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, 

or a combination of both; and Judgments about matters that are material to users of the financial statements are based on a consideration of the common financial information needs 

of users as a group. The possible effect of misstatements on specific individual users, whose needs may vary widely, is not considered. (ISA (UK and Ireland) 320) 

P
age 19



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Significant risks identified 
An audit is focused on risks. Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK and Ireland) as risks that, in the judgment of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In 

identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher 

risk of material misstatement. 

Significant risk Description Audit procedures 

The revenue 

cycle includes 

fraudulent 

transactions 

Under ISA (UK and Ireland) 240 there is a 

presumed risk that revenue streams may 

be misstated due to the improper 

recognition of revenue. 

 

This presumption can be rebutted if the 

auditor concludes that there is no risk of 

material misstatement due to fraud relating 

to revenue recognition. 

 

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at Gloucestershire 

County Council, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, 

because: 

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition 

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited 

• The culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Gloucestershire County Council, mean that all 

forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable 

Therefore do not consider this to be a significant risk for Gloucestershire County Council. 

Management 

over-ride of 

controls 

Under ISA (UK and Ireland) 240 there is a 

non-rebuttable presumed risk that the risk 

of management over-ride of controls is 

present in all entities. 

Work completed to date: 

 Review of prior year accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management 

 Review of journal entry process and selection of unusual journal entries for testing back to supporting 

documentation 

Further work planned:  

 Review of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management 

 Review of unusual significant transactions and final period journals testing 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

6 

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, due to either size or 

nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement uncertainty." 

(ISA (UK and Ireland) 315) . In making the review of unusual significant transactions "the auditor shall treat identified significant related party transactions outside the entity's 

normal course of business as giving rise to significant risks." (ISA (UK and Ireland) 550) 

P
age 20



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Significant risks identified (continued) 

Significant risk Description Audit procedures 

Valuation of property, plant and 

equipment  

 

The Council revalues its assets on 

a rolling basis over a two year 

period. The Code requires that the 

Council ensures that the carrying 

value at the balance sheet date is 

not materially different from the 

current value. This represents a 

significant estimate by management 

in the financial statements. 

Work completed to date: 

 Review of management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate. 

 Review of the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used. 

 Review of the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work 

Further work planned: 

 Discussions with valuer about the basis on which the valuation is carried out and challenge of the key 

assumptions. 

 Review and challenge of the information used by the valuer to ensure it is robust and consistent with our 

understanding. 

 Testing of revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input correctly into the Council's asset 

register 

 Evaluation of the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year and 

how management has satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to current value. 

 

Valuation of pension fund net 

liability 

The Council's pension fund asset 

and liability as reflected in its 

balance sheet represent  a 

significant estimate in the financial 

statements. 

Work planned: 

 We will identify the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension fund liability is not 

materially misstated. We will also assess whether these controls were implemented as expected and 

whether they are sufficient to mitigate the risk of material misstatement. 

 We will review the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out your pension 

fund valuation. We will gain an understanding of the basis on which the valuation is carried out. 

 We will undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made.  

 We will review the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in notes to the 

financial statements with the actuarial report from your actuary. 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

We have also identified the following significant risks of material misstatement from our understanding of the entity. We set out below the work we have completed to date 

and the work we plan to address these risks. 

7 

P
age 21



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Significant risks identified (continued) 

Significant risk Description Audit procedures 

Changes to the presentation of 

local authority financial 

statements 

CIPFA has been working on the 

‘Telling the Story’ project, for which 

the aim was to streamline the 

financial statements and improve 

accessibility to the user and this has 

resulted in changes to the 2016/17 

Code of Practice. 

 

The changes affect the presentation 

of income and expenditure in the 

financial statements and associated 

disclosure notes. A prior period 

adjustment (PPA) to restate the 

2015/16 comparative figures is also 

required. 

Work planned: 

 We will document and evaluate the process for the recording the required financial reporting changes to 

the 2016/17 financial statements. 

 We will review the re-classification of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) 

comparatives to ensure that they are in line with the Authority’s internal reporting structure. 

 We will review the appropriateness of the revised grouping of entries within the Movement In Reserves 

Statement (MIRS). 

 We will test the classification of income and expenditure for 2016/17 recorded within the Cost of 

Services section of the CIES. 

 We will test the completeness  of income and expenditure by reviewing the reconciliation of the CIES to 

the general ledger. 

 We will test the classification of income and expenditure reported within the new Expenditure and 

Funding Analysis (EFA) note to the financial statements. 

 We will review the new segmental reporting disclosures within the 2016/17 financial statements  to 

ensure compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice. 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

We have also identified the following significant risks of material misstatement from our understanding of the entity. We set out below the work we have completed to date 

and the work we plan to address these risks. 

8 

P
age 22



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Other risks identified 
Reasonably possible risks (RPRs) are, in the auditor's judgment, other risk areas which the auditor has identified as an area where the likelihood of material misstatement 

cannot be reduced to remote, without the need for gaining an understanding of the associated control environment, along with the performance of an appropriate level of 

substantive work. The risk of misstatement for an RPR or other risk is lower than that for a significant risk, and they are not considered to be areas that are highly 

judgmental, or unusual in relation to the day to day activities of the business. 

Reasonably possible 

risks Description of risk Audit procedures 

Operating expenses Year end creditors and accruals are 

understated or not recorded in the 

correct period. 

 

Work completed to date: 

 Documented our understanding of the controls operating the creditors system 

 Performed a walkthrough to confirm that the controls identified are in operation 

 Obtained an understanding of the accruals process 

 Substantive testing of operating expenses for M1-M9 

Further work planned: 

 Testing for unrecorded liabilities, including review of payments made after the year end 

 Review of creditor balances. 

 Review of the completeness of subsidiary system interfaces and control account reconciliations 

 Reviewing a reconciliation demonstrating that all material sources of expenditure have been captured and 

reconciled to total expenditure in the accounts and that internal transfers have been correctly eliminated. 

 Substantive testing of operating expenses for M10-M12 

Employee remuneration Employee remuneration accruals 

are understated 

Work completed to date: 

 Documented our understanding of the controls operating the payroll system 

 Performed a walkthrough to confirm that the controls identified are in operation 

 Trend analysis of payroll data M1-M9 

Further work planned: 

 Reconciliation of payroll system to the general ledger 

 Substantive testing of staff and officer payroll payments 

9 

"In respect of some risks, the auditor may judge that it is not possible or practicable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence only from substantive procedures. Such risks may 

relate to the inaccurate or incomplete recording of routine and significant classes of transactions or account balances, the characteristics of which often permit highly automated 

processing with little or no manual intervention. In such cases, the entity’s controls over such risks are relevant to the audit and the auditor shall obtain an understanding of them." 

(ISA (UK and Ireland) 315)  

P
age 23



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Other risks identified (continued) 

Other material balances and transactions 

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for 

each material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures 

will not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in the previous sections but will include: 

• Heritage assets 

• Assets held for sale 

• Cash and cash equivalents 

• Trade and other receivables 

• Borrowings and other liabilities (long and short term) 

• Provisions 

• Useable and unusable reserves 

• Movement in Reserves Statement and associated notes 

• Statement of cash flows and associated notes 

• Financing and investment income and expenditure 

• Taxation and non-specific grants 

• Schools balances and transactions 

• New note disclosures 

• Officers' remuneration note 

• Leases note 

• Related party transactions note 

• Capital expenditure and capital financing note 

• Financial instruments note 

• Collection Fund and associated notes 

10 

Going concern 

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption 

in the preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a 

going concern” (ISA (UK and Ireland) 570). We will review the management's assessment of the going concern assumption and the disclosures in the financial 

statements.  

P
age 24



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Value for Money 

Background 

The Code requires us to consider whether the Council has put in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. This is known as the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion.  

The National Audit Office (NAO) issued its guidance for auditors on value for 
money work for 2016/17 in November 2016. The guidance states that for local 
government bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion on whether the 
Council has proper arrangements in place. 

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:  

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys 
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.  

This is supported by three sub-criteria as set out opposite: 

Sub-criteria Detail 

Informed decision 

making 

• Acting in the public interest, through demonstrating and 

applying the principles and values of sound governance 

• Understanding and using appropriate cost and 

performance information (including, where relevant, 

information from regulatory/monitoring bodies) to 

support informed decision making and performance 

management 

• Reliable and timely financial reporting that supports the 

delivery of strategic priorities 

• Managing risks effectively and maintaining a sound system 

of internal control 

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment 

• Planning finances effectively to support the sustainable 

delivery of strategic priorities and maintain statutory 

functions 

• Managing and utilising assets effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities 

• Planning, organising and developing the workforce 

effectively to deliver strategic priorities. 

Working with 

partners and 

other third parties 

• Working with third parties effectively to deliver strategic 

priorities 

• Commissioning services effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities 

• Procuring supplies and services effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities. 

11 

P
age 25



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Value for Money (continued) 

Risk assessment 

We have carried out an initial risk assessment based on the NAO's auditor's guidance note (AGN03). In our initial risk assessment, we considered: 

• our cumulative knowledge of the Council, including work performed in previous years in respect of the VfM conclusion and the opinion on the financial statements. 

• the findings of other inspectorates and review agencies,  

• any illustrative significant risks identified and communicated by the NAO in its Supporting Information. 

• any other evidence which we consider necessary to conclude on your arrangements. 

We have identified four significant risks which we are required to communicate to you. These are set out overleaf. 

We have not identified any significant risks from our initial risk assessment. We will continue our review of your arrangements, including reviewing your Annual 
Governance Statement, before we issue our auditor's report. 

 

 

 

 

 

12 

Reporting 

The results of our VfM audit work and the key messages arising will be reported in our Audit Findings Report and in the Annual Audit Letter.  

We will include our conclusion in our auditor's report on your financial statements which we will give by July 2017. 

P
age 26



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Value for money (continued) 

We set out below the significant risks we have identified as a result of our initial risk assessment and the work we propose to address these risks. 

 

Significant risk Link to sub-criteria Work proposed to address 

Future financial sustainability 

The Council identified savings of £35.3m as part of the 2017/18 budget 

setting process. Delivery of this level of savings will be challenging for the 

Council. A contingency has been set aside in case this is not fully 

delivered in 2017/18, although the Council recognises that this is not a 

long-term solution.  

 

There is a risk that sufficient recurrent savings are not identified to fill the 

projected savings gap. 

This links to the Council's arrangements for 

planning finances effectively to support the 

sustainable delivery of strategic priorities and 

using appropriate cost and performance 

information to support informed decision 

making. 

We will review the Council's arrangements for 

updating, agreeing and monitoring its medium Term 

Financial Strategy. Specifically we will consider the 

robustness of the financial planning assumptions 

and arrangements for ensuring the financial 

projections including future savings are realistic and 

achievable. 

Children's social care 

As at December 2016 the forecast overspend in Children's and Families is 

projected to be £3.81m. Whilst a draw down from the Vulnerable Children 

reserve could reduce the overspend it is proposed that this overspend will 

be offset by corporate underspends, leaving the reserve intact to assist 

with demand in 2017/18 given current trends.  

 

There is a risk of not achieving the required savings  in year resulting in 

overspends in budget for current and future years. 

This links to the Council's arrangements for 

planning finances effectively to support the 

sustainable delivery of strategic priorities and 

using appropriate cost and performance 

information to support informed decision 

making. 

We will review the Council's arrangements for 

monitoring and managing delivery of the 2016/17 

budget and savings plans. We will review the 

Council’s arrangements for 2017/18 budget setting 

including identification of savings plans. 

Adult social care 

As at December 2016, the current forecast of the year end revenue 

position in Adults' services is a balanced position.  

 

Given this is a demand-led service, there is a risk of not achieving the 

required savings for future years. 

This links to the Council's arrangements for 

plining finances effectively to support the 

sustainable delivery of strategic priorities and 

using appropriate cost and performance 

information to support informed decision 

making. 

 

We will review the Council's arrangements for 

monitoring and managing delivery of the 2016/17 

budget and savings plans. We will review the 

Council’s arrangements for 2017/18 budget setting 

including identification of savings plans. 

 

Ofsted inspection of children’s services 

Ofsted commenced an inspection of children's social care services on 

Monday 27 February 2017. 

 

There is a risk that Ofsted’s inspection finds that the Council’s 

arrangements for children’s social care services are inadequate. 

This links to the Council's arrangements for 

managing risks effectively and maintaining a 

sound system of internal control, demonstrating 

and applying the principles and values of sound 

governance, and planning, organising and 

developing the workforce effectively to deliver 

strategic priorities. 

We will review Ofsted's report on the Council's 

arrangements for children's social care services to 

ensure that the services are adequate. 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

13 

P
age 27



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Other audit responsibilities 

14 

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice in relation to your financial statements and arrangements for economy, efficiency and effectiveness we 

have a number of other audit responsibilities, as follows: 

• We will undertake work to satisfy ourselves that the disclosures made in your Annual Governance Statement are in line with CIPFA/SOLACE guidance and 

consistent with our knowledge of the Council. 

• We will read your Narrative Statement and check that it is consistent with the financial statements on which we  give an  opinion and that the disclosures included 

in it are in line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice. 

• We will carry out work on your  consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government Accounts process in accordance with NAO instructions to auditors. 

• We consider our other duties under the Act and the Code, as and when required, including: 

• We will give electors the opportunity to raise questions about your financial statements and consider and decide upon any objections received in relation to 

the financial statements; 

• issue of a report in the public interest; and 

• making a written recommendation to the Council, copied to the Secretary of State 

• We certify completion of our audit.  

 

P
age 28



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Results of  interim audit work 

The findings of our interim audit work, and the impact of our findings on the accounts audit approach, are summarised in the table below: 

Work performed Conclusion 

Internal audit We have completed a high level review of internal audit's overall 

arrangements. Our work has not identified any issues which we wish 

to bring to your attention.   

We have also reviewed internal audit's work on the Council's key 

financial systems to date. We have not identified any significant 

weaknesses impacting on our responsibilities.   

Overall, we have concluded that the internal audit service 

provides an independent and satisfactory service to the 

Council and that internal audit work contributes to an effective 

internal control environment.  

Our review of internal audit work has not identified any 

weaknesses which impact on our audit approach.  

Entity level controls We have obtained an understanding of the overall control 

environment relevant to the preparation of the financial statements 

including: 

• Communication and enforcement of integrity and ethical values 

• Commitment to competence 

• Participation by those charged with governance 

• Management's philosophy and operating style 

• Organisational structure 

• Assignment of authority and responsibility 

• Human resource policies and practices 

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are 

likely to adversely impact on the Council's financial statements  

Walkthrough testing We have completed walkthrough tests of the Council's controls 

operating in areas where we consider that there is a risk of material 

misstatement to the financial statements.  

Our work has not identified any issues which we wish to bring to your 

attention. Internal controls have been implemented by the Council in 

accordance with our documented understanding. 

Our work has not identified any weaknesses which impact on 

our audit approach.  

15 

P
age 29



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Results of  interim audit work (continued) 

Work performed Conclusion 

Journal entry controls We have reviewed the Council's journal entry policies and 
procedures as part of determining our journal entry testing strategy 
and have not identified any material weaknesses which are likely to 
adversely impact on the Council's control environment or financial 
statements. 
 
To date we have undertaken detailed testing on journal transactions 
recorded for the first nine months of the financial year, by extracting 
'unusual' entries for further review.. 

No issues have been identified that we wish to highlight for 

your attention. All journals tested have been processed in line 

with accounting instruction 18.  

At the year end we will test the completeness of the journals 

population provided for audit and extract the final three months 

worth of data for testing in line with our journal entry testing 

strategy  

Early substantive testing We have performed substantive testing on the following: 
Other Revenues- Occurrence (M1-M9) 
Operating Expenditure- Occurrence (M1-M9) 
 
Payroll trend analysis has been completed for 9 months 

No issues have been identified that we wish to highlight for 

your attention.  

16 

P
age 30



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
The audit cycle 

The audit timeline 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Add any other agreed 

milestones or outputs agreed 

with your client 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Logistics 

Key dates: 

 

 

 

Audit phases: 

 

 

 

Year end:  

31 Mar 2017 

Close out:  

June 2017 

Audit committee:  

28 July 2017 

Sign off:  

28 July 2017 

Planning  

Feb 2017 

Interim   

w/c 6 Feb 2017 

Final   

w/c 12 Jun 2017 

Completion   

July 2017 

Key elements 

 Planning meeting with management to 

inform audit planning and agree audit 

timetable 

 Issue audit working paper 

requirements to management 

 Discussions with those charged with 

governance and internal audit to 

inform audit planning 

 Discuss draft Audit Plan with 

management 

 Meeting with Audit Committee to 

discuss the Audit Plan 

Key elements 

 Document design effectiveness of key 

accounting systems and processes 

 Review of key judgements and 

estimates 

 Early substantive audit testing 

 Review of Value for Money 

arrangements 

 Issue the Audit Plan to management 

and Audit Committee including 

progress report 

Key elements 

 Audit teams onsite to 

complete detailed audit testing 

 Weekly update meetings with 

management 

Key elements 

 Issue draft Audit Findings to 

management 

 Meeting with management to discuss 

Audit Findings 

 Issue draft Audit Findings to Audit 

Committee 

 Audit Findings presentation to Audit 

Committee 

 Finalise approval and signing of 

financial statements and audit report 

 Submission of WGA assurance 

statement (August 2017) 

 Annual Audit Letter 

Debrief  

Aug 2017 

P
age 31



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 
 

DRAFT 

Fees 

£ 

Council audit 98,010 

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 98,010 

Audit Fees 

Our fee assumptions include: 

 Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts are supplied by the 

agreed dates and in accordance with the agreed upon information 

request list 

 The scope of the audit, and the Council and its activities, have not 

changed significantly 

 The Council will make available management and accounting staff to 

help us locate information and to provide explanations 

 The accounts presented for audit are materially accurate, supporting 

working papers and evidence agree to the accounts, and all audit 

queries are resolved promptly. 

Grant certification 

 Our fees for grant certification cover only housing benefit subsidy 

certification, which falls under the remit of Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited 

 Fees in respect of other grant work, such as reasonable assurance 

reports, are shown under 'Fees for other services'. 

 

What is included within our fees 

 

 A reliable and risk-focused audit appropriate for your business 

 Invitations to events hosted by Grant Thornton in your sector, as well as the wider 

finance community 

 Ad-hoc telephone calls and queries 

 Technical briefings and updates 

 Regular contact to discuss strategy and other important areas 

 A review of accounting policies for appropriateness and consistency 

 Annual technical updates for members of your finance team 

• Regular Audit Committee Progress Reports 

 

Guidance note 

'Fees for other services' is to be 

used where we need to 

communicate agreed fees in 

advance of the audit.  At the 

time of preparation of the Audit 

Plan it is unlikely that full 

information as to all fees 

charged by GTI network firms 

will be available. Disclosure of 

these fees, threats to 

independence and safeguards 

will therefore be included in the 

Audit Findings report. 

 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Fees for other services 

 

Fees for other services detailed on the following page, reflect those agreed at the time 

of issuing our Audit Plan. Any changes will be reported in our Audit Findings Report 

and Annual Audit Letter. 

P
age 32



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 
 

DRAFT 
Independence and non-audit services 

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have 

complied with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards and we confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 

statements.  

We have previously advised you that Grant Thornton is an advisor to Balfour Beatty, who are the Council’s PFI partners in its waste disposal contract. We have considered 

whether the issue is a threat to our independence and have concluded it is not, as the project reached financial close in February 2013. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards. 

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to Gloucestershire County Council. The following audit 

related and non-audit services were identified for the Council for 2016/17: 

The above services are consistent with the Council's policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. 

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services (to be) undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP (and Grant Thornton International 

Limited network member Firms) in the current financial year. Full details of all fees charged for audit and non-audit services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant 

Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be included in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit. 

 

Guidance note 

'Fees for other services' is to be 

used where we need to 

communicate agreed fees in 

advance of the audit. At the time 

of preparation of the Audit Plan 

it is unlikely that full information 

as to all fees charged by GTI 

network firms will be available. 

Disclosure of these fees, threats 

to independence and 

safeguards will therefore be 

included in the Audit Findings 

report. 

 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

group’s. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Independence and 

non-audit services 

Fees for other services 

Service Fees £ Planned outputs 

Audit related 

Teachers' Pension certification 4,200 Certification 

Non-audit related 

CFO Insights licence  10,000 Subscription based data service 

Place Analytics license 28,000 Subscription based data service 

P
age 33



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire County Council   |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Communication of  audit matters with those charged with governance 

Our communication plan 

Audit 

Plan 

Audit 

Findings 

Report 

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those 

charged with governance 

 

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 

and expected general content of communications 

 

Views about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 

financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising 

during the audit and written representations that have been sought 

 

Confirmation of independence and objectivity   

A statement that we have complied with  relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence,  relationships and other 

matters which might  be thought to bear on independence.  

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 

network firms, together with  fees charged.   

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence 

 

 

 

Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit  

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or 

others which results in material misstatement of the financial 

statements 

 

Non compliance with laws and regulations  

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter  

Uncorrected misstatements  

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties  

Significant matters in relation to going concern   

International Standard on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISA) 260, as well as other ISAs (UK 

and Ireland) prescribe matters which we are required to communicate with those 

charged with governance, and which we set out in the table opposite.   

This document, The Audit Plan, outlines our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, 

while The Audit Findings will be issued prior to approval of the financial statements  and 

will present key issues and other matters arising from the audit, together with an 

explanation as to how these have been resolved. 

We will communicate any adverse or unexpected findings affecting the audit on a timely 

basis, either informally or via a report to the Council. 

Respective responsibilities 

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with ISAs (UK and 

Ireland), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the financial 

statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged 

with governance. 

This plan has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of 

Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 

(http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/) 

We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditors by the Audit 

Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public bodies 

in England at the time of our appointment. As external auditors, we have a broad remit 

covering finance and governance matters.  

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice ('the 

Code') issued by the NAO and includes nationally prescribed and locally determined 

work (https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/). Our work considers the 

Council's key risks when reaching our conclusions under the Code.  

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with 

governance of their responsibilities. 

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for 

the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 

accounted for.  We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these responsibilities. 

20 

P
age 34

http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/


© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.  

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership.  

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one Gloucestershire County. Grant Thornton International does 
not provide services to clients.  

grant-thornton.co.uk 

21 

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

DRAFT 

This version of the 

report is a draft. Its 

contents and subject 

matter remain under 

review and its contents 

may change and be 

expanded as part of the 

finalisation of the report. 

 

The Audit Plan 

for Gloucestershire Pension Fund 

 Year ended 31 March 2017 

Elizabeth Cave 

Director 

T 0117 305 7885 

E  liz.a.cave@uk.gt.com 

David Bray 

Senior Manager 

T 0117 305 7889 

E  david.bray@uk.gt.com 

James Stevenson 

In Charge Accountant 

T 0117 305 7624 

E  james.r.stevenson@uk.gt.com 

Audit and Governance Committee 7th April 2017 

Cover page 

 

Guidance note 

Please ensure you enter the 

date of the issue of the report. 

 

P
age 37



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund   |  2016/17 2 

Chartered Accountants 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.  

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and 

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details. 

This Audit Plan sets out for the benefit of those charged with governance (in the case of  Gloucestershire Pension Fund, the Audit and Governance Committee), an 

overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. This document is to help you understand the 

consequences of our work, discuss issues of risk and the concept of materiality with us, and identify any areas where you may request us to undertake additional procedures. 

It also helps us gain a better understanding of the Fund and your environment. The contents of the Plan have been discussed with management.  

We are required to perform our audit in line with Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and in accordance with the Code of Practice issued by the National Audit Office 

(NAO) on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2015. Our responsibilities under the Code are to give an opinion on the Fund's financial statements.  

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair 

view. 

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process.  

It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change. In particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks 

which may affect the Fund or all weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely for your benefit. We do not accept any responsibility for any 

loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other 

purpose.  

We look forward to working with you during the course of the audit. 

Yours sincerely 

Elizabeth Cave 

Engagement Lead 

Grant Thornton UK LLP  

Hartwell House 

Victoria Street 

Bristol 

 

T +44 (0) 117 305 7600 

www.grant-thornton.co.uk  

7th April 2017 

Dear Members of the Audit and Governance Committee 

 

 

 

Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund for the year ending 31 March 2017 

Gloucestershire Pension Fund 

Shire Hall 

Westgate Street 

Gloucester 

GL1 2TG 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

 

The disclaimer paragraph 

should not be edited or 

removed as this is there for 

the auditor’s protection and 

its absence could possibly 

weaken our defence if a 

complaint or claim is made. 

 

 

 

Letter 

P
age 38



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Contents 

Section  

Understanding your business and key developments  

Materiality  

Significant risks identified  

Other risks identified              

Results of interim audit work  

The audit cycle 

Audit fees  

Independence and non-audit services  

Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance  

Appendices 

Appendix 1: Action plan 

 

  

3 

P
age 39



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Understanding your business and key developments 

Key challenges Financial reporting changes 

 

Developments 

 

Our response 

 We will discuss with you your progress in implementing the requirements of the new investment regulations, highlighting any areas of good practice or concern which we have identified. 

 We will discuss your progress in  implementing revised governance structures, and share our experiences gained nationally. 

 We aim to complete all our substantive audit work of your financial statements by 07/07/2016  

 As part of our opinion on your financial statements, we will consider whether your financial statements accurately reflect the  changes in the 2016/17 Code  

Investment Regulations 

The new investment regulations came into force on 1 

November 2016 and require administering authorities to 

publish new Investment Strategy Statements  by 1st April 

2017. The statement must be in accordance with guidance 

issued by the Secretary of State. The information required 

will include the authority's assessment of the suitability of 

particular investments and types of investments, the 

authority's approach to risk, including the ways in which 

risks are to be measured and managed and the authority's 

approach to pooling investments, including the use of 

collective investment vehicles and shared services.  These 

regulations also provide the Secretary of State with the 

power to intervene in the investment function of a fund if 

he/she is satisfied that the authority is failing to act in 

accordance with the regulations. 

Pooling Governance  

Arrangements for pooling of investments continue to 

develop, with DCLG expecting administering authorities to 

be transferring liquid assets from April 2018. The structure 

and governance of these arrangements will need to be 

implemented before this date. These arrangements are likely 

to have a significant  impact on how the investments are 

managed, who makes decisions and how investment 

activities are actioned and monitored.  Although much of this 

operational responsibility will move to the investment pool 

operator, it is key that administering authorities (through 

Pension Committees and Pension Boards) continue to 

operate strong governance arrangements, particularly during 

the transition phase where funds are likely to have a mix of 

investment management arrangements.  

 Gloucester Pension fund is currently in the process of a 

triennial valuation. Whilst this is not expected to 

substantially alter our audit approach it may require 

significant input from the pension administrator in the lead 

up to 31 March 2017. 

CIPFA Code of Practice 2016/17 (the Code) 

The main change to the Code for Pension Funds is the 

extension of the fair value disclosures required under the 

Code from 2016/17.   

The greatest impact is expected to be for those Funds 

holding directly owned property and/or shares and Level 3 

investments.  These are reflected in CIPFA's pension fund 

example accounts alongside further changes including an 

analysis of Investment Management expenses in line with 

CIPFA's Local Government Pension Scheme Management 

Costs guidance, a realignment of investment classifications, 

and an additional disclosure note covering remuneration of 

key management personnel which has been included in 

related party transactions. 

Earlier closedown 

The Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015 require 

councils to bring forward 

the approval and audit of 

financial statements to 31 

July by the 2017/18 

financial year. This will 

impact not only upon the 

production of the Fund 

accounts but also on earlier 

requests for information 

from employers within the 

Fund. 

 
The triennial valuation 

combined with the early 

close is likely to cause 

significant time pressures 

for the pensions 

administration team.  

Triennial actuarial 

valuation of the fund 

Members will need to 

consider the outcome of 

this review and the impact 

this will have on the fund in 

future investment 

decisions. 

 

Local developments 

The Gloucestershire 

Pension Fund is currently 

part of pooling 

arrangements for the 

Brunel investment pool.  

 

Discussions are on-going 

regarding governance 

arrangements. 

Understanding 

your business  

Guidance note 

KPI table – these should be the 

key indicators that client 

management use to monitor 

business performance. Please 

update as required. 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

 

Key performance indicators 

Measure Value 

Net assets under management £2,000m circa 

Total membership 19,000 circa 

Number of employers 256 

P
age 40



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Materiality 
In performing our audit, we apply the concept of materiality, following the requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 320: Materiality in planning and 

performing an audit. The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but 

also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law. An item does not necessarily have to be large to be considered to have a material effect on 

the financial statements. An item may be considered to be material by nature, for example, when greater precision is required (e.g. senior manager salaries and allowances).  

We determine planning materiality (materiality for the financial statements as a whole determined at the planning stage of the audit) in order to estimate the tolerable level of misstatement in 

the financial statements, assist in establishing the scope of our audit engagement and audit tests, calculate sample sizes and assist in evaluating the effect of known and likely misstatements in 

the financial statements. 

We have determined planning materiality based upon professional judgement in the context of our knowledge of the Fund. In line with previous years, we have calculated financial statements 

materiality based on a proportion of net assets for the Fund. For purposes of planning the audit we have determined overall materiality to be £17,025k (being 1% of net assets). In the 

previous year, we determined materiality to be £17,091k (being 1% of net assets). Our assessment of materiality is kept under review throughout the audit process and we will advise you if we 

revise this during the audit. 

Under ISA 450, auditors also set an amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial and would not need to be accumulated or reported to those charged with governance because 

we would not expect that the accumulation of such amounts would have a material effect on the financial statements. "Trivial" matters are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually 

or in aggregate and whether judged by any criteria of size, nature or circumstances. We have defined the amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial to be £852k. 

ISA 320 also requires auditors to determine separate, lower, materiality levels where there  are 'particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures for which misstatements of 

lesser amounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users'. We have identified the following items 

where separate materiality levels are appropriate: 

Balance/transaction/disclosure Explanation Materiality level 

Management expenses Due to public interest in these disclosures. £200,000 

Related party transactions Due to public interest in these disclosures and 

the statutory requirement for them to be made. 

£20,000 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

Ensure you amend the  table to 

reflect the  specific materiality 

levels  you have agreed for your 

audit .  

Please bear in mind that you will 

need to  test the balances  to the 

specific materiality levels you 

set, so do not set unrealistic 

materiality levels  for  these 

items. 

Auditor's remuneration should  

not be included  as a balance 

with a specific materiality level  

as it would not influence the 

economic decisions of users. 

 

5 

Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of the financial statements; Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, 

or a combination of both; and Judgments about matters that are material to users of the financial statements are based on a consideration of the common financial information needs 

of users as a group. The possible effect of misstatements on specific individual users, whose needs may vary widely, is not considered. (ISA (UK and Ireland) 320) 

P
age 41



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Significant risks identified 
An audit is focused on risks. Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK and Ireland) as risks that, in the judgment of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In 

identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher 

risk of material misstatement. 

Significant risk Description Audit procedures 

The revenue cycle 

includes fraudulent 

transactions 

Under ISA (UK and Ireland) 240 there is a 

presumed risk that revenue streams may be 

misstated due to the improper recognition of 

revenue. 

 

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor 

concludes that there is no risk of material 

misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue 

recognition. 

 

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at 

Gloucestershire Pension Fund, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue 

recognition can be rebutted, because: 

• There is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition. 

• Opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited. 

• The culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Gloucestershire County Council, 

mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable. 

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for Gloucestershire Pension Fund. 

Management over-

ride of controls 

Under ISA (UK and Ireland) 240 there is a non-

rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of 

management over-ride of controls is present in all 

entities. 

Work completed to date: 

 Review of journal entry process and selection of unusual journal entries to 31 January 2017 for 

testing back to supporting documentation. 

We found one instance where the net effect of investment sales were included whereas individual 

losses and gains should be recorded separately. Further testing has been performed around this area 

and we did not identify any further issues.  

Further work planned:  

 We will review accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management. 

 We will review journal entry process and select unusual journal entries for the rest of the financial 

year for testing back to supporting documentation. 

 We will review of unusual significant transactions. 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

6 

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, due to either size or nature, 

and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement uncertainty." (ISA (UK 

and Ireland) 315) . In making the review of unusual significant transactions "the auditor shall treat identified significant related party transactions outside the entity's normal course of 

business as giving rise to significant risks." (ISA (UK and Ireland) 550) 

P
age 42



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Significant risks identified (continued) 

Significant risk Description Audit procedures 

Level 3 Investments 

Valuation is 

incorrect 

 

Under ISA 315 significant risks often relate to 

significant non-routine transactions and 

judgemental matters. Level 3 investments by 

their very nature require a significant degree of 

judgement to reach an appropriate valuation at 

year end. 

 

Work completed to date: 

 We have updated our understanding and discussed the cycle with relevant personnel from the Council's 

team during the interim audit. 

 We have performed walkthrough tests of the controls identified in the cycle. 

Our work has not identified any issues that we wish to draw to your attention. 

Further work planned: 

 For a sample of investments, we will test valuations by obtaining and reviewing the audited accounts at 

latest date for individual investments and agreeing these to the fund manager reports at that date.  

Reconciliation of those values to the values at 31st March 2017 with reference to known movements in 

the intervening period. 

 We will review the qualifications of the fund managers as experts to value the level 3 investments at 

year end and gain an understanding of how the valuation of these investments has been reached. 

 We will review the nature and basis of estimated values and consider what assurance management has 

over the year end valuations provided for these types of investments. 

 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

We have also identified the following significant risks of material misstatement from our understanding of the entity. We set out below the work we have completed to date 

and the work we plan to address these risks. 

7 

P
age 43



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Other risks identified 
Reasonably possible risks (RPRs) are, in the auditor's judgment, other risk areas which the auditor has identified as an area where the likelihood of material misstatement 

cannot be reduced to remote, without the need for gaining an understanding of the associated control environment, along with the performance of an appropriate level of 

substantive work. The risk of misstatement for an RPR or other risk is lower than that for a significant risk, and they are not considered to be areas that are highly 

judgmental, or unusual in relation to the day to day activities of the business. 

Reasonably possible risks Description of risk Audit procedures 

Investment Income 

 

Investment activity not valid. 

Investment income not accurate. 

(Accuracy) 

 

Work planned: 

 We will review the reconciliation of information provided by the fund managers, the 

custodian and the Pension Fund's own records and seek explanations for any variances. 

Investment purchases and sales 

 

Investment activity not valid. 

Investment valuation not correct. 

(Accuracy) 

Work planned: 

 We will review the reconciliation of information provided by the fund managers, the 

custodian and the Pension Fund's own records and seek explanations for any variances. 

 

8 

P
age 44



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Other risks identified (continued) 

Reasonably possible risks Description of risk Audit procedures 

Investment values – Level 2 

investments 

Valuation is incorrect. (Valuation net) Work planned: 

 We will review the reconciliation of information provided by the fund managers, the 

custodian and the Pension Fund's own records and seek explanations for any variances. 

Contributions  Recorded contributions not correct (Occurrence) Work completed to date: 

• We performed walkthroughs over controls covering occurrence, completeness and 

accuracy of contributions. 

Our work has not identified any issues that we wish to draw to your attention. 

Further work planned: 

 We will compare contributions received with reference to changes in member body 

payrolls and numbers of contributing pensioners to ensure that any unexpected trends 

are satisfactorily explained. 

. 

 

Benefits payable Benefits improperly computed/claims liability 

understated (Completeness, accuracy and 

occurrence) 

Work completed to date: 

• We performed walkthroughs over controls covering occurrence, completeness and 

accuracy of benefits payable. 

Our work has not identified any issues that we wish to draw to your attention. 

Further work planned: 

 We will test a sample of individual pensions in payment by reference to member files. 

 We will compare pensions paid with reference to changes in pensioner numbers and 

increases applied in the year to ensure that any unusual trends are satisfactorily 

explained. 

9 

P
age 45



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Other risks identified (continued) 

Reasonably possible risks Description of risk Audit procedures 

Member Data  Member data not correct. (Rights 

and Obligations) 

Work completed to date: 

 We performed walkthroughs over controls regarding enrolment and administration of 

pension fund members.   

 Sample testing of changes to member data for April 2016 to December 2016 to source 

documentation. 

Our work has not identified any issues that we wish to draw to your attention. 

Further work planned: 

 We will test a sample of changes to member data for January 2017 to March 2017 to 

source documentation. 

10 

"In respect of some risks, the auditor may judge that it is not possible or practicable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence only from substantive procedures. Such risks may 

relate to the inaccurate or incomplete recording of routine and significant classes of transactions or account balances, the characteristics of which often permit highly automated 

processing with little or no manual intervention. In such cases, the entity’s controls over such risks are relevant to the audit and the auditor shall obtain an understanding of them." 

(ISA (UK and Ireland) 315)  

P
age 46



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Other risks identified (continued) 

Other material balances and transactions 

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for 

each material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures 

will not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in the previous sections but will include:  

• Transfers in 

• Transfers out 

• Administrative expenses 

• Cash deposits 

• Current assets 

• Non current assets 

• Current liabilities 

• Actuarial Valuation and Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits 

• Financial Instruments 

11 

Going concern 

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption 

in the preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a 

going concern” (ISA (UK and Ireland) 570). We will review the management's assessment of the going concern assumption and the disclosures in the financial 

statements.  

P
age 47



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Results of  interim audit work 

The findings of our interim audit work, and the impact of our findings on the accounts audit approach, are summarised in the table below: 
 

Work performed Conclusion 

Internal audit We have completed a high level review of internal audit's overall 

arrangements. Our work has not identified any issues which we wish 

to bring to your attention. 

Overall, we have concluded that the arrangements in place 

should provide an independent and satisfactory service to the 

Fund which contributes to an effective internal control 

environment.  

Our review of internal audit findings and other matters will be 

completed as part of the final audit work. 

Entity level controls (including 

review of information technology 

controls) 

 

We have obtained an understanding of the overall control 

environment relevant to the preparation of the financial statements 

including. 

In order to deliver an efficient audit, we will seek understand the 

controls in place at Gloucestershire County Council. 

Our work to date has identified no material weaknesses which 

are likely to adversely impact on the Fund's financial 

statements. 

Our IT colleagues have yet to complete all of their work and we 

will report their findings to you in due course.  

12 

P
age 48



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
The audit cycle 

The audit timeline 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Add any other agreed 

milestones or outputs agreed 

with your client 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Logistics 

Key dates: 

 

 

 

Audit phases: 

 

 

 

Year end:  

31 March 2017 

Close out:  

June 2017 

Audit committee:  

28 July 2017 

Sign off:  

July 2017 

Planning:  

Commencing January 

2017 

Interim audit:   

January and February 

2017 

Final audit:   

June and July 2017 

Completion   

July 2017  

Key elements 

 Planning meeting with management to 

inform audit planning and agree audit 

timetable 

 Issue audit working paper 

requirements to management 

 Discussions with those charged with 

governance and internal audit to 

inform audit planning 

 Discuss draft Audit Plan with 

management 

 Issue the Audit Plan to management 

and Audit and Governance Committee 

 Meeting with Audit and Governance 

Committee to discuss the Audit Plan 

 

Key elements 

 Document design effectiveness of key 

accounting systems and processes 

 Review of key judgements and 

estimates 

 Early substantive audit testing 

 Issue Progress report to management 

and Audit and Governance Committee 

 

Key elements 

 Audit team onsite to complete 

detailed audit testing 

 Weekly update meetings with 

management 

 ‘Hot review’ of the financial 

statements 

 

Key elements 

 Issue draft Audit Findings to 

management 

 Meeting with management to discuss 

Audit Findings 

 Issue draft Audit Findings to Audit and 

Governance Committee 

 Audit Findings presentation to Audit 

and Governance Committee 

 Finalise approval and signing of 

financial statements and audit report 

Debrief  

August 2017 P
age 49



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2016/17 
 

DRAFT 

Fees 

£ 

Pension fund audit 23,799 

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 23,799 

Audit fees 

Our fee assumptions include: 

 Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts are supplied by the 

agreed dates and in accordance with the agreed upon information 

request list 

 The scope of the audit, and the Fund and its activities, have not 

changed significantly 

 The Fund will make available management and accounting staff to 

help us locate information and to provide explanations 

 The accounts presented for audit are materially accurate, supporting 

working papers and evidence agree to the accounts, and all audit 

queries are resolved promptly. 

 

What is included within our fees 

 A reliable and risk-focused audit appropriate for your business. 

 Invitations to events hosted by Grant Thornton in your sector, as well as the wider 

finance community. 

 Regular sector updates. 

 Ad-hoc telephone calls and queries. 

 Technical briefings and updates. 

 Regular contact to discuss strategy and other important areas. 

 A review of accounting policies for appropriateness and consistency. 

 Annual technical updates for members of the Council's finance team. 

 

 

Guidance note 

'Fees for other services' is to be 

used where we need to 

communicate agreed fees in 

advance of the audit.  At the 

time of preparation of the Audit 

Plan it is unlikely that full 

information as to all fees 

charged by GTI network firms 

will be available. Disclosure of 

these fees, threats to 

independence and safeguards 

will therefore be included in the 

Audit Findings report. 

 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Fees for other services 

 

Fees for other services are detailed on the following page, reflect those agreed at the 

time of issuing our Audit Plan. Any changes will be reported in our Audit Findings 

Report and Annual Audit Letter. 

P
age 50



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2016/17 
 

DRAFT 
Independence and non-audit services 

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK and Ireland) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of matters relating to our independence. In this context, we disclose the following 

to you: 

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have 

complied with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards and we confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 

statements. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards. 

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to Gloucestershire Pension Fund. No audit related and non-

audit services were identified for the Fund for 2016/17. 

 

Guidance note 

'Fees for other services' is to be 

used where we need to 

communicate agreed fees in 

advance of the audit. At the time 

of preparation of the Audit Plan 

it is unlikely that full information 

as to all fees charged by GTI 

network firms will be available. 

Disclosure of these fees, threats 

to independence and 

safeguards will therefore be 

included in the Audit Findings 

report. 

 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

group’s. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Independence and 

non-audit services 

P
age 51



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Communication of  audit matters with those charged with governance 

Our communication plan 

Audit 

Plan 

Audit 

Findings 

Report 

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those 

charged with governance 

 

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 

and expected general content of communications 

 

Views about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 

financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising 

during the audit and written representations that have been sought 

 

Confirmation of independence and objectivity   

A statement that we have complied with  relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence,  relationships and other 

matters which might  be thought to bear on independence.  

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 

network firms, together with  fees charged.   

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence 

 

 

 

Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit  

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or 

others which results in material misstatement of the financial 

statements 

 

Non compliance with laws and regulations  

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter  

Uncorrected misstatements  

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties  

Significant matters in relation to going concern   

International Standard on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISA) 260, as well as other ISAs (UK 

and Ireland) prescribe matters which we are required to communicate with those 

charged with governance, and which we set out in the table opposite.   

This document, The Audit Plan, outlines our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, 

while The Audit Findings will be issued prior to approval of the financial statements  and 

will present key issues and other matters arising from the audit, together with an 

explanation as to how these have been resolved. 

We will communicate any adverse or unexpected findings affecting the audit on a timely 

basis, either informally or via a report to the Council. 

Respective responsibilities 

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with ISAs (UK and 

Ireland), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the financial 

statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged 

with governance. 

This plan has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of 

Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 

(http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/) 

We have been appointed as the Fund's independent external auditors by the Audit 

Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public bodies 

in England at the time of our appointment. As external auditors, we have a broad remit 

covering finance and governance matters.  

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice ('the 

Code') issued by the NAO and includes nationally prescribed and locally determined 

work (https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/). Our work considers the 

CCG's key risks when reaching our conclusions under the Code.  

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with 

governance of their responsibilities. 

It is the responsibility of the Fund to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for the 

conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted 

for.  We have considered how the Fund is fulfilling these responsibilities. 

16 

P
age 52

http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/


©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

DRAFT 
Appendix 1: Action plan 

Priority 
High - Significant effect on control system 
Medium - Effect on control system 
Low - Best practice 

Rec 

No. Issue and recommendation Priority Management response 

Implementation date & 

responsibility 

1 One instance of a misclassification error 

was found during our testing of journal 

entries. The net effect of investment sales 

was included whereas individual gains and 

losses should be recorded separately. In 

this case the value was trivial and 

additional testing was performed around 

this area and we did not identify any further 

issues.  

We recommend that the gross effect of all 

future disposals is included with the Fund's 

financial statements. 

Low Agreed. Management will correct the journal entry by 

year end and will disclose the effect of future disposals 

in full. 

30 June 2017 

 

Pensions Finance Manager 

17 

P
age 53



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.  

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership.  

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide 
services to clients.  

grant-thornton.co.uk 

18 

P
age 54



Gloucestershire County Council 

Audit and Governance Committee  

Progress Report and Update  

Year ended 31 March 2017 
April 2017 

Elizabeth Cave 

Director 

E  liz.a.cave@uk.gt.com 

David Bray  

Senior Manager 

E david.bray@uk.gt.com 

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 5



Audit and Governance Committee Progress Report and Update      April 2017  

2 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be 

reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may 

be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may 

affect your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your 

benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 

responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content 

of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose. 

P
age 56



Audit and Governance Committee Progress Report and Update      April 2017  

3 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Introduction 

Members of the Audit and Governance Committee can find further useful material on our website www.grant-thornton.co.uk, 

where we have a section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications: 

• CFO Insights – reviewing council's 2015/16 spend (December 2016); http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/cfo-

insights-reviewing-councils-201516-spend/ 

• Fraud risk, 'adequate procedures', and local authorities (December 2016); 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/fraud-risk-adequate-procedures-and-local-authorities/ 

• New laws to prevent fraud may affect the public sector (November 2016); 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/new-laws-to-prevent-fraud-may-affect-the-public-sector/ 

• Brexit: local government – transitioning successfully (December 2016) 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-local-government--transitioning-successfully/ 

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to receive 

regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement 

Manager. 

This paper provides the Audit and Governance 

Committee with a report on progress in delivering our 

responsibilities as your external auditors.  

P
age 57

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/


Audit and Governance Committee Progress Report and Update      April 2017  

4 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Progress at March 2017 

2016/17 work Planned Date Complete? Comments 

Fee Letter  
We are required to issue a 'Planned fee letter for 2016/17' by the 

end of April 2016 

April 2016 

 

 

Yes 

 

Already presented to Committee 

Accounts Audit Plan 
We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the 

Council setting out our proposed approach in order to give an 

opinion on the Council's 2016-17 financial statements. 

March 2017 Yes 

 

The audit plan for Gloucestershire County Council will be presented to 

the Audit and Governance Committee in April 2017. 

As that Committee is 'Those Charged with Governance' for the 

Gloucestershire Pension Fund, we will present our audit plan for the 

pension fund to the same meeting. 

Interim accounts audit  
Our interim fieldwork visit plan included: 

• updated review of the Council's control environment 

• updated understanding of financial systems 

• review of Internal Audit reports on core financial systems 

• early work on emerging accounting issues 

• early substantive testing 

• Value for Money conclusion risk assessment. 

January-March 

2017 

 

Yes The results of our interim audit are contained in our plan.  

P
age 58



Audit and Governance Committee Progress Report and Update      April 2017  

5 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Progress at March 2017 

2016/17 work Planned Date Complete? Comments 

Final accounts audit 
Including: 

• audit of the 2016/17 financial statements 

• proposed opinion on the Council's accounts 

• proposed Value for Money conclusion 

• review of the Council's disclosures in the consolidated accounts 

against the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 

the United Kingdom 2015/16   

June-July 2017 Not started We will report our findings to the Audit and Governance Committee on 

28 July 2017. 

Value for Money (VfM) conclusion 
The scope of our work is unchanged to 2015/16 and is set out in the 
final guidance issued by the National Audit Office in November 
2015. The Code requires auditors to satisfy themselves that; "the 
Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources". 

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as; "in all significant 
respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it 
took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to 
achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local 
people". 

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a 
conclusion overall are: 

• Informed decision making 

• Sustainable resource deployment 

• Working with partners and other third parties 

February-July 

2017 

In progress We currently consider the indicative residual significant risks to the 
value for money conclusion are: 
 
-future financial sustainability 
-children's social care 
-adults social care 
 
As noted in our audit plan, we will be mindful of the conclusions in 
Ofsted's forthcoming report. 

Other activities 
 

Your officers attended one of the local events we held covering the 
production of the Council's financial statements for the year ended 31 
March 2017. 

P
age 59



Technical Matters 

P
age 60



Audit and Governance Committee Progress Report and Update      April 2017  

7 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Highways network asset accounting update 

On 14 November CIPFA/LASAAC announced a deferral of  the move to measuring the Highways Network Asset ('HNA') at depreciated 

replacement cost in local authority financial statements for 2016/17. This was due to delays in obtaining updated central rates information 

that was required for the valuations.  

 

CIPFA/LASAAC reviewed this position at its meeting in March 2017 and issued the following statement which effectively put an end to 

the proposals: 

 

At its meeting on March 8th, the CIPFA/LASAAC Code Board decided not to proceed with the introduction of  the Highways Network Asset Code into the 

financial reporting requirements for local authorities. The Board decided that, currently and in particular in the absence of  central support for key elements of  the 

valuation, the benefits are outweighed by the costs of  implementation for local authorities. The Board determined that it will give further consideration to this issue 

only if  provided with clear evidence that benefits outweigh costs for local authorities. 

 

The Board recognises the work undertaken by accounts preparers, auditors and highways engineers in preparing for the planned changes and would encourage 

continued improvement of  the management of  the highways network asset through better inventory and cost information. 

 

 

  

P
age 61



Audit and Governance Committee Progress Report and Update      April 2017  

8 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Telling the story – Changes in 2016/17 CIPFA Code 

CIPFA has been working on the 'Telling the Story' project, which aims to streamline the financial statements and improve accessibility to 

the user. This has resulted in changes to CIPFA's 2016/17 Code of  Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom ('the 

Code'). 

 

The main changes affect the presentation of  the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement ('CIES'), the Movement in Reserves 

Statement ('MIRS') and segmental reporting disclosures. A new Expenditure and Funding Analysis has been introduced. 

 

The key changes are: 

• the cost of  services in the CIES is to be reported on basis of  the local authority's organisational structure rather than the Service 

Reporting Code of  Practice (SERCOP) headings 

• an 'Expenditure & Funding Analysis' note to the financial statements provides a reconciliation between the way local authorities are 

funded and the accounting measures of  financial performance in the CIES 

• the changes will remove some of  the complexities of  the current segmental note 

• other changes to streamline the current MIRS providing options to report Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (previously 

shown as Surplus and Deficit on the Provision of  Services and Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure lines) and removal of  

earmarked reserves columns. 

 

Other amendments have been made to the Code: 

• changes to reporting by pension funds in relation to the format and fair value disclosure requirements to reflect changes to the 

Pensions SORP 

• other amendments and clarifications to reflect changes in the accounting standards. 

 

 

 

P
age 62



Audit and Governance Committee Progress Report and Update      April 2017  

9 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Delivering Good Governance 

In April, CIPFA and SOLACE published 'Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016)' and this applies to 

annual governance statements prepared for the 2016/17 financial year. 

 

The key focus of  the framework is on sustainability – economic, social and environmental – and the need to focus on the longer term and 

the impact actions may have on future generations. 

 

Local authorities should be: 

• reviewing existing governance arrangements against the principles set out in the Framework 

• developing and maintaining an up-to-date local code of  governance, including arrangements for ensuring on-going effectiveness  

• reporting publicly on compliance with their own code on an annual basis and on how they have monitored the effectiveness of  their 

governance arrangements in the year and on planned changes.  

 

The framework applies to all parts of  local government and its partnerships and should be applied using the spirit and ethos of  the 

Framework rather than just rules and procedures. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 63



 Sector issues and developments 

P
age 64



Audit and Governance Committee Progress Report and Update      April 2017  

11 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Local Government Finance Settlement 
The final local government settlement for 2017/18 was 

published on 20 February. The settlement reflects the 

Government's aim that all councils will become self funding, 

with central government grants being phased out. This is year 

two of the four year offer, which has been accepted by 97% 

of councils.  

There is an expectation that councils will continue to improve 

efficiencies  with measures including further developments in 

digital technology, new delivery models and innovative 

partnership arrangements. 

100% business rates retention 

The announcement has an increased focus on business rates, 

with the expectation that by the end of the current 

Parliament, local government will keep 100% of the income 

raised through business rates.  The exact details of the 

reforms are yet to be determined.  This includes confirming 

which additional responsibilities will be devolved to local 

government and funded through these retained rates. Pilots 

of the reforms are taking place across the country from April 

2017. 

The results of a recent Municipal  Journal survey  2017 State of 
Local Government Finance have recently been published. 

http://downloads2.dodsmonitoring.com/downloads/Misc_Fil

es/LocalGovFinance.pdf 

Respondents expressed concern about the lack of detail in the 

proposals, uncertainty around equalisation measures and the 

scale of appeals.   

Nearly 50% of Councils responding believe they will lose from 

the transition to 100% retention of business rates.  Views were 

evenly split as to whether the proposals would incentivise local 

economic growth. 

Social Care Funding  

Funding allocations reflect increased funding of social care with a 

stated £3.5 billion of funding for social care by 2019/2020. 

In this year's settlement £240 million of new homes bonus has 

been redirected into  the adult social care grant.  In addition 

councils are once again be able to raise the precept by up to 3% 

for funding of social care. 

Recognising that funding is not the only answer, further reforms 

are to be brought forward to support the provision of a 

sustainable market for social care.  There is an expectation that all 

areas of the country move towards the integration of health and 

social care services by 2020. 

Paul Dossett Head of Local Government for Grant Thornton 

LLP  has commented on the Government proposals for social 

care funding (see link for full article). 

"The government’s changes to council tax and the social care precept, 

announced by the Secretary of State for DCLG as part of the latest local 

government finance settlement, will seem to many as nothing more than a 

temporary fix. There is real concern about the postcode lottery nature of these 

tax-raising powers that are intended to fund our ailing social care system."    

“Our  analysis on social care shows that the most deprived areas in the UK 

derive the lowest proportion of their income from council tax. "  

“Conversely, more affluent areas collecting more council tax will potentially 

receive a bigger financial benefit from these measures.”  

"Our analysis  shows that the impact and effectiveness of the existing social 

care precept is not equal across authorities. So any further changes to tax 

raising powers for local government will  not tackle the crisis of social care in 

our most disadvantaged communities and arguably make only make a small 

dent in the cost demands in our more affluent communities." 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
"Social care precept changes 

will not help those living in 

more deprived areas"  

 

"The UK has a long tradition of 

providing care to those who 

need it most. If that is to 

continue, the government must 

invest in a robust social care 

system that can cater for all 

based on needs and not on 

geography. From a taxpayer’s 

perspective this is a zero sum 

game. For every £1 not 

invested in social care, the cost 

to the NHS is considerably 

more" 

National developments 

Links:  

https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-

government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018 

 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-

government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-

precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-

deprived-areas/ 

 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-

alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/ 

 

 

 

P
age 65

http://downloads2.dodsmonitoring.com/downloads/Misc_Files/LocalGovFinance.pdf
http://downloads2.dodsmonitoring.com/downloads/Misc_Files/LocalGovFinance.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/


Audit and Governance Committee Progress Report and Update      April 2017  

12 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Pooling of  LGPS  
 From 1 April 2018 £200bn of assets from 90 LGPS 

funds across England and Wales will be merged into 

six ‘British Wealth Funds’.  By pooling investment, 

costs can be reduced through economies of scale and 

through sharing of expertise, while the schemes can 

maintain overall investment performance. Pension funds 

will continue to be managed and maintained by the 

separate administering authorities. The selection of fund 

managers will be made by the investment pool operator 

on behalf of a pool of co-operating administrative 

authorities, while individual investment strategies, 

including asset allocation, will remain the responsibility of 

the individual administrative authority.   

Potentially eight pools are to be established across the 

country with total assets ranging from £13bn to £36bn.   

It is expected that assets will be transferred to the pools 

as soon as practicable after 1 April 2018.   

 Tasks to be completed by April 2018 include: 

• creating legal structures for pools 

• transferring staff 

• creating supervisory boards/ committees 

• obtaining FCA authorisations 

• appointing providers 

• assessing Markets in Financial Instruments Directive 

(MiFID II) implications 

• determining pool structures for each asset type  

 

The funds themselves will retain responsibility  for: 

• investment strategy 

• asset allocation 

 

 

 

 

• having a responsible investment strategy 

• reporting to employers and members 

Governance arrangements  

There is  no mandatory membership of oversight 

structures. It is for  each pool to develop the proposals 

they consider appropriate. The majority of decision 

making remains at the local level and therefore the 

involvement of local pension boards in those areas would 

not change. Scheme managers should consider how best 

to involve their pension boards in ensuring the effective 

implementation of investment and responsible investment 

strategies by pools, which could include representation on 

oversight structures. 

CIPFA in the recent article  Clear pools: the future of the 

LGPS   highlights the need for good governance  

particularly  in view of  the  complex web of stakeholders 

involved in  investment pooling,.  Robust governance will 

be vital to ensuring a smooth transition and continuing 

operation of the funds  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

National developments 

Link: 

http://www.cipfa.org/cipfa-

thinks/cipfa-thinks-

articles/clear-pools-the-future-

of-the-lgps? 

typical structure of 

LGPS Pool 

P
age 66

https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/ZpXABIg4kMcx?domain=email.cipfa.org.uk
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/ZpXABIg4kMcx?domain=email.cipfa.org.uk
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/ZpXABIg4kMcx?domain=email.cipfa.org.uk


Audit and Governance Committee Progress Report and Update      April 2017  

13 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Local Government Association  
Below is a selection of reports issued recently which may be of interest to Audit and Governance Committee members. Thee are available on the 

website:    

A councillor's workbook on neighbourhood and community 

engagement 

11 January 2017 

Neighbourhood and community engagement has a rightful place as one of the key 

processes involved in planning and decision making. As such, it should not be 

viewed d as an additional task, but as a core part of the business   

http://www.local.gov.uk/publications 

The Local Government Association (LGA) Housing Commission was established to 

help councils deliver their ambition for places. It has been supported by a panel of 

advisers and has engaged with over 100 partners; hearing from councils, 

developers, charities, health partners, and many others. All partners agree that 

there is no silver bullet, and all emphasise the pivotal role of councils in helping 

provide strong leadership, collaborative working, and longer-term certainty for 

places and the people that live there.   

22 December 2016 

Building our homes, communities and future: The LGA 

housing commission final report 

Provisional LG Finance Settlement for 2017/18 
 

12 January 2017 

The LGA has published its responses to the DCLG  consultation on proposals for the local government 

finance settlement for 2017 to 2018 and for the approach to future local government finance settlements.  

 
http://www.local.gov.uk/documents/10180/8150261/Local+Government+Finance+Settlement+1718+LG

A+response.pdf/dd8d32e1-ec9f-4314-8121-7aae2195f89f P
age 67



Audit and Governance Committee Progress Report and Update      April 2017  

14 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Local Government Association  
Below is a selection of reports issued recently which may be of interest to Audit and Governance Committee members. Thee are available on the 

LGA website:    

Stronger together: shared management in local government 

29 November 2016 

Around 45 councils across England share a chief executive and senior 

management team in about 20 different partnerships. Most also share at least 

some services. These councils have already delivered savings of at least £60 

million through greater efficiencies and the other benefits of collaboration, with 

more savings planned 

http://www.local.gov.uk/publications 

Adult social care funding: 2016 state of the nation report 

 
2 November 2016 

Adult social care is an absolutely vital public service that supports some of our most 

vulnerable people and promotes the wellbeing and independence of many more 

Business Plan December 2016/November 2017 

 
30 December 2016 

Britain's exit from the EU means that we are reshaping the way our country is run. 

Our vision is one of a rejuvenated local democracy, where power from Westminster 

and from the EU is significantly devolved to local level and citizens feel they have a 

meaningful vote and real reason to participate in civic life and their communities. P
age 68



Audit and Governance Committee Progress Report and Update      April 2017  

15 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Public finances in practice 
 

Public finances are under strain in many European countries and this has an impact 

on the ability of Governments to deliver shared goals of stable and sustainable 

growth.   

The Institute Of Chartered Accountants In England and Wales (ICAEW) has 

recently published a report 'public finances in practice'  which captures the insights of 

senior finance professionals in ten different EU states.   

Although the report is focussed on national governments, the findings are relevant 

for any public sector organisation.  

The report recognises that better public financial management is a key enabler of a 

sustainable economic future. It notes that the improvement of public financial 

management cannot be achieved through improved standards alone and that 

organisations need to take some action themselves across three broad themes:  

Structure 

• There is a need to clearly define roles and responsibilities within finance teams. 

This enables the setting and review of objectives, reduces inefficiencies and 

improves accountability. 

• Clarity of roles also helps to create a strong culture of responsibility and 

ownership, which helps to foster a wider organisational culture of good financial 

management. 

• Effective financial management requires effective scrutiny, via robust internal 

control systems and independent external audit.  

• To maintain effective scrutiny, proper questioning of the annual budget and 

review of performance against budget should occur. 

 

 

 

• Transparency can be improved by providing the right sort of data in an 

understandable way, organisations should explore innovative ways to present 

information in a more intelligible way to improve transparency. 

Processes and Systems 

• Access to high quality financial information is key. Data should be timely, well 

controlled and IT systems should be utilised to gather it effectively. 

• Data should be used in a way that it can show the real-time financial position of 

the organisation. 

• Such information should be used to its full potential, and gathered so it can be 

presented in a user-friendly way. The way information is presented is more 

important than the quantity of data. 

People 

• Recruitment and retention of high quality finance professionals is a key 

challenge. Organisations should consider altering recruitment                                     

processes, offering flexible working arrangements and                            

providing clear direction on career progression to assist                           with 

this challenge. 

• Whilst senior individuals often have the necessary skills,                         below 

this level skills and qualifications can vary quite considerably.  

• There is also a need to encourage finance professionals to                                                    

think more broadly, to enable them to consider the                               bigger 

picture of how finance fits within service delivery                                                            

and safeguarding of the financial position. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ICAEW publications 

P
age 69



 Grant Thornton 

P
age 70



Audit and Governance Committee Progress Report and Update      April 2017  

17 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Apprentice Levy-Are you prepared? 
What is the levy? 

The UK has been struggling on productivity, now 

estimated to be 20% behind the G7 average. Developing 

apprenticeships is set to play a key part in tackling this and 

bridging the skills gap. 

Announced by government in July 2015, the levy is to 

encourage employers to offer apprenticeships in meeting 

their skill, workforce and training needs, developing talent 

internally.  The levy is designed to give more control to 

employers, through direct access to training funds and 

creation of apprenticeships through the Trailblazer 

process. 

What is the levy? 

From April 2017, the way the government funds 

apprenticeships in England is changing. Some employers 

will be required to pay a new apprenticeship levy, and 

there will be changes to the funding for apprenticeship 

training for all employers. 

All employers will receive an allowance of £15,000 to 

offset against payment of the levy. This effectively means 

that the levy will only be payable on paybills in excess of 

£3 million per year. 

The levy will be payable through Pay As You Earn 

(PAYE) and will be payable alongside income tax and 

National Insurance. 

Each employer will receive one allowance to offset against 

their levy payment. There will be a connected persons rule 

so employers who operate multiple payrolls will only be 

able to claim one allowance. 

Employers in England are also able to get 'more out than they put 

in', through an additional government top-up of 10% to their levy 

contribution.  

When employers want to spend above their total levy amount, 

government will fund 90% of the cost for training and assessment 

within the funding bands. 

The existing funding model will continue until the levy comes into 

effect May 2017. The levy will apply to employers across all sectors. 

Paybill will be calculated based on total employee earnings subject 

to Class1 National Insurance Contributions. It will not include 

other payments such as benefits in kind. It will apply to total 

employee earnings in respect of all employees. 

What will the levy mean in practice  

Employer of 250 employees, each with a gross salary of £20,000: 

Paybill: 250 x £20,000 = £5,000,000 

Levy sum: 0.5% x   = £25,000 

Allowance: £25,000 - £15,000 = £10,000 annual levy  

How can I spend my levy funds? 

The funding can only be used to fund training and assessment 

under approved apprenticeship schemes. It cannot be used on 

other costs associated with apprentices, including wages and 

remuneration, or training spend for the wider-team. 

Through the Digital Apprenticeship Service (DAS), set  up by 

government, employers will have access to their funding in the 

form of digital vouchers to spend on training.  

Training can be designed to suit the needs of your organisation and 

the requirements of the individual in that role, in addition to 

specified training for that apprenticeship. Training providers must 

all be registered with the Skills Funding Agency (SFA). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

What do I need to start 

thinking about now? 

• How much is the levy going 

to cost and have we 

budgeted for it? 

• How do we ensure 

compliance with the new 

system? 

• Which parts of my current 

spend on training are 

applicable to 

apprenticeships? 

• Are there opportunities to 

mitigate additional cost 

presented by the levy? 

• How is training in my 

organisation structured? 

• How do we develop and 

align to our workforce 

development strategy 

Grant Thornton update 

P
age 71



Audit and Governance Committee Progress Report and Update      April 2017  

18 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Boards of  the future 
 

Background 
Boards of the future: steering organisations to thrive is a report from Grant Thornton 

International that draws on our International Business Report for 2016 plus data 

and interviews from Grant Thornton teams around the world. 

The report recognises that successful organisations in any sector are the ones that 

manage challenges and adapt to the changing world around them. It notes that over 

half of the top hundred biggest companies in the world in 1912 had disappeared by 

the late 1990s.  

How do organisations ensure they survive, adapt and ultimately thrive? 

Fundamental to the answer is good corporate governance. And although this is 

nothing new, it is arguably more pertinent now than ever. 

The report found: 

• The best organisations keep their eyes on the challenges and opportunities 

coming into view, adapting to the changing world to remain relevant. They 

anticipate potential hazards and react accordingly. 

• The demands of boards are changing, boards can take a lead in being proactive 

and nimble in navigating organisations through uncertain waters. 

• Nearly half of the International Business Report (IBR) business leaders surveyed 

believe that developing and reinforcing culture should be a focus for boards 

over the next ten years. 

 

 

 

What will the successful board of  2025 look 

like? 
This is an intriguing question which will inevitably vary across sectors and 

geographic areas. Although governance structures differ across organisations, the 

demands of senior leaders and decision makers are surprisingly similar. 

In regions where there is a more developed assurance and governance approach the 

focus is likely to be on boosting competitiveness and managing risks. From a public 

sector perspective, competitiveness means delivering relevant, user-focused services – 

often working alongside others – that are economic, efficient and effective.  

Potential development areas across all sectors are: 

  

• strategic planning horizons – taking a longer term view and avoiding 'knee-jerk' 

reactions; 

• sustainability – from an economic and natural resources perspective;  

• corporate culture – ensuring customer experience matches the organisation's 

aspirations;  and  

• digital expertise – embracing technology, reacting to                                          

change and innovating to improve service delivery. 

 

To achieve these, the report suggests that the key                                        strands of 

focus areas are 'diversity' and 'digital'. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Grant Thornton publications 

P
age 72



Audit and Governance Committee Progress Report and Update      April 2017  

19 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Boards of  the future 
 

Diversity 
The report recognises: 

• Greater diversity on a board widens its peripheral vision, allowing threats and 

opportunities to be spotted earlier. 

• There is a need for diversity of experience on boards, which is critical to ensure 

a spread of ideas. 

• Board diversity should be aligned with service users and reflect organisational 

culture. 

How can boards ensure appropriate diversity? 

• Identify skill gaps and widen the pool of talent and experiences to ensure these 

are filled. 

• Recognise that some challenges and opportunities of the future will be less 

visible, particularly to homogenous boards. 

• Invest in mentoring schemes. 

• Recognise that to ensure the best talent is identified and nurtured, the net needs 

to be cast as widely as possible. 

 

 

 

 

 

Digital 
There is universal acknowledgement that digital expertise is required for boards. But 

those with the relevant board credentials have often not grown up with the 

technology or are not alert to the rapid changes and developments. 

Big data, advanced analytics and automation can support organisations to develop. 

It is essential for all board members to embrace the digital agenda and, using 

relevant expertise where necessary, to spot the challenges and opportunities of the 

future. 

How can boards enhance digital capacity? 

• Collaborate with digital experts to understand digital innovations and how they 

can be harnessed. 

• As well as boosting digital expertise on the board, make the most of external 

advice. 

• Assess the ways your organisation is using data to drive strategies; could it be 

doing more? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Grant Thornton publications 

P
age 73



P
age 74



Auditing Standards – Communication with the 
Audit Committee

Gloucestershire County Council & Gloucestershire Pension Fund
Audit year ending 31 March 2017

Last updated 31 March 2017 

Page 75

Agenda Item 6



Introduction 1
Fraud Risk Assessment 2
Law and Regulation 8
Going Concern 10
Related Parties 13
Accounting Estimates 15

Appendices

Appendix 1 Accounting Estimates 17

Contents

Page 76



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 1

The purpose of this report is to ensure there is effective two-way communication 
between the Council's Audit Committee, who are 'those charged with governance' 
and the external auditor.

As your external auditors for both the Council and the Pension Fund we have a 
responsibility under professional auditing standards to ensure there is effective 
communication with the Audit Committee. This means developing a good working 
relationship with Committee members, while maintaining our independence and 
objectivity. If this relationship works well it helps us obtain information relevant to 
our audit and helps Audit Committee members to fulfil their financial reporting 
responsibilities. The overall outcome is to reduce the risk of material misstatement.

In planning and performing our audit of the Council's and the Pension Fund's 
financial statements we need to understand how the Audit Committee, supported by 
the Council's management, meets its responsibilities in the following areas.

 Fraud
 Law and regulation
 Going Concern
 Related parties
 Accounting for estimates

This report summarises the Audit Committee, management's and the external 
auditor's responsibilities in each of these areas, as explained in the International 
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISAs).  Our primary responsibility is to 
consider the risk of material misstatement.

Each section of the report includes a series of questions that management have 
responded to. Responses cover arrangements for both the Council and Pension 
Fund. 

We would like to ask the Audit Committee to consider these responses and confirm 
that it is satisfied with the arrangements in place.

Introduction

Page 77



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 2

The ISAs define fraud as:

"An intentional act by one or more individuals among management, those charged 
with governance, employees, or third parties, involving the use of deception to 
obtain an unjust or illegal advantage."

[ISA (UK&I) 240, paragraph 11]

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud is with the Audit Committee 
and the Council's management. To do this:

 officers need to ensure there is a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and 
deterrence, with a commitment to honest and ethical behaviour; and

 the Audit Committee oversight needs to include the consideration of the 
potential for the override of controls and inappropriate influence over the 
financial reporting process.

As your auditors our overall responsibility is for obtaining reasonable assurance that 
the Council's financial statements are free from material misstatement due to either 
fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the 
audit, which means considering the potential for the intentional manipulation of the 
financial statements.

We are also required to carry out a fraud risk assessment to inform our audit 
approach.  This includes considering the following:

 how management assesses the risk of material misstatement in the financial 
statements due to fraud

 officers' response to assessed fraud risk, including any identified specific risks
 investigations into data matches identified through the National Fraud Initiative 

and subsequent outcomes
 how officers communicate the processes for assessing and responding to fraud 

risk to the Audit Committee
 how officers communicate its views on ethical behaviour to the Audit Committee
 how the Audit Committee exercises oversight of officers' fraud risk assessment 

and response processes and the internal controls to mitigate these risks
 what knowledge the Audit Committee has of actual, alleged or suspected fraud.

Table 1 below sets out how officers have responded to our fraud risk assessment.

.

Fraud Risk Assessment

Page 78



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 3

Table 1: Fraud Risk Assessment

Question Management response

1. What is management’s assessment of the risk of 
material misstatement in both the Council's and 
Pension Fund financial statements due to fraud?

-Is this consistent with the feedback from your risk 
management processes?

Low residual risk due to current controls 
and likelihood assessment considering 
past history and Internal Audit (IA) 
reports.

The Council’s financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with CIPFA’s 
Code of Practice and any divergence 
from the Code is clearly identified within 
the accounts.

Changes in government funding and 
business rates scheme will continue to 
be reflected in the statements.

Yes

Corporate Risk Management Policy 
Statement and Strategy and associated 
toolkits and guidance clearly states 
financial and fraud risks are key 
categories of risk to be considered when 
delivering outcomes.

The quarterly corporate performance 
reports to Cabinet bring together 
monitoring information on performance, 
finance and risk for the authority.

Director of Finance owns three strategic 
financial risks on the Council’s Strategic 
Risk register which are monitored and 
reported on quarterly.

The Pension Fund risk register is 
regularly reviewed by the Pension 
Committee and local Pension Board.

2. Are you aware of any instances of fraud, either 
within the Council as a whole or within specific 
departments since 1 April 2016?

Yes, these are reported to the Head of 
Paid Service, Chief Financial Officer 
and Monitoring Officer on a monthly 
basis.

In addition all are reported within the 
internal audit monitoring reports to the 
Audit and Governance Committee which 
are available on the GCC website.

Page 79



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 4

Question Management response

3. Do you suspect fraud may be occurring, either 
within the Council or within specific departments?
- Have you identified any specific fraud risks?

- Do you have any concerns there are areas that 
are at risk of fraud?

- Are there particular locations within the Council 
where fraud is more likely to occur?

14 referrals to IA within 2016/17 plus 
counter fraud/MTC2 work in respect of 
staff expenses and Children’s direct 
payments. All referrals were reviewed 
and or investigated.

Regular updates on fraud/irregularities 
provided to Head of Paid Service, Chief 
Financial Officer and Monitoring Officer.

Quarterly update reports highlighting 
key outcomes to Audit and Governance 
Committee.

Fraud Risk assessment – Inherent risks 
include payroll, procurement, treasury 
management, pension payments, 
access to cash and third party 
payments. Emerging risks identified 
within Direct Payments. This area has 
been reviewed by Adults, Children, and 
IA; and will continue to be part of the 
Internal Audit plan within 2017/18.

Financial risk mitigated via good internal 
financial controls/ annual internal audit 
review of key financial systems.

Insurance – Fidelity Guarantee policy 
which provides fraud cover for all GCC 
employees plus additional cover for 
those employees deemed to be a high 
risk to the council from a financial 
perspective.

4. Are you satisfied that the overall control 
environment, including:

-  the process for reviewing the system of internal 
control;  

- internal controls, including segregation of 
duties; exist and work effectively?

- If not where are the risk areas?
- What other controls are in place to help 

prevent, deter or detect fraud?

Yes the 2016/17 Chief Internal Auditors 
annual Opinion on the internal control 
environment is satisfactory. 

Please refer to the Annual Governance 
Statement, the revised Local Code of 
Corporate Governance (which includes 
a self-assessment against the 7 key 
principles of good governance) plus the 
enhanced assurance gathering 
framework/process, Annual Report on 
IA activity and the Annual Report on 
Risk Management Activity. This includes 
assurances on good governance from 
Service Heads as well as Directors, 
Lead Cabinet Member review and Head 
of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and 
Chief Financial Officer oversight and 

Page 80



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 6

Question Management response

challenge.

Annual Report on IA activity and the 
Annual Report on Risk Management 
Activity.

Effective External and Internal Audit. 

The Council revised its Anti Fraud and 
Corruption Policy Statement and 
Strategy, Anti Bribery and Anti Money 
Laundering Policies during 2016/17 
which will be disseminated in 
accordance with an approved 
communications plan. This will be 
further reviewed in 2019/20.

Fraud risk assessment undertaken by 
Internal Audit (IA) to direct IA resources 
as part of the risk based internal audit 
planning.

Fraud risk is one of the key categories 
of risk within the Council’s risk 
management framework.

Member of National Anti Fraud Network 
(NAFN).

Member of peer groups such as Midland 
Counties Chief Auditors Fraud Group 
and County Chief Internal Auditors 
Group to share good practice etc.

Participants in the National Fraud 
initiative (NFI).

Dedicated Counter Fraud specialists 
within Internal Audit (professionally 
qualified).

Joint working with NHS Counter Fraud 
Service for joint funding cases.

Membership of Gloucestershire’s Fraud 
Hub.

Staff fraud awareness briefings to be 
enhanced during 17/18 following 
approval of revised Fraud policies.

Page 81



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 7

Question Management response

5. How do you communicate to employees about 
your views on business practices and ethical 
behaviour?
- How do you encourage staff to report their 

concerns about fraud?
- What concerns are staff expected to report 

about fraud?

The Employee Code of Conduct was 
reviewed by the Monitoring Officer 
during 2016/17. Internal Audit and other 
key stakeholders were given the 
opportunity to make suggestions for 
amendment at the same time. 

Sections of the code of conduct have 
been highlighted to staff by a global 
email with a link to an article within the 
bi-monthly produced newsletter ”Talk 
Smart”. 

In addition, the assurance gathering 
process requests management 
assurances that staff are aware of the 
required ethical conduct behaviours.

All potential concerns re 
fraud/irregularities are required to be 
notified under the Council’s confidential 
reporting procedure ‘Whistleblowing’

The Head of Paid Service, Monitoring 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer is 
made aware and fully briefed on all such 
activity.

6. From a fraud and corruption perspective, what are 
considered to be high-risk posts?
- How are the risks relating to these posts 

identified, assessed and managed?

Finance and ICT staff generally fill the 
high risk posts, especially those with 
certification responsibilities.  These are 
managed as part of general 
management arrangements.

Fidelity Guarantee Insurance Policy 
protects the council against employee 
fraud risks. The Insurer requires annual 
confirmation of the effectiveness of 
employee recruitment checks and 
financial systems and processes. Also, 
increased levels of cover are in place in 
respect of higher risk officers. This 
information is gained via the Insurance 
Services Framework.

7. Are you aware of any related party relationships or 
transactions within the Council's or Pension Fund 
accounts that could give rise to instances of 
fraud?
- How do you mitigate the risks associated with 

fraud related to related party relationships and 

No. Full disclosure of related party 
relationships is obtained annually from 
all members and senior officers as per 
the requirements of the relevant Codes 
of Conduct

Page 82



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 8

Question Management response

transactions?

All Contractors working with the Council 
are required to have appropriate levels 
of insurance cover to protect the Council 
from financial loss.

8. What arrangements are in place to report fraud 
issues to Audit Committee?

Quarterly Internal Audit reports provided 
to the Audit and Governance Committee 
which include outcomes relating to fraud 
/ irregularity.

Opinions on the effectiveness of risk 
management arrangements are 
provided by IA on each internal audit 
activity.

Annual report on Risk Management 
activity provided to the Audit and 
Governance Committee. Included within 
the annual report is the annual 
transparency report on fraudulent 
activity.

Corporate performance and risk reports 
provided to Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Committee.

Regular updates to the Head of Paid 
Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer on all such activity.

Assurance gathering process requests 
management assurances that risk 
(including fraud risk) is fully considered 
when delivering outcomes/objectives.

9. Have any reports been made under the Bribery 
Act

No

10. Are you aware of any significant transaction 
outside the normal course of business?

No

Page 83



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 9

Auditing standards (ISA 250) require us to consider the impact that law and 
regulation and litigation may have on the Council's financial statements.  The 
factors that may result in particular risks of material misstatement due to fraud or 
error are:

 the operational regulatory framework - this covers the legislation that governs 
the operations of the Council

 the financial reporting framework - according to the requirements of International 
Financial Reporting Standards, the Code of Accounting for Local Authorities in 
England and relevant Directions

 taxation considerations - for example compliance with Value Added Tax and 
Income Tax regulations

 government policies that otherwise impact on the Council's business
 other external factors
 litigation and claims against the Council.

Where we become aware of information about a possible instance of non-
compliance we need to gain an understanding of it to evaluate the possible effect 
on the financial statements.

The Auditing Standards (ISAs) also require us to make enquiries of management 
and the Audit Committee about the arrangements in place to comply with law and 
regulation. To help with this, management have responded to the following 
questions.

Table 2:  Law and Regulation

Question Management response

1. How does management gain assurance that all 
relevant laws and regulations have been 
complied with?

Internal Audit (RBIA) compliance with 
legislation reviews

Management assurance via the 
performance/risk management 
monitoring and reporting 
arrangements.

Assurances received for, and set out 
in, the AGS.

Regular attendance at technical 
updates from CIPFA and external 
auditors to ensure all changes to 
standards are noted and acted on.

Law and Regulation

Page 84



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 10

Question Management response

Reports from the Monitoring Officer 
where applicable.

Regular Statutory Officers i.e. 
CEO/MO and CFO meetings.

Legal support is available to all 
Council departments.

2. How is the Audit Committee provided with 
assurance that all relevant laws and regulations 
have been complied with?

Annual Governance Statement.

Internal and External Audit reports.

Risk Management reports.

Reports from the Monitoring Officer 
as applicable.

Audited Statement of Accounts

3. Have there been any instances of 
noncompliance with law and regulation since 1 
April 2016?

The Council does have negligence 
claims however the assurance 
gathering process specifically 
requests that management inform the 
Head of Paid Service, Chief Financial 
Officer and Monitoring Officer of any 
such incidents.

4. Is there any actual or potential litigation or 
claims that would affect the Council's or Pension 
Fund's financial statements?

The Council does have negligence 
claims, however, Insurance services 
commission an actuarial review of 
the council’s risk profile (as a 
minimum triennially). However, this 
may be carried out more frequently if 
the Councils risk profile alters 
significantly which in turn influences 
the level of funds required to pay 
claims.

The council’s insurance programme 
is based on the council’s risk profile 
and reviewed and updated 
accordingly with MARSH, our 
insurance brokers annually.

Page 85



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 11

Question Management response

6. Have any of the Council's service providers 
reported any items of fraud, non-compliance 
with laws and regulations or uncorrected 
misstatements which would affect the financial 
statements?

None that we are aware of.  
Quarterly Internal Audit reports 
provided to the Audit and 
Governance Committee which 
include outcomes relating to fraud / 
irregularity.

These would not affect the financial 
statements.

7. Have there been any examinations, 
investigations or inquiries by any licensing or 
authorising bodies or the

    tax and customs authorities?

None that we are aware of.

Page 86



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 12

Going concern is a fundamental principle in the preparation of financial statements.  
Under the going concern assumption, a council is viewed as continuing in operation 
for the foreseeable future with no necessity of liquidation or ceasing trading.  
Accordingly, a councils assets and liabilities are recorded on the basis that assets 
will be realised and liabilities discharged in the normal course of business.  A key 
consideration of going concern is that the Council has the cash resources and 
reserves to meet its obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable future.

The Auditing Standards (ISAs) also require us to make enquiries of management 
and the Audit Committee about the going concern assumption. To help with this, 
management have responded to the following questions.

Table 3 – Going concern
Question

Management response

1. How does management gain assurance that the 
entity is a going concern for the Council and the 
Pension Fund?

The Council’s MTFS covers 
the three years 2017/18 to 
2019/20.  An integral part of 
the Council’s MTFS and 
budget approval framework is 
to consider the Council’s 
financial strategy, financial 
assumptions, and financial 
risks.

The Strategic Finance 
Director’s advice is that the 
reserve levels are adequate, 
the financial standing of the 
Council is sound, and the 
2017/18 budget is robust and 
achievable.

Regular budget monitoring 
reports are reported to 
Cabinet and Scrutiny.

Detailed cashflow monitoring 
is undertaken within Finance. 
Aged debt reports are 
produced and circulated to 
appropriate staff for action.

An actuarial valuation of the 
Pension Fund including a 
review of employer 

Going concern

Page 87



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 13

Table 3 – Going concern
Question

Management response

contributions takes place 
every 3 years to ensure 
funding levels are 
appropriate.

2. Are the financial assumptions (e.g., future levels 
of income and expenditure) consistent with the 
Council's Business Plan and Pension Fund 
projections and the financial information 
provided to the Council throughout the year?
Are there any current adverse financial 
indicators including negative cash flow?

An integral part of the 
Council’s MTFS and budget 
approval framework is to 
consider the Council’s 
financial strategy, financial 
assumptions, and financial 
risks.

Robust budget monitoring and 
outturn forecasts are regularly 
undertaken throughout the 
year and reported to Cabinet 
and Scrutiny.

The MTFS and budget 
framework provides the 
Strategic Finance Director 
with the assurance that 
reserve levels are adequate; 
and the financial standing of 
the Council is sound, with a 
budget that is robust and 
achievable.  

Yes the Pension Fund’s 
Funding Strategy Statement 
is in line with the assumptions 
and projections used by the 
actuary.

There are no current adverse 
financial indicators

3. Are the implications of statutory or policy 
changes appropriately reflected in the Business 
Plans, financial forecasts and report on going 
concern for both the Council and Pension 
Fund?

Yes.  

Any changes to standards will 
be reflected in the MTFS 
and/or the regular financial 
reports to Cabinet and 
Scrutiny. 

Briefing documents would be 
produced for the Audit and 
Governance Committee if 
relevant.

Page 88



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 14

Table 3 – Going concern
Question

Management response

The LGPS scheme changes 
applicable from 2014 were 
reflected in the assumptions 
used by the actuary in the 
2016 Triennial Valuation of 
the Pension Fund

4. Does the Council have sufficient staff in post, 
with the appropriate skills and experience, 
particularly at senior manager level, to ensure 
the delivery of the Council’s and Pension Fund 
objectives?
If not, what action is being taken to obtain those 
skills?

The Council’s “new operating 
model” is well established and 
appropriate senior 
management arrangements 
ensure sufficient senior 
staffing resource, with 
appropriate skills, are 
targeted towards priority 
areas following staff turnover.  

The continuing evolution of 
finance function and structure 
reflects the changes in the 
way financial support is 
provided within GCC, with 
appropriately skilled staffing 
resources targeted towards 
business critical areas.

Staffing levels for the Pension 
Fund have been reviewed 
and have been increased to 
help meet the additional 
administrative requirements of 
the 2014 scheme. Staffing 
Levels will continue to be kept 
under review. The CIPFA 
Knowledge & Skill framework 
for the Pension Fund is used 
and the relevant staff are 
required to receive 
appropriate training. 

5. Have there been any significant issues raised 
with the Audit Committee during the year which 
could cast doubts on the assumptions made? 
(Examples include adverse comments raised by 
internal and external audit regarding financial 
performance or significant weaknesses in 
systems of financial control).

No

Page 89



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 15

For local government bodies, the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom (the Code) requires compliance with IAS 24: Related party 
disclosures. The Code identifies the following as related parties to local government 
bodies:

 entities that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or 
are controlled by the Council (i.e. subsidiaries)

 associates and joint ventures
 an entity that has an interest in the Council that gives it significant influence over 

the Council
 key officers, and close members of the family of key officers
 post-employment benefit plan (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the 

Council, or of any entity that is a related party of the Council.

The Code notes that, in considering materiality, regard should be had to the 
definition of materiality, which requires materiality to be judged from the viewpoint of 
both the Council and the related party.

Accounting standards (ISA 550) requires us to review your procedures for 
identifying related party transactions and obtaining an understanding of the controls 
that you have established to identify such transactions. We will carry out testing to 
ensure that the related party transaction disclosures made in the financial 
statements are complete and accurate.

Table 3: Related Parties

Question Management response

1. Who are the Council's and Pension Fund's 
related parties?

GCC’s Related Parties include 
County Council Members and 
Senior Officers. GFirst, Police, 
Health Bodies where joint 
working arrangements exist.
Amey Highways Contractor and 
Waste Contractor.

Re the Pension Fund, staff 
advising the Pension Committee 
have post employment benefits 
in the Pension Fund.

Related Parties

Page 90



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 16

Question Management response

2. What are the controls in place to identify, 
account for, and disclose, related party 
transactions and  relationships?

For GCC, annual declarations.  
At year end a detailed review is 
undertaken for all service areas 
to identify significant related 
parties, including an assessment 
of any entities that could be 
significantly influenced by the 
council.

Details of key staff are provided 
in the Annual Accounts and the 
Pension fund’s Annual Report

Page 91



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 8

Local Government bodies need to apply appropriate estimates in the preparation of 
their financial statements. ISA (UK&I) 540 sets out requirements for auditing 
accounting estimates. The objective is to gain evidence that the accounting 
estimates are reasonable and the related disclosures are adequate.

Under this standard we have to identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement for accounting estimates by understanding how the Council identifies 
the transactions, events and conditions that may give rise to the need for an 
accounting estimate.

Accounting estimates are used when it is not possible to measure precisely a figure 
in the accounts. We need to be aware of all estimates that the Council are using as 
part of their accounts preparation; these are detailed in Appendix 1 to this report.

The audit procedures we conduct on the accounting estimate will demonstrate that:

 the estimate is reasonable; and
 estimates have been calculated consistently with other accounting estimates 

within the financial statements.

Accounting Estimates

Page 92



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 17

Appendix 1 Accounting Estimates

P
age 93



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 20

Table 5

Estimate Method/model used 
to make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether Management 
have used an expert

Underlying assumptions: 
- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty
 - Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been 
a change in 
accounting
method in year?

P
age 94



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 21

Estimate Method/model used 
to make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether Management 
have used an expert

Underlying assumptions: 
- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty
 - Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been 
a change in 
accounting
method in year?

Council - Property 
plant &

equipment (PPE)
valuations

For the 2016/17 
accounts valuations 
will be made by 
Internal Valuers in 
line with RICS 
guidance.
A revaluation of 
assets has 
traditionally been 
carried out on a 5 
year cyclical basis, 
however to comply 
with CIPFA’s Code 
of Practice this 
cycle is being 
changed to 2 years 
to ensure the rolling 
programme values 
categories of assets 
within year.

Assets not valued 
during the year are 
the subject of 
review to ensure 
realistic values are 
in the accounts, 
within the new two 
year rolling 
programme.

Finance team 
instructs Valuers of 
the areas and 
categories of the 
program to be 
valued and any 
conditions that may 
impact on that 
valuation.

Valuations are 
made by Internal 
Valuers, with 
appropriate 
professional 
qualifications.  A 
local economic 
review is provided 
by external valuers.

Valuations are made in-
line with RICS guidance 
with reliance on experts.

No

P
age 95



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 22

Estimate Method/model used 
to make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether Management 
have used an expert

Underlying assumptions: 
- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty
 - Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been 
a change in 
accounting
method in year?

The Council’s 
Internal Valuer is 
asked to consider 
whether there has 
been any 
impairments of 
assets in year. This 
is a year-end 
assessment for 
impairment.

Valuers review 
assets held and 
discuss with finance 
staff any known 
events in year which 
may have impacted 
on the value.P

age 96



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 23

Estimate Method/model used 
to make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether Management 
have used an expert

Underlying assumptions: 
- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty
 - Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been 
a change in 
accounting
method in year?

Council - Estimated
remaining useful 
economic life (UEL) 
of PPE & 
Depreciation

The remaining UEL 
of an asset is 
calculated by the 
Internal Valuer 
during the valuation 
rolling programme 
following the RICS 
guidance. 
Depreciation is then 
calculated on a 
straight line basis in 
line with IAS 16

The Council uses 
the information 
provided by the 
Internal Valuer for 
UEL of assets and 
then uses the 
standard straight 
line depreciation 
formula suggested 
in ISA 16

Valuations are 
made by the 
Internal Valuer.

The method makes some 
assumptions about asset 
lives and how asset are 
being used, which by 
their nature contain a 
degree of uncertainty 
because of the long 
period of time being 
considered.

No

P
age 97



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 8

Estimate Method/model used 
to make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether Management 
have used an expert

Underlying assumptions: 
- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty
 - Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been 
a change in 
accounting
method in year?

Council - Pension 
(IAS 19)

Reliance on 
information provided 
by actuary about 
assumptions on 
population and 
future economic 
growth.

Members and 
contribution rates 
are known and 
shared with actuary. 
Actuary uses 
population and 
economic data to 
make estimates of 
future liabilities and 
assets

Pension Actuary There is a degree of 
estimation uncertainty as 
projection of assets and 
liabilities are over a very 
long term. However 
actuary uses most up to 
date information to make 
their assumptions. No 
other alternative 
estimation techniques 
have been identified.

No

P
age 98



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 8

Estimate Method/model used 
to make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether Management 
have used an expert

Underlying assumptions: 
- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty
 - Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been 
a change in 
accounting
method in year?

Pension Fund – 
Investment returns 

Securities to be 
valued on a Fair 
Value Basis 
therefore assets, 
where there is an 
active and readily 
available market 
price, are valued at 
the bid (selling) 
price and liabilities 
on an offer (buying) 
price basis. Where 
assets do not 
actively trade 
through established 
exchange 
mechanisms a price 
is obtained from the 
manager of the 
investment asset. 

Estimates are 
based on known 
investments held at 
the year end. 

Reliance on the 
information provided 
by investment 
managers

There is an inherent risk 
in calculating fair value of 
investments at a point in 
time, however the SORP 
sets out the approach 
and the estimates are 
made by the 
management experts

No

P
age 99



www.grant-thornton.co.uk
© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd ('Grant Thornton 
International'). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.  
Services are delivered by the member firms independently.

This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss 
occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting as a result of  any material in this publication.

P
age 100



Responses from Management:

Auditor question Response
What do you regard as the key events or issues 
that will have a significant impact on the financial 
statements for 2016/17?

The 2016/17 financial statements will be 
prepared in accordance with the Accounting 
Code of Practice.
Changes in government funding and 
business rates scheme will continue to be 
reflected in the statements.
Reference will be made to the Incinerator at 
Javelin Park, which received formal 
planning permission in 2015/16 and 
construction is progressing.
For LGPS increasing governance costs due 
to Pooling Costs.

Have you considered the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies adopted by the Council? Have
there been any events or transactions that may 
cause you to change or adopt new accounting 
policies?

Accounting policies have been reviewed 
and no significant updates for the accounts 
are expected.  No new accounting policies 
are expected for the 2016/17 accounts, with 
the position and treatment of the Incinerator 
fully explained.   
 

Are you aware of any changes to the Council's 
regulatory environment that may have a 
significant impact on the Council's financial 
statements?

No, the 2016/17 financial statements will be 
prepared in accordance with the relevant 
Accounting Code of Practice.

How would you assess the quality of the Council's 
internal control processes?

The 2016/17 Chief Internal Auditors annual 
Opinion on the internal control environment 
is satisfactory. Please refer to the Annual 
Governance Statement, the revised Local 
Code of Corporate Governance (which is 
based on the new 7 key principles of good 
governance) plus the enhanced assurance 
gathering framework/process, Annual 
Report on Internal Audit Activity and the 
Annual Report on Risk Management 
Activity.

How would you assess the process for reviewing 
the effectiveness of internal control?

Good – Effective External and Internal 
Audit. 
Robust assurance gathering process which 
informs the Annual Governance Statement 
implemented during 2013/14 and ongoing, 
which includes assurances on good 
governance from Service Heads as well as 
Directors, Lead Cabinet Member review and 
Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer 
and Chief Financial Officer oversight and 
challenge.

Page 101



2

How do the Council's risk management processes 
link to financial reporting?

Corporate Risk Management Policy 
Statement and Strategy and associated 
toolkits and guidance clearly states financial 
risk and fraud as two of the key categories 
of risk to be considered when delivering 
outcomes.

The quarterly corporate performance 
reports to Cabinet bring together monitoring 
information on performance, finance and 
risk for the authority.

Strategic Finance Director owns three 
strategic financial risks on the Council’s 
Strategic Risk register which are monitored 
and reported on a quarterly basis.

The LGPS has a risk register which is 
reported to and reviewed by the Pension 
Committee every 6 months.

How would you assess the Council's 
arrangements for identifying and responding to 
the risk of fraud? 

Good – The Council revised its Anti Fraud 
and Corruption Policy Statement and 
Strategy, Anti Bribery Policy and Anti Money 
Laundering Policy during 2016/17 which 
once approved by Cabinet will be 
disseminated in accordance with an 
approved communications plan.

Fraud risk assessment undertaken by 
Internal Audit (IA) to direct IA resources as 
part of the risk based internal audit 
planning.

Fraud risk is one of the key categories of 
risk within the Council’s risk management 
framework.

Member of National Anti Fraud Network 
(NAFN).

Member of peer groups such as Midland 
Counties Chief Auditors Fraud Group and 
Counties Chief Internal Auditors Network to 
share good practice etc.

Participants in the National Fraud Initiative 
(NFI).

Dedicated Counter Fraud specialists within 
Internal Audit (professionally qualified).

Joint working with NHS Counter Fraud 
Service for joint funding cases.

Page 102



3

Membership of Gloucestershire’s Fraud 
Hub.

Regular staff fraud awareness briefings.

What has been the outcome of these 
arrangements so far this year? 

14 referrals for irregularity, although not all 
of these would be classed as fraud,  within 
2016/17, plus counter fraud work in respect 
of staff expenses and Children’s direct 
payments in 2016/17. All referrals were 
investigated.

Regular updates on fraud/irregularities 
provided to Head of Paid Service, Chief 
Financial Officer and Monitoring Officer.

Quarterly update reports highlighting key 
outcomes to Audit and Governance 
Committee
 

What have you determined to be the classes of 
accounts, transactions and disclosures most at 
risk to fraud?

Fraud Risk assessment – Inherent risks 
include payroll, procurement, treasury 
management, pension payments, access to 
cash and third party payments. Emerging 
risks identified within Direct Payments. 
These areas are currently being reviewed 
by Adults, Children, and IA.

Financial risk mitigated via good internal 
financial controls/ annual internal audit 
review of key financial systems.

Insurance – Fidelity Guarantee policy which 
provides fraud cover for all GCC employees 
plus additional cover for those employees 
deemed to be a high risk to the council from 
a financial perspective.

Are you aware of any whistle blowing potential or 
complaints by potential whistle blowers? If so, 
what has been your response?

Yes, all have been followed-up.  All 
complaints notified have been dealt with 
under the Council’s Whistleblowing policy.

The Head of Paid Service, Monitoring 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer are made 
aware and fully briefed on all such activity.

Have any reports been made under the Bribery 
Act?

No

As a management team, how do you 
communicate risk issues (including fraud) to those 
charged with governance?

Quarterly Internal Audit reports provided to 
the Audit and Governance Committee which 
include outcomes relating to fraud / 
irregularity.

Page 103



4

Opinions on the effectiveness of risk 
management arrangements are provided by 
IA on each internal audit activity.

Annual report on Risk Management activity 
provided to the Audit and Governance 
Committee.

Corporate performance and risk reports 
provided to Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Committee.

Regular updates to the Head of Paid 
Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer on all such activity.

Assurance gathering process requests 
management assurances that risk (including 
fraud risk) is fully considered when 
delivering outcomes/objectives.

As a management team, how do you 
communicate to staff and employees your views 
on business practices and ethical behaviour?

The Employee Code of Conduct, which 
covers such areas, was reviewed in 
2013/14 with additional changes made 
within 2014/15, 2015/16 and 2016/2017. 
Sections of the Code of Conduct have been 
highlighted to staff by a global email with a 
link to an article within the monthly 
produced newsletter ‘Staffstuff’/”Talk 
Smart”/Staffnet. 

In addition, the Heads of Service assurance 
statements requests management 
assurances that that staff are made aware 
of the required ethical behaviours.

What are your policies and procedures for 
identifying, assessing and accounting for litigation 
and claims?

Insurance Services commission an actuarial 
review of the Council’s risk profile (as a 
minimum triennially. However, this may be 
carried out more frequently if the Council’s 
risk profile alters significantly which in turn 
influences the level of funds required to pay 
claims.

The Council’s insurance programme is 
based on the council’s risk profile and 
reviewed and updated accordingly with 
MARSH, our insurance brokers annually.

Is there any use of financial instruments, including 
derivatives? 

Yes, details of our use of financial 
instruments will be given within the note to 
the accounts.

Page 104



5

Are you aware of any significant transaction 
outside the normal course of business?

No

Are you aware of any changes in circumstances 
that would lead to impairment of non-current 
assets? 

Not at the moment, although if appropriate 
changes will be identified in the accounts 
and notes.

Are you aware of any guarantee contracts? No

Are you aware of allegations of fraud, errors, or 
other irregularities during the period?

Yes, these are reported to the Head of Paid 
Service, Chief Financial Officer and 
Monitoring Officer on a monthly basis.

Are you aware of any instances of non-
compliance with laws or regulations or is the 
Council's on notice of any such possible instances 
of non-compliance?

No. The assurance gathering process 
specifically requests that management 
inform the Head of Paid Service, Chief 
Financial Officer and Monitoring Officer of 
any such incidents.

Have there been any examinations, investigations 
or inquiries by any licensing or authorising bodies 
or the tax and customs authorities?

No

Are you aware of any transactions, events and 
conditions (or changes in these) that may give 
rise to recognition or disclosure of significant 
accounting estimates that require significant 
judgement?

The basis of accounting treatments and 
judgements will be clearly identified within 
the accounts.
The continuing and expanding relationships 
with NHS organisations may lead to revised 
year-end arrangements and the need for 
accounting estimates.

Where the financial statements include amounts 
based on significant estimates, how have the 
accounting estimates been made, what is the 
nature of the data used, and the degree of 
estimate uncertainty inherent in the estimate?

The basis of accounting treatments and 
judgements will be clearly identified within 
the accounts.

Are you aware of the existence of loss 
contingencies and/or un-asserted claims that may 
affect the financial statements?

The Statement of Accounts clearly sets out 
the Council’s policies and approach to both 
contingent liabilities and reserves.

Has the management team carried out an 
assessment of the going concern basis for 
preparing the financial statements? What was the 
outcome of that assessment? 

The Council’s MTFS covers the three years 
2017/18 to 2019/20.  An integral part of the 
Council’s MTFS and budget approval 
framework is to consider the Council’s 
financial strategy, financial assumptions, 
and financial risks.
The Strategic Finance Director’s advice is 
that the reserve levels are adequate, the 
financial standing of the Council is sound, 
and the 2017/18 budget is robust and 
achievable.

Page 105



6

Management is required to consider whether 
there are any material uncertainties that cast 
doubt on the Council's ability to continue as a 
business. What is the process for undertaking a 
rigorous assessment of going concern? Is the 
process carried out proportionate in nature and 
depth to the level of financial risk and complexity 
of the organisation and its operations? How will 
you ensure that all available information is 
considered when concluding the organisation is a 
going concern at the date the financial statements 
are approved?

An integral part of the Council’s MTFS and 
budget approval framework is to consider 
the Council’s financial strategy, financial 
assumptions, and financial risks.
Robust budget monitoring and outturn 
forecasts are regularly undertaken 
throughout the year and reported to Cabinet 
and Scrutiny.

The MTFS and budget framework provides 
the Strategic Finance Director with the 
assurance that reserve levels are adequate, 
the financial standing of the Council is 
sound, with a budget that is robust and 
achievable.  

Can you provide details of those solicitors utilised 
by the Council's during the year. Please indicate 
where they are working on open litigation or 
contingencies from prior years?

External Solicitors used during 2016/17:
Baker Small
Eversheds – Waste project
Gowlings WLG
Bevan Brittan
Tewkesbury Borough Council 
For Insurance Claims:
Wansbroughs
Browne Jacobson
BLM
Clyde & Co.
Kennedys

Can you provide details of other advisors 
consulted during the year and the issue on which 
they were
consulted?

During 2016/17 the Council has used a 
number of advisors covering a wide range 
of service areas.  A list of advisors can be 
prepared from our main financial system on 
request.

Have any of the Council's service providers 
reported any items of fraud, non-compliance with 
laws and regulations or uncorrected 
misstatements which would affect the financial 
statements?

Quarterly Internal Audit reports provided to 
the Audit and Governance Committee which 
include outcomes relating to fraud / 
irregularity.
These would not affect the financial 
statements.

Page 106



Audit and Governance Committee

Date: 7th April 2017 Agenda No:

Title of Report: Internal Audit’s Risk and Control Assurance framework
Internal Audit Plan 2017/2018

Purpose of Report: To provide the Committee with a summary of the proposed 2017/2018 
Risk Based Internal Audit Plan as required by the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS) 2016.

Recommendations: That the Committee:
 Notes that the Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18 makes adequate 

provision for the risks arising from organisational change; and

 Approve the 2017/2018 Internal Audit Plan. 

Officer (s) Contact: Theresa Mortimer – Head of Audit Risk Assurance Shared Service and 
Gloucestershire County Council’s Insurance Services. Tel: 01452 
328883
Theresa.Mortimer@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Jo Walker – Director: Strategic Finance 
Tel no: 01452 328469.
joanna.walker@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Key Risks Failure to deliver an effective Risk Based Internal Audit Plan (Risk and 
Control Assurance Programme) will impact on the statutory 
requirement to provide the Council with an annual independent audit 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s control environment 
comprising risk management, control and governance.

Page 107

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Theresa.Mortimer@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:joanna.walker@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Internal Audit Plan
2017 - 2018

Page 109



Internal Audit Plan 2017-2018

1

Background

All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 1972 Local 
Government Act (S151) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The latter states that a 
relevant authority “must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing 
standards or guidance”.

The guidance accompanying the Regulations recognises that the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) 2016 as representing “proper internal audit practices”. The standards define the 
way in which the Internal Audit Service should be established and undertakes its functions.

The standards also requires that an opinion is given on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of 
the Council’s control environment comprising risk management, control and governance, which is 
informed by the work undertaken by the Service.

Gloucestershire County Council’s Internal Audit function conforms to the International Standards for 
the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

What is Internal Auditing?

The role of the internal auditor is to provide independent, objective assurance to management that 
key risks are being managed effectively. To do this, the internal auditor will evaluate the quality of 
risk management processes, systems of internal control and corporate governance frameworks, 
across all parts of an organisation, and to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of these 
arrangements. As well as providing assurance, an internal auditor’s knowledge of the management 
of risk enables them to act as a consultant and provide support for improvement in an organisation's 
procedures. For example, at the development stage of a major new system where the internal 
auditor can help management to ensure that risks are clearly identified and appropriate controls put 
in place to manage them. 

Why is assurance important? 

By reporting to senior management that important risks have been evaluated, and highlighting 
where improvements are necessary, the internal auditor helps senior management to demonstrate 
that they are managing the organisation effectively on behalf of their stakeholders. Hence, internal 
auditors, along with senior management and the external auditors are a critical part of the 
governance arrangements of our organisation, our work significantly contributing to the statutory 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS). 

Development of the 2017/2018 Internal Audit Plan

To enable the above, the Chief Internal Auditor is required to produce an Annual Risk Based Internal 
Audit Plan to determine the priorities of the internal audit activity. The proposed activity should be 
consistent with the organisation’s priorities and objectives and taking into account the organisation’s 
risk management framework, including risk appetite levels set by management and internal audit’s 
own judgement of risks. 

Page 110



Internal Audit Plan 2017-2018

2

How did we develop the plan - Risk Based Internal Audit Planning (RBIAP)

To ensure our internal audit resources continue to be focussed accordingly, particularly during 
periods of radical change, it is essential that we understand our clients’ needs, which means building 
relationships with our key stakeholders, including other assurance providers, in order to gain crucial 
insight and ongoing ‘intelligence’ into the strategic and operational change agendas within our 
organisation. 

This insight is not only identified at the initial development stages of the plan but dialogue continues 
throughout the financial year(s) which increases the ability for the internal audit service to adapt 
more closely to meet the assurance needs of the Council, particularly during periods of significant 
change. Our plan therefore needs to be dynamic and should be flexible to meet these needs. 

How did we achieve the above?

To ensure that an effective plan is developed, each Principal Auditor has been nominated as the 
‘Client’s Lead Auditor’ supporting at least one of the Directors.  A wide ranging consultation process 
took place with Senior Management across the Council to establish priorities and agree the format 
and timetabling of ongoing dialogue. This ongoing dialogue between Senior Management and the 
‘Client Lead’ Auditor is formulated dependent upon the change agenda in the area, but is at least 
quarterly. 

In addition to these Senior Management meetings, similar consultation was held with the Chairman 
of the Audit and Governance Committee, External Auditors and the Finance Managers. The 
proposed activity from all sources was collated and matched against the internal audit resources 
available and prioritised accordingly. The proposals, following challenge, have been approved by the 
Corporate Management Team (CoMT) and the Director: Strategic Finance. 

A flexible audit plan - (Risk and Control Assurance Programme)

The audit plan is stated in terms of estimated days input to the Council of 1625 audit days, which is 
comparable to last year. By continuing to apply risk based internal audit planning principles this level 
of input, with the ability to commission internal audit resources from current audit framework 
agreements as required, is considered acceptable to provide the assurance the Council needs. We 
will however, continue to reassess our resources against the Council’s priorities and risks and will 
amend the plan throughout the year based on in year risk / need / demand, reporting any key 
changes to the Audit and Governance Committee. 

Overview of Internal Audit’s Risk and Control Assurance Programme

In order to provide a high level overview of the proposed risk and control assurance programme the 
charts below highlight the allocation of audit resources per:

 Functional service areas (clusters); and
 Category of review.

Page 111



Internal Audit Plan 2017-2018

3

Page 112



Internal Audit Plan 2017-2018

4

The key points to highlight within the proposals are:

 There is a proportional split, based on risk, between each of the functional service areas to 
enable the provision of an annual audit opinion;

 Continued focus on cyber security risks, counter fraud activity, key financial systems and 
strategic risks due to the significant change agenda; 

 Continued emphasis on commissioning, procurement and contract management and 
monitoring arrangements; and

 Taking into consideration other assurance providers.

The detail supporting this overview is attached at Appendix 1 which shows:

 Audit activity per service area;

 Name of the audit activity;

 Reason for the audit i.e. as a result of risk based internal audit planning (RBIAP) and link to 
the Council’s Strategic Risk Register, statutory requirement, grant certification, etc;

 Outline scope of the review. (please note that a detailed terms of reference is agreed with 
the client prior to the commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is continually 
focused on the key risks and is undertaken within agreed time periods, to ensure our service 
adds value to the Council); and

 The priority of the audit i.e. Priorities 1 and 2. The aim is to focus on priority 1 audits, with the 
priority 2 audits being reassessed in the eventuality of any new emerging risk areas 
highlighted where assurances may be required, or where additional fraud investigations / 
irregularities materialise.

Page 113



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18 Appendix 1

5

Council Wide

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Employee Code 
of Conduct – 
Register of Gifts 
and Hospitality

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The public is entitled to expect the highest standards of conduct from all employees who 
work for local government. The ‘Code of Conduct for Employees’ require employees to 
register any gifts or hospitality in order to provide openness and transparency and protection 
for employees against any allegations of conflicts of interest or corruption in the minds of the 
public.

This review will seek to determine the level of compliance with the Code through contacting 
a selection of key contractors to ascertain if any gifts or hospitality has been offered to 
employees and compare any information provided to the employee’s declaration.

Priority 2

Staff Travel 
Documentation

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

If staff use their vehicle for work, their manager should regularly check they have a valid 
licence, insurance and MOT certificate for the car or motorbike they are using. Staff should 
also notify their manager of any change to their circumstances and provide them with the 
appropriate papers annually. 

This review will select a sample of managers across the Council to confirm that they are 
reviewing appropriate documents to allow staff to use their own vehicles on behalf of 
Council business.

Priority 2

P
age 114



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

6

Core Council 

Asset Management and Property Services (AMPS)

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Dynamic 
Purchasing 
System

Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

The Council has entered into a Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) for routine maintenance 
and minor works. The DPS is an electronic system which can be used to purchase goods 
and services. New contractors can be added to the DPS at any time so long as they satisfy 
the selection criteria.

This audit will review the operation of the DPS, ensuring that it complies with legislation, that 
work is procured equitably and that new contractors are admitted to the DPS in accordance 
with the agreed selection criteria.

Priority 1

Contracts 
managed by 
AMPS 

Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

AMPS procure and manage a number of contracts for the authority such as: Catering 
(Schools and Shire Hall); cleaning and caretaking; ground maintenance; free school meals; 
key holders (security management); waste collection from GCC properties and the print 
contract. 

This audit will select one of these contracts managed by AMPS and will review the 
procurement processes and/or the effectiveness of the contract management arrangements 
in place.

Priority 1

P
age 115



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

7

Business Service Centre (BSC)

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

BSC - Pensions Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

The Business Service Centre (BSC) run payroll for a number of different employers (e.g. 
Gloucestershire Police, Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service, Academies etc.) including 
Gloucestershire County Council (GCC). Employees are eligible to be members of various 
pension schemes, the main one being the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). 

This audit will review the correspondence relating to a sample of new employees and the 
setting up of these employees in the various schemes, the procedures agreed between the 
BSC and the various pension schemes for provision of information and the accuracy of the 
information supplied by the payroll section.

Priority 1

Payroll – 
Accuracy of 
Payments

Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

The BSC operate a payroll service for GCC employees, LGPS pensions and for a number of 
different outside organisations as traded services. 

This review will examine the controls in operation for payments to a sample of GCC staff 
ensuring that the calculations of all payments and deductions are at the correct and 
authorised rate and comply with the relevant taxation and other regulations.

Priority 1

Vendor Master 
Data

Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

This audit will review the process of setting up new vendors in SAP and amending those 
records, including contractor name, address and bank details. Reviewing the adequacy of 
the checks that are undertaken to ensure that the vendor does not already exist, that any 
changes are bona-fide, that contracts are amended if necessary and data cleansing is 
carried out to block old records held in SAP.

Priority 1

P
age 116



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

8

Finance

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Compliance with 
Corporate Debt 
Policy

Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

As at 31st January 2017, the total debt outstanding was £12.1 million of which £4.7 million 
(39%) relates to Adult Care.

During 2013/14 an audit was undertaken on corporate debt management, particularly 
focusing on the process whereby Strategic Finance circulates aged debt reports and trend 
information to all appropriate parties on a monthly basis, highlighting current issues 
(including provisions for bad debt and write-offs) that need to be addressed. One of the 
outcomes of the audit was that there was a need for a new corporate Debt Policy. The new 
debt policy was approved in March 2016 and updated in Autumn 2016. The audit will review 
compliance with the new Debt Policy, focusing on the debts process within Adult Services, 
the Business Service Centre and also ascertaining Legal Services’ involvement in these 
debt recovery arrangements.

Priority 1

Traded Services Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

GCC provides a number of traded services to outside bodies such as maintained schools 
and academies. This review will select one traded service and review how the costs are 
measured and charges set, how the income is accounted for and how GCC ensures that 
only those organisations paying for the service have access to that service.

Priority 1

P
age 117



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

9

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Treasury 
Management

Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

Treasury Management is defined as the management of the organisation’s investments and 
cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control 
of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks. 

It is a high risk area due to the high value of transactions, which can be made on a daily 
basis. In total GCC have approximately £300m of investments and £300m of loans. 

GCC has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice as part of the financial 
regulations set out in the Constitution.

The review will look at compliance with the code of practice and review internal controls in 
operation for the day to day management of the function; the use of brokers and specialist 
advisers; and the separation of duties and reconciliation of control accounts.

Priority 1

Special 
Payments made 
through BACS

Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

Requests for special payments by the Business Service Centre (BSC) through the Bankers' 
Automated Clearing Services (BACS) are becoming more frequent. This review will look at 
the number of requests and ascertain why they were necessary, reviewing whether there 
were any underlying issues regarding internal control in the processing of payroll.

Priority 2

P
age 118



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

10

Information Management 

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Compliance with 
Transparency 
Agenda

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Department for Communities and Local Government published the Local Government 
Transparency Code in 2015. Local authorities are required to publish various data online in 
a number of required formats e.g. expenditure exceeding £500, grants to voluntary, 
community and social enterprise organisations, senior salaries and fraud.

The responsibility for posting accurate, complete and up to date data is spread across the 
authority. Often people submitting freedom of information requests are directed to this 
information to enable them to extract the information they require directly so it is important 
that this information is correct.

This review will look a sample of requirements to see how the website is managed to ensure 
information is accurate, up to date and complete.

Priority 1

 

P
age 119

http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-transparency-code-2015
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-transparency-code-2015


Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

11

HR

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Compromise 
Agreements

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Employees may have claims against their employer under both their contract of employment 
and under statute. The objective of the audit is to ensure that compromise (staff severance) 
agreements that have been entered into, complies with Gloucestershire County Council’s 
(GCC) policy and procedures as well as CIPFA’s good practice guidance “Standards for 
Staff Severance Agreements”.

The review will also look at the treatment of tax on final payments.

Priority 1

Recruitment and 
Promotion

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Limited Assurance 
Follow-Up

The Recruitment and Promotion audit, which was undertaken during 2016/17, will be 
reported to the Audit and Governance Committee in April 2017 confirming that limited 
assurance was given for both risk and internal control.  The report included six 
recommendations, all of which were classified as high priority.

It is expected that the management update on the position of the audit recommendations will 
be presented to Audit and Governance Committee in July 2017.

The follow-up audit scope will be to review the recommendations and agreed management 
actions from the original audit and establish whether they have been implemented.

Priority 1P
age 120



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

12

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Retirement 
Schemes

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Council has a Flexible Retirement Policy and Procedure in place to allow employees 
who are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme and over 55 years old, to 
reduce their hours and/or grade by at least 20%. In return the individual will receive a 
pension based on their service to date, with no abatement for early retirement, as well as 
their new, reduced salary. The cost of allowing the pension to be paid early, without 
abatement, is then borne by the Council who are required to pay a lump sum into the 
pension fund.

The policy is discretionary and may be varied unilaterally by the council. It does not form 
part of any employee’s contract of employment and is entirely non-contractual. The decision 
on whether or not to approve an individual’s application must be balanced with the changing 
needs of the service and the council’s commitment to providing high quality services.

This audit will review the number of applications approved, the decision making processes, 
the cost and savings resulting from these approvals and the potential impact on service 
delivery.

Priority 1

ICT to include audits provided by ICT external auditors

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

ICT Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

The ICT audits will be identified following the ICT audit needs assessment. The assessment 
will be compiled by the Internal Audit Service ICT audit specialists and will consider input 
from both Council officers and External Audit.

Priority 1

P
age 121



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

13

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Information and 
Cyber Security 
Pensions

Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

During 2016/17 a new risk was added to the Pension Fund Risk Register, namely the ‘failure 
to protect key information and data as a result of exploited technological vulnerabilities 
through malicious attack’. 

TIAA (GCC’s specialist ICT auditors) have already reviewed cyber security for GCC and as 
the Gloucestershire Pension Fund database is held on the Gloucestershire County Council 
servers the findings of their review will feed into this report. 

This review aims to provide assurance the Gloucestershire Pension Fund that mitigating 
controls are in place and operating effectively.

In addition this review will look specifically at the ICT systems within pensions, looking at 
password controls, access levels etc. to give specific assurance to the Pension Board that 
the overall risk is being managed.

Priority 1

SAP Access 
Controls

Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

This audit will review the range of users from super-user (e.g. system administrators), and 
business users and their rights and privileges to ensure that all accesses are relevant to the 
job role, kept up to date when staff change their role or leave, and that there are no conflicts 
or gaps in the functionalities.

Priority 1

GCC Websites 
(to include 
Libraries Website 
Payments)

Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

This audit will assess the effectiveness of the identification of and then management 
(hosting) arrangements, security, configuration and control over websites (domains) which 
the Council owns and provides, reviewing both the main www.gloucestershire.gov.uk 
domain and also other specific purpose websites including libraries.

Priority 2

P
age 122



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

14

Legal Services

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

External Legal 
Services

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Individual sections are able to purchase legal advice independently, without having to go 
via Legal Services although they are required to procure legal advice through the 
framework contract set up by Legal Services. This review will look at legal expenditure 
across GCC and to ensure that it is appropriately procured.

Priority 2

Pensions

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Pension Cash 
Payments

Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

In 2015/16 approximately £12 million was paid out in lump sums from the pension scheme 
in the form of payments to:-.

 new pensioners (receiving standard or Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC) lump 
sums);

 members leaving the scheme (refunds);

 other pension providers (individuals transferring out); and

 pensioner’s relatives (death benefits).

This audit will review the effectiveness of the controls around the payment of these lump 
sums to ensure that they are made to the correct person/business and that they are 
accurate, and not duplicated.

Priority 1

P
age 123



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

15

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Admitted Bodies Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

When participating employers outsource their services, employees are TUPE transferred to 
the new employer. The new employer is required to honour the employees existing terms 
and conditions and is therefore required to become an admitted body to the pension 
scheme, so that their employees can continue to contribute to their LGPS pension.

This review will look at the process for an employer to apply to be an Admitted Body within 
the Pension Fund and the approval of the application.

It will also include:

 how the new body is set up in the system;

 the legal agreements entered into underpinning the arrangement (including bonds 
put in place by the employer);

 the adequacy of these arrangements; 

 the ongoing monitoring; and

 look at the termination of these arrangements.

Priority 1

P
age 124



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

16

Adults 

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Brokerage - 
Older People and 
Disabilities

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The County Council will assess an individual’s needs for care and support against national 
criteria. Once the individual’s needs are determined, it may be agreed that the Council will 
make the necessary arrangements for the service user’s care support. Currently the Council 
has two brokerage teams: Older People and Disabilities.

Internal Audit plan to undertake a separate review of each brokerage team. The objective of 
each review will be to determine if there are robust systems and processes in place for 
brokering care support and that these are operating effectively.

Priority 1

Client 
Contributions

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Limited Assurance 
Follow-Up

Gloucestershire County Council’s Adult Social Care relies on people who use services 
making a financial contribution to the cost of providing them, (if they are able to afford to do 
so). 

The Financial Assessments and Benefits (FAB) Team ensure that any financial contributions 
required from service users for residential and non-residential Social Care services are 
calculated fairly and in accordance with GCC policies and Government guidelines.  The 
Team also help to maximise income for individuals and maximise charging revenue for GCC 
by providing advice and practical assistance to all service users, their partners and carers to 
ensure that they are in receipt of their full welfare benefit entitlement.  

A review of this area was completed during 2015-16. The findings emanating from the 
review resulted in a limited assurance opinion being given in respect of the Control 
Environment.

In light of the above, it was agreed that Internal Audit would undertake a follow-up review 
during 2017/18.

Priority 1

P
age 125



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

17

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

ContrOCC Adults Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Gloucestershire County Council uses an in-house bespoke computer system (ERIC) to 
support the delivery and management of its social care provision for adults across the 
county. During 2016/17 the Council implemented a new Finance solution (ContrOCC) that 
replaces ERIC’s finance functionality whilst integrating with ERIC as the social care case 
management solution. In effect:

ERIC will be used for ‘case management’ related activity e.g.:

 Client Master record;

 Assessments and recording;

 Support planning & recording;

 Ongoing recording;

ContrOCC will be used for ‘finance’ related activity e.g.:

 Paying providers;

 Charging clients;

 Financial assessments; and

 Managing contracts and services. 

This review will seek to provide assurance over the operating effectiveness of the new 
Finance module features / functionality in respect of payments / charging / financial 
assessments.

Priority 1

P
age 126



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

18

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Deaths and 
Discharges 

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Limited Assurance 
Follow-Up

The demand for external care services for adults within Gloucestershire over recent years 
has placed significant pressure upon the Council’s Adult Services external care budget.

The largest pressure resides with the budget for older people and people with physical 
disabilities. This budget has been reported as overspent for a number of years and 
continues to be under significant pressure.

The financial value of reported deaths for older people and people with disabilities 
represents on average more than 20% of the actual annual spend on external care.

Notifications of a service user’s death may be received into the Council through various 
pathways, such as: Service areas, the Customer Services Contact Centre, or the Registrars 
Service “Tell Us Once” system.

In light of the above, Internal Audit undertook a review of this area during 2015/16. The 
findings emanating from the review led to a limited assurance opinion being given upon the 
control environment. Therefore, a further review is to be undertaken during 2017/18 to 
establish whether the agreed management actions to address the recommendations made 
have been fully implemented.

Priority 1

P
age 127



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

19

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Direct Payments 
(Adults)

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Every service user who is assessed as being eligible for support receives an allocation of 
funding; this is called a personal budget. Should the service user choose to manage all or 
part of their care arrangements the Council pays all or a proportion of the personal budget to 
the service user, this is then called direct payments.

Direct payments and personal budgets are central to implementing the government’s 
personalisation and self directed support policies; giving social care service users more 
independence, choice and control over how their support needs are met.

The Regulations require direct payments to be routinely reviewed at least once every 12 
months to make sure that the arrangements are meeting the service users needs and that 
funds have been appropriately managed.

In addition, from April 2017 the Council will also be introducing the use of a payment card 
system for direct payments.

This review will seek to determine whether there are effective arrangements in place for the 
management and monitoring of direct payments.

Priority 1

P
age 128



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

20

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Electronic Call 
Monitoring (ECM) 
– Older People 
(OP)

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Electronic call monitoring is a method of recording the date, time and amount of time spent 
with a person or persons receiving social care. It also allows for care delivery information to 
be provided in real-time and can aid the streamlining of financial processes, removing much 
of the administrative burden and expense of timesheet management and billing.

During 2015-16 the Council introduced the use of an Electronic Call Monitoring system 
within supported living settings, with a view to further roll out of electronic call monitoring 
under the new contract for the provision of domiciliary care services (circa £16million).  

This review will seek to determine the effectiveness of the Council’s new arrangements for 
monitoring contract compliance for the delivery of care in community settings using the ECM 
system.   

Priority 1

P
age 129



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

21

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Financial 
Assessments 
and Benefits 

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Limited Assurance 
Follow-Up

Gloucestershire County Council’s Adult Social Care relies on people who use services 
making a financial contribution to the cost of providing them, (if they are able to afford to do 
so). 

The Financial Assessments and Benefits (FAB) team ensure that any financial contributions 
required from service users for residential and non-residential Social Care services are 
calculated fairly and in accordance with GCC policies and Government guidelines.  The 
team also help to maximise income for individuals and maximise charging revenue for GCC 
by providing advice and practical assistance to all service users, their partners and carers to 
ensure that they are in receipt of their full welfare benefit entitlement.  

A review of the FAB team was undertaken as part of the 2014-15 Internal Audit plan. The 
findings emanating from the review resulted in a limited assurance opinion being given in 
respect of the level of assurance over the Service’s Risk Identification Maturity and the 
Control Environment.

A follow-up review was subsequently undertaken during 2015/16, the review highlighted 
that whilst management had responded positively and quickly to the findings emanating 
from the 2014-15 audit review and good progress had been made in implementing the 
agreed management actions to the recommendations made; further ongoing work was 
required to ensure that not only are there robust systems and processes in place for the 
management, monitoring and delivery of financial assessments, but that the arrangements 
are operating effectively and are shown to be sustainable.

In light of the above, Internal Audit had planned to undertake a follow-up review during 
2016/17 however due to internal changes in the provision of administrative support to the 
service area it was agreed that the review would be deferred to 2017/18.

Priority 1

P
age 130



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

22

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

GIS Healthcare - 
Procurement

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

During 2014-15 the Council’s Commercial Services Team undertook a Category Review of 
Gloucestershire Industrial Services (GIS) Healthcare to ensure that the Council has in place 
effective, legally compliant, value for money processes for the procurement of medical 
equipment and aids, whilst ensuring that prescribing professionals have confidence in the 
products and services being delivered.

The findings emanating from the review resulted in a series of recommendations and it was 
agreed that an implementation plan would be developed to support the implementation of 
the agreed actions.

The forecast outturn for 2016/17 (including servicing of equipment) is circa £5m. This review 
will seek to determine whether there are now effective arrangements in place for the 
procurement of medical equipment and aids.

Priority 1

Mental Health 
Services

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Council has a Section 75 agreement in place with the Clinical Commissioning Group 
Gloucestershire (CCGG).  Section 75 agreements can include arrangements for pooling 
resources and delegating certain National Health Service and local authority health-related 
functions to the other partner(s) if it would lead to an improvement in the way those 
functions are exercised.

The Section 75 agreement provides for the CCGG to contract with the 2Gether Trust to 
deliver the Mental Health service on behalf of the Council. The budget for the provision of 
this service is circa £5-6m and has been pressured for a number of years resulting in 
overspend at year end.

Internal Audit will review the governance arrangements for this agreement with a view to 
determining whether these are adequate and are operating effectively.

Priority 1

P
age 131



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

23

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Standards of 
Proficiency for 
Social Workers

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Consultancy

The Standards of Proficiency for social workers set out what a social worker in England 
should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their social work training so 
they can register with the Health and Care Professional Council. The standards set out clear 
expectations of social workers knowledge and abilities when they start practicing; and social 
workers must continue to meet the standards.

Internal Audit will provide professional risk and control advice to support the development of 
a control framework to manage and monitor compliance against the practice standards.

Priority 1

Support Planning 
– Older People 
Personal Care

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

If you are assessed by social services and are found to be eligible for support, the next 
stage is to draw up a care and support plan, or in the case of a carer with eligible needs, a 
support plan.

The National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) has issued guidance on 
delivering personal care and practical support to older people living in their homes to end 
the media scandal of ‘flying care visits’.

This review will seek to determine whether the key principles of the NICE guidance are 
being considered when developing support plans for personal care.

Priority 1P
age 132



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

24

Children and Families 

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Direct Payments 
(Children and 
Families) 

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Limited Assurance 
Follow-Up

The original Direct Payments (Children and Families) internal audit 2016/17 was reported to 
Audit and Governance Committee in September 2016, confirming limited assurance for both 
risk and internal control. The report included four High Priority recommendations.

Management update on the position of the audit recommendations was then presented to 
Audit and Governance Committee in January 2017.

The follow up audit scope and objective will be to review the recommendations raised and 
agreed management actions from the original audit to establish whether the 
recommendations have been implemented.

Priority 1

Education 
Service

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Education service is facing service reductions as funding shifts to schools/academies 
from 2017/18 onwards and as a result is due to undergo a significant restructure within 
2017/18. 

The Head of Education has requested that a bank of audit assurance days is allocated for 
audit work in Q3 and Q4. Specific area(s) to be determined within Q1 and Q2, based on 
Head of Education / Internal Audit risk assessment as part of the restructure.

Priority 1

P
age 133



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

25

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

PACE (Police 
and Criminal 
Evidence Act) 
Protocol

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

PACE and the PACE codes of practice establish the powers of the police to combat crimes 
while protecting the rights of the public. The PACE codes of practice cover stop and search; 
arrest; detention; investigation; identification; and interviewing detainees.

PACE includes the criteria for every child and mentally vulnerable adult detained or 
questioned by the police to have an effective appropriate adult. 

A protocol is in place between the County Council, the Police and other service providers 
regarding PACE and the approach used for children within the county. 

The audit will review the PACE protocol and review the governance arrangements in place 
(including performance management and monitoring) to ensure that PACE responsibilities 
for children within the county are defined and met by the relevant parties.

Priority 1

Maintained 
Schools

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The maintained schools audited will be based on a risk assessment. Priority 1

P
age 134



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

26

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

SEN Education 
only placement

SEN Joint Social 
Care and 
Education funded 
placement

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Children with Special Educational Needs (SEN) education only placements and joint social 
care and education funded placements are areas of significant spend for the Council.

Placements can be made within Gloucestershire maintained schools, independent or non 
maintained special schools, or out of county. Places are commissioned through the Special 
Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) and Commissioning teams, either as a block or 
individually (where there is an urgent requirement based on service user needs). The 
commissioning approach used should be completed in line with defined Council protocol 
and requirements, to ensure that the needs of the service user are met while achieving 
Value for Money (VFM) for the Council. This audit will be split into two parts and will review 
the systems and processes in place for the commissioning of (1) SEN education only 
placements and (2) SEN joint social care and education funded placements to ensure:

 That there is a defined commissioning approach;

 Placements are commissioned in line with Council requirements and guidance;

 The selection of placement is appropriate (based on supporting audit trail), in line with 
the service user’s needs and currently held contracts; 

 Placement decisions are formal, robust, transparent and consistent; and

 An appropriate governance framework (including performance management and 
monitoring) is in place. 

Priority 1

P
age 135



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

27

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Supporting 
People – 
Contract 
Management and 
Governance

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Council’s Supporting People approach is delivered through two community based 
support contracts. The model of service provision has changed, with the objective to provide 
flexible community based support to enable service users to maintain their own 
accommodation and have a stable home life.

The review will seek to establish whether there are effective arrangements in place, 
compliant with the requirements of the Contract Management Framework (including 
governance, performance management, monitoring and reporting – i.e. assessing the 
impact of the contracts and the outcomes/preventions/etc.).

Priority 1

Alternative 
Provision School 
(APS) 

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

There are three Alternative Provision Schools in Gloucestershire (Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury, Gloucester and Forest and Stroud and Cotswold).  In the last two years these 
schools have become independent providers and are now Local Authority maintained 
schools in their own right.  They are in receipt of base funding, top-up funding per pupil plus 
additional funding for procuring provision through other providers.

The LA commissions a set number of places for pupils that are excluded from mainstream 
education. This audit will review the financial management and governance processes in 
place at one of the APSs to provide assurance that the funds are being spent appropriately 
on the pupils and for the purposes intended.

Priority 2

P
age 136



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

28

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Children in Care 
– Intensive 
Service 
Development 
Project 

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Consultancy

The Agency budget is currently overspent. A project has been set up in Verto (the Council’s 
Project Management System) under ‘Children in Care’ where an entirely new approach to 
the use of external residential care is being planned as well as what the associated partner 
contributions should be, i.e. Education (Dedicated Schools Grant – DSG), Health (NHS) and 
Social Care. One of the project streams is Intensive Recovery Intervention Service (IRIS) 
with the focus of ‘better support for our most vulnerable young people’. 

The plan will be to develop a more joined up approach to supporting children and young 
people with the most complex needs, to help the young people to stay local and have 
access to required support. As at 01/02/2017 Cabinet has resolved to:

 Approve the proposal to develop an Intensive Intervention Service for Young People; 
and  

 Authorise the Commissioning Director, Children and Families, in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People and Strategic Commissioning, 
to enter into a formal joint funding agreement with Gloucestershire Clinical 
Commissioning Group, if required, to invest in the Intensive Intervention Service.

Internal Audit has been requested to continue to provide an independent challenge and 
assurance role throughout the course of the project.

Priority 2

P
age 137



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

29

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Recoupment Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Children with Special Educational Needs (SEN) can be placed in mainstream or special 
schools out-of-county due to inadequate/insufficient provision being available in-county.  
Where this occurs:

 GCC still has responsibility to pay for the cost of the out-of-county education and are 
invoiced for this by the other local authorities (OLAs);  

 OLA also place children with SEN within Gloucestershire schools, which generates 
income for GCC.  However this is at a lower volume, when compared to 
Gloucestershire’s out-of-county placements; and 

 As at February 2017, the approximate number of placements out-of-county was 70 
compared to approximately 40 placements from OLAs placed within Gloucestershire.

This audit will review the systems and procedures in place for recoupment (both from OLAs 
and to OLAs) to ensure that all income due is realised and that costs incurred are valid and 
accurate.

Priority 2

P
age 138



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

30

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Section 17 (Non 
Auriga spend)

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Auriga is an organisation that has expertise in ‘grant giving and help’ schemes, specialising 
in working with local authorities and managing funds on their behalf.  Auriga’s corporate 
schemes are individually tailored, enabling them to work in partnership with the local 
authority to reduce administration costs and help organisations meet their own corporate 
objectives.

Children and Families teams and Referral and Assessment teams can provide support for 
families by using the Section 17 budget where the families would be eligible for this. This 
budget was overspent by over 100% within 2015/16 and is forecast to overspend in 
2016/17. 

This audit will review all Section 17 spend that does not go through Auriga (goods are 
procured through Auriga but services are procured by the Teams themselves).  A sample of 
Teams will be selected where the systems and processes for procuring the services will be 
reviewed to provide assurance that spending decisions are soundly based, authorised, 
quality assured and appropriately coded to identify the nature of the spend and whether the 
spend is in relation to over 11s or under 11s.

Priority 2

P
age 139



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

31

Communities 

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Administration 
Hub 

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Administration Hub is responsible for collecting and banking the income due to the 
Council in relation to a number of Highway related activities such as:

 Removal of trees from owners property which is encroaching onto the Highways; 

 Issuing licences for skips and scaffolding which is to be sited on the Highways; 

 Developer contributions and 

 Disabled space markings etc.

In 2015/16 the procedures within the Hub were subject to review which identified a 
significant breakdown in the process which resulted in significant delays and income not 
being collected and where it was collected not being banked in a timely manner. As a 
consequence management introduced a number of improvement actions designed to 
ensure this could not be repeated. This audit will review the current processes to ensure that 
the new arrangements are operating effectively.

Priority 1

Fleet 
Management

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) operates a fleet of vehicles to help deliver its aims 
and objectives. This is approximately split between:

 126 vehicles operated by Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS); and

 90 vehicles operated by other services.

The servicing / maintenance of these vehicles are undertaken at the Tri-service workshops. 
This audit will evaluate the effectiveness of the arrangements established by GCC to ensure 
its vehicle fleet continues to operate in an effective and safe manner.

Priority 1

P
age 140



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

32

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Gfirst LEP – 
Managing 
Conflicts of 
Interest

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

In June 2011, the Secretary of State granted Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) status to 
Gfirst Ltd. The government has made various funding streams available (e.g. Growing 
Places £8.4m, Local Growth Deal £77m 2016/2021) where the LEP will be heavily involved 
in the decision making process as to how the money is subsequently spent. All of the 
funding is paid to GCC in the first instance as the Accountable Body and due to the high risk 
to the Council from this role it is important that the governance arrangements within Gfirst 
Ltd are robust. This audit will review policies and procedures for managing conflicts of 
interest and related party transactions for LEP Board members and company officers.

Priority 1

Gloucestershire 
Fire and Rescue 
Service (GFRS) 
– Health and 
Safety 
Management

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 (HSWA) applies to all activities of GFRS in its role 
as an employer of Fire and Rescue Service staff. HSWA requires employers to ensure the 
health, safety and welfare at work of their employees and that their operations do not 
adversely affect the health and safety of other people.

This audit will review the GFRS health and safety arrangements in place to mitigate the risk 
of injury to personnel and to consider the efficacy of the governance arrangements for 
incident recording, investigation (and actions), monitoring and reporting.

Priority 1

GFRS – 
Business 
Continuity 
Management

Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

The Civil Contingencies Act 2004 requires all local authorities to have Business Continuity 
Management (BCM) arrangements in place, designed to ensure that as far as possible it can 
continue to operate the critical elements of the service in the event of disruption such as 
power loss, flooded premises or high staff absence. This audit will evaluate the effectiveness 
of the arrangements including a review of generic and departmental plans to ensure that 
they are appropriate, realistic and up to date.

Priority 1

P
age 141



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

33

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Highways and 
Transportation 
Services 
Contract

Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

In December 2013, the Council awarded a managed services contract to AMEY for the 
provision of a number of highways and transportation services from 1st April 2014. The 
contract is for a five year period with options to extend up to a maximum duration of 11 
years – value circa £150m - £450m. During 2017/2018, the Council will make a decision on 
whether to take up the option to extend the contract from April 2019 or to consider 
alternative methods of service provision from that date. 

Depending upon the outcome this will help to direct internal audit resources for 2017/18 and 
2018/19 in relation to this contract, to the highest risk areas which will be agreed with 
management at the relevant time.

Priority 1

Invoice 
Verification – 
Integrated 
Transport Unit 
(ITU)

Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

The Council has a statutory duty to provide home to school transport for “entitled” students 
i.e. those travelling over two miles to their nearest school if under eight years old or those 
travelling over three miles if 8 years old or over, together with a number of exceptions as 
defined by policy. Furthermore, the 1985 Transport Act provided local authorities with the 
option to fund local bus services that are not provided on a commercial basis by transport 
providers and are deemed as “socially necessary”. The current annual cost of Home to 
School Transport is £12.5m and the annual cost of providing socially necessary local bus 
services is £1.5m (including Park and Ride). Individual contracts are awarded by the 
Integrated Transport Unit (ITU).  The ITU processes circa 1,000 Invoices on a monthly basis 
and this audit will review the checking and authorisation processes established within the 
ITU to ensure that only bona-fide invoices are processed and for the correct value under the 
contract.

Priority 1

P
age 142



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

34

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Section 106 
Agreements – 
Bond Policy

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Legally binding agreements can be made between developers, landowners, local authorities 
and other affected parties. These agreements are used to secure planning obligations and 
are referred to as Section 106 Agreements designed to help mitigate the effects of the 
development upon the infrastructure and the services the Council is responsible for 
delivering.  The Council’s policy requires developers to provide a performance bond either in 
the form of a cash deposit or a financial guarantee in case the obligations are not delivered.  

This audit will review the administration of these bonds and compliance with Council policy 
for this area.

Priority 1

Streetworks Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

It will be necessary for utility companies to gain access to the highway in order to install / 
repair their assets. The streetworks team will receive and process the applications and 
following completion of the work, officers will inspect the highway to ensure that this has 
been reinstated to the required standard. Income received from these applications is in the 
region of £1m per annum. 

This audit will review the processes to ensure that the income is received and the re-
inspection process is robust and being undertaken.

Priority 1

Community 
Transport

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Council provides grants of £500k and awards contracts circa £200k to Voluntary and 
Community based organisations to help with the provision of community transport 
throughout the county. In recent years several of these organisations have ceased operation 
resulting in only a small number of organisations continuing to deliver this service. 

This audit will review the governance and financial arrangements for a sample of 
organisations who receive funding from the Council.

Priority 2

P
age 143



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

35

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Section 38 and 
278 Agreements

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Under section 38 of the Highways Act 1980, the Council (as local highway authority) can 
enter into a legal agreement with a developer to adopt a highway provided the highway has 
been constructed to a specified standard and to the satisfaction of the local highway 
authority.

In addition under section 278 the Council can enter into a legal agreement with a developer 
(in order to facilitate development) for the developer to either pay for, or make alterations or 
improvements to, the highway. The Council levies fees on the developer with an income 
budget of £750k in place for 2016/17.

This audit will review the administration of the agreements to ensure that the income due is 
collected on time, the fee setting policy and  how any carry forward surplus of funds 
received from developers is accounted for.

Priority 2

Internal Audit Certification 

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Bus Subsidy 
Ring-Fenced 
(Revenue) Grant

Grant Certification Gloucestershire County Council is in receipt of revenue grant income of £458,365 in respect 
of the Bus Subsidy Ring-Fenced (Revenue) Grant for 2016/17. This audit will provide 
assurance to the Chief Executive and Chief Internal Auditor who are required to confirm to 
the Department for Transport that, in all significant respects, the conditions of the Specific 
Grant Determination have been complied with.

Priority 1

P
age 144



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

36

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Troubled 
Families Grant

Grant Certification The Families First (payment-by-result) programme was introduced in a renewed drive to 
help improve the outcomes for troubled families. March 2012 saw Phase One of the roll out 
of the new, expanded Troubled Families Programme. Phase Two of the roll out, which 
Gloucestershire County Council signed up to, began in January 2015 and this programme 
was then rolled out nationally in April 2015. Within the expanded programme there are six 
eligibility criteria areas: Education; Crime and anti-social behaviour; Worklessness / risk of 
financial exclusion; Children who need help; Domestic Abuse; and Health. Families need to 
meet at least two of the eligibility areas to enable them to be included in the programme. 
Each local authority has developed an outcomes plan that details what outcomes have to be 
met within each eligibility area. 

In order for a payment-by-result (PBR) claim to be made for a family, that family needs to 
have either met all the relevant outcomes that relate to each area they were experiencing, or 
to have found and maintained paid employment. Claims where families have met all relevant 
outcomes are listed as significant and sustained progress (SSP) and claims for the 
maintenance of paid employment are continuous employment.

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) produced a Financial 
Framework for local authorities. This document makes clear that PBR is the subject of self-
declaration. Previously the Families First Team had to submit claims in two windows at 
designated times during the year. However, the process has now changed to allow claims to 
be made at the point which the family meets all the necessary criteria.

This audit will provide assurance that those families forming any PBR claims met the grant 
conditions and criteria outlined by the claim type and that there was sufficient evidence to 
support the outcomes recorded.

Priority 1

P
age 145



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

37

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Community 
Capacity Grant

Grant Certification In 2013/14 and 2014/15 Gloucestershire County Council received total grant income of 
£2,748,458 in respect of Community Capacity Grants of which £2,328,078 has been carried 
forward into 2016/17.This audit will provide assurance to the Chief Executive and Chief 
Internal Auditor who are required to confirm to the Department for Health that, in all 
significant respects, the conditions of the Specific Grant Determination(s) have been 
complied with.

Priority 1

Disabled 
Facilities Grant

Grant Certification Gloucestershire County Council is in receipt of grant income of £4,681,764 in respect of the 
Disabled Facilities Grant for 2016/17. This audit will provide assurance to the Chief 
Executive and Chief Internal Auditor who are required to confirm to the Department for 
Communities and Local Government that, in all significant respects, the conditions of the 
Specific Grant Determination have been complied with.

Priority 1

Fire and Rescue 
Authorities 
Grants

Grant Certification In 2011/12 and 2014/15 Gloucestershire County Council received income of £2,522,361 in 
respect of Fire and Recue Authorities Capital Grants of which £903,038 has been carried 
forward into 2016/17.This audit will provide assurance to the Chief Finance Officer who is 
required to confirm to the Department for Communities and Local Government / Home 
Office that, in all significant respects, the conditions of the Specific Grant Determination(s) 
have been complied with.

Priority 1

Highways 
Maintenance 
Challenge Fund

Grant Certification Gloucestershire County Council is in receipt of grant income of £455,000 in respect of the 
Highways Maintenance Challenge Fund for 2016/17. This audit will provide assurance to the 
Chief Executive and Chief Internal Auditor who are required to confirm to the Department for 
Transport that, in all significant respects, the conditions of the Specific Grant Determination 
have been complied with.

Priority 1

P
age 146



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

38

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Local Authority 
Major Project 
Grant 
(Elmbridge)

Grant Certification Gloucestershire County Council is in receipt of grant income of £6,654,616 in respect of the 
Local Authority Major Project Grant for 2016/17. This audit will provide assurance to the 
Chief Executive and Chief Internal Auditor who are required to confirm to the Department for 
Transport that, in all significant respects, the conditions of the Specific Grant Determination 
have been complied with.

Priority 1

Local Growth 
Fund

Grant Certification Gloucestershire County Council is in receipt of grant income of £23,079,605 in respect of 
the Local Growth Fund for 2016/17. This audit will provide assurance to the Chief Executive 
and Chief Internal Auditor who are required to confirm to the Department for Communities 
and Local Government that, in all significant respects, the conditions of the Specific Grant 
Determination have been complied with.

Priority 1

Local Transport 
Capital Block 
Funding

Grant Certification Gloucestershire County Council is in receipt of grant income of £20,208,937 in respect of 
the Local Transport Capital Block Funding for 2016/17. This audit will provide assurance to 
the Chief Executive and Chief Internal Auditor who are required to confirm to the 
Department for Transport that, in all significant respects, the conditions of the Specific Grant 
Determination have been complied with.

Priority 1

Pothole Action 
Fund

Grant Certification Gloucestershire County Council is in receipt of grant income of £1,006,000 in respect of the 
Pothole Action Fund for 2016/17. This audit will provide assurance to the Chief Executive 
and Chief Internal Auditor who are required to confirm to the Department for Transport that, 
in all significant respects, the conditions of the Specific Grant Determination have been 
complied with.

Priority 1

Social Care 
(Capital) Grant

Grant Certification In 2015/16 Gloucestershire County Council received grant income of £1,409,000 in respect 
of Social Care Grant of which £1,287,700, has been carried forward into 2016/17.This audit 
will provide assurance to the Chief Executive and Chief Internal Auditor who are required to 
confirm to the Department for Health that, in all significant respects, the conditions of the 
Specific Grant Determination(s) have been complied with.

Priority 1

P
age 147



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

39

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Transforming 
Care Grant

Grant Certification In 2014/15 Gloucestershire County Council received grant income of £200,000 in respect of 
Transforming Care Grant. No expenditure was incurred during 2014/15 or 2015/16 and the 
Department of Health has confirmed in June 2016 that the Council may reimburse a 
Provider for services delivered, and requested an update or end of project report once this is 
completed. This audit will provide assurance to the Chief Executive and Chief Internal 
Auditor who are required to confirm to the Department for Health that, in all significant 
respects, the conditions of the Specific Grant Determination(s) have been complied with.

Priority 1

Counter Fraud Activity

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Fraud 
Investigation / 
Detection 

To support the 
Annual 
Governance 
Statement 

To continue to develop and implement the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
arrangements based on latest best practice. This also includes an allocation for increasing 
the profile and awareness of anti–fraud, conducting pro-active anti-fraud reviews, 
undertaking investigations, assessing the council’s response to the Home Office pilots on 
the threat serious and organised crime poses to publicly procured services in Local 
Authorities (LAs) and how to respond to that threat, and administering the Council’s 
Confidential Reporting Hotline. 

This allocation is also to comply with Local Government Transparency Code 2015 regarding 
fraud reporting.

Priority 1

P
age 148



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

40

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Cabinet Office
National Fraud 
Initiative (NFI)

To support the 
Annual 
Governance 
Statement

To continue to co-ordinate activity as part of the NFI (a national data matching exercise that 
compares data/records) and to facilitate  the investigation of data matching reports produced 
by the Cabinet Office, comparing records held within the authority for payroll, pensions, care 
home residents, insurance, creditors, blue badges and concessionary fares with records 
held by a wide range of public bodies, including records held by the Department for Work 
and Pensions (DWP), Immigration Office and Metropolitan Police, ensuring that these 
matches are investigated promptly and thoroughly, and results reported accordingly.
 

Priority 1

Fraud Risk 
Management

To support the 
Annual 
Governance 
Statement

The CIPFA Counter Fraud Centre has issued guidance on actions to be taken to ‘Manage 
the Risk of Fraud and Corruption’ within an organisation. This allocation is to continue to self 
assess against the criteria set out in the guidance in order to direct/prioritise our counter 
fraud audit resources/activity accordingly.  

Priority 1

P
age 149



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18 Appendix 1

41

Management Activity to Support the Audit Opinion

Activity Reason for Activity Outline Scope Priority

Transformational 
Change

Supporting 
transformational 
change

Internal Audit to support the Business with major transformational change programmes / 
projects.

Priority 1

Annual 
Governance 
Statement

Statutory 
Requirement

This allocation is to lead on the development and implementation of the governance 
assurance framework and to produce the 2017/18 Annual Governance Statement. 

In addition, Internal Audit review, on an annual basis, the effectiveness of the management 
of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) to provide assurance over the 
governance and administration of pension funds, and pension fund investment 
management, which feeds into the AGS.

Priority 1

Audit and 
Governance 
Committee / 
Member / Officer 
and CFO 
Reporting

Management 
activity to support 
the audit opinion 

This allocation covers Member and Officer reporting procedures, mainly to the Audit and 
Governance Committee and CoMT, plan formulation and monitoring, and regular reporting 
to and meeting with, the Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee and the Director of 
Strategic Finance.  

Priority 1

Provision of 
Internal Control / 
General Advice

To support an 
effective control 
environment

This allocation allows auditors to facilitate the provision of risk and control advice which is 
regularly requested by officers within the authority, including maintained school based staff.

Priority 1

P
age 150



Internal Audit Plan 2017/18

42

Activity Reason for Activity Outline Scope Priority

Quality 
Assurance and 
Improvement 
Programme 
(QAIP)
Includes the 
annual review of 
the effectiveness 
of Internal Audit 
and the external 
assessment 

Statutory 
Requirement

To support the 
AGS

The Accounts and Audit  Regulations 2015 states that Internal Audit should conform to 
‘proper practices’ and it is advised that proper practice for internal audit is currently set out in 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 2016. 

This allocation is to undertake the required annual self assessment and when required, 
commission and deliver an external quality assessment, against the standards. 

Priority 1

External Working 
Groups 

Activity to support 
the audit opinion

Attendance / work in relation to the Counties Chief Auditor Network (National Group), 
Midland Counties and Districts Chief Internal Auditors Group, and the Fraud and ICT 
Groups to enable networking and to share good practice.

Priority 1

External Audit 
Liaison

Management 
activity to support 
the audit opinion

The External Auditor and the Chief Internal Auditor regularly meet to discuss plans and audit 
findings, to ensure that a “managed audit” approach is followed in relation to the provision of 
internal and external audit services. 

Priority 1

Carry Forwards Audit Activity 
outstanding

This allocation provides for the completion of various 2016/2017 audits which require 
finalising.

Priority 1

Internal Working 
Groups

Activity to support 
the audit opinion

Internal Audit is frequently asked to nominate representatives for working groups to advise 
on risk and control. 

Priority 2

Recommendation 
Monitoring

Activity to support 
the audit opinion

Whilst it is management’s responsibility to manage the risks associated with their 
outcomes/objectives, this allocation enables Internal Audit to monitor management’s 
progress with the implementation of high priority recommendations.

Priority 2

P
age 151



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Audit and Governance Committee
Date: 7th April 2017 Agenda No:

Title of Report: Internal Audit (IA) activity progress report 2016/2017

Purpose of Report: To inform Members of the progress of Internal Audit activity in relation 
to the 2016/2017 Internal Audit Programme and provide a progress 
report in relation to those audits undertaken during the period January 
to March 2017.

Recommendations: It is recommended that the Committee:

1. Notes the amendments to and progress against the 2016/2017 
Internal Audit Programme; 

2. Requests senior management attendance at the next meeting of 
the Committee to provide an update on the actions taken in 
relation to the recommendations made in the Recruitment and 
Promotion limited assurance report; and 

3. Notes the assurance opinions provided in relation to the 
effectiveness of the Council’s control environment comprising risk 
management, control and governance arrangements as a result of 
the internal audit activity completed to date.

Officer (s) Contact: Theresa Mortimer: Head of Audit Risk Assurance Shared Service and 
Gloucestershire County Council’s Insurance Services. 
Tel: 01452 328883
Theresa.Mortimer@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Jo Walker: Director - Strategic Finance 
Tel no: 01452 328469.
joanna.walker@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Key Risks Failure to deliver an effective Internal Audit Service will prevent an 
independent, objective assurance opinion to be provided to those 
charged with governance that the key risks associated with the 
achievement of the Council’s objectives are being adequately 
controlled. 

Page 153

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Theresa.Mortimer@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:joanna.walker@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY  
PROGRESS REPORT 

2016/2017

Page 155



(1) Introduction

All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 1972 Local 
Government Act (S151) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The latter states that 
a relevant authority “must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness 
of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector 
internal auditing standards or guidance”. The Internal Audit Service is provided by Audit Risk 
Assurance under a Shared Service agreement between Gloucestershire County Council, 
Stroud District Council and Gloucester City Council and carries out the work required to 
satisfy this legislative requirement and reports its findings and conclusions to management 
and to this Committee.

The guidance accompanying the Regulations recognises the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) as representing “proper internal audit practices”. The standards define 
the way in which the Internal Audit Service should be established and undertakes its 
functions. 

(2) Responsibilities 

Management are responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk management 
processes, control systems (financial and non financial) and governance arrangements. 

Internal Audit plays a key role in providing independent assurance and advising the 
organisation that these arrangements are in place and operating effectively.

Internal Audit is not the only source of assurance for the Council. There are a range of 
external audit and inspection agencies as well as management processes which also 
provide assurance and these are set out in the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance 
and its Annual Governance Statement.  

(3) Purpose of this Report

One of the key requirements of the standards is that the Chief Internal Auditor should 
provide progress reports on internal audit activity to those charged with governance. This 
report summarises:

 the progress against the 2016/2017 Internal Audit Programme, including the 
assurance opinions on the effectiveness of risk management and control processes;

 the outcomes of the Internal Audit activity during the period January to March 2017; 
and

 special investigations/counter fraud activity.

Page 156



Appendix 1

2

(4) Progress against the 2016/2017 Internal Audit Programme, including the 
assurance opinions on risk and control

The schedule provided at Appendix 1 provides the summary of 2016/17 audits which have 
not previously been reported to the Audit and Governance Committee, including one limited 
assurance audit opinion on control.

The schedule provided at Appendix 2 contains a list of all of the audit activity undertaken 
during 2016/2017, which includes, where relevant, the assurance opinions on the 
effectiveness of risk management arrangements and control processes in place to manage 
those risks and the dates where a summary of the activities outcomes has been presented 
to the Audit and Governance Committee. Explanations of the meaning of these opinions are 
shown below. 

Assurance 
levels

Risk Identification Maturity Control Environment

Substantial Risk Managed
Service area fully aware of the risks relating to the area 
under review and the impact that these may have on 
service delivery, other service areas, finance, reputation, 
legal, the environment client/customer/partners, and staff.  
All key risks are accurately reported and monitored in line 
with the Corporate Risk Management Strategy. 

 System Adequacy – Robust 
framework of controls ensures 
that there is a high likelihood of 
objectives being achieved

 Control Application – Controls are 
applied continuously or with minor 
lapses

Satisfactory
Risk Aware
Service area has an awareness of the risks relating to the 
area under review and the impact that these may have 
on service delivery, other service areas, finance, 
reputation, legal, the environment, 
client/customer/partners, and staff, however some key 
risks are not being accurately reported and monitored in 
line with the Corporate Risk Management Strategy.

 System Adequacy – Sufficient 
framework of key controls for 
objectives to be achieved but, 
control framework could be 
stronger

 Control Application – Controls are 
applied but with some lapses

Limited
Risk Naïve 
Due to an absence of accurately and regularly 
reporting and monitoring of the key risks in line with 
the Corporate Risk Management Strategy, the service 
area has not demonstrated an satisfactory 
awareness of the risks relating to the area under 
review and the impact that these may have on 
service delivery, other service areas, finance, 
reputation, legal, the environment, 
client/customer/partners and staff.  

 System Adequacy – Risk of 
objectives not being achieved 
due to the absence of key 
internal controls

 Control Application – 
Significant breakdown in the 
application of control

Page 157



Appendix 1

3

(4a) Summary of Internal Audit Assurance Opinions on Risk and Control

The pie charts provided below show the summary of the risk and control assurance opinions 
provided within each category of opinion i.e. substantial, satisfactory and limited in relation to 
the audit activity undertaken during the period April 2016 to March 2017.

Page 158



Appendix 1

4

(4b) Limited Control Assurance Opinions 

Where audit activity record that a limited assurance opinion on control has been provided, 
the Audit and Governance Committee may request Senior Management attendance to the 
next meeting of the Committee to provide an update as to their actions taken to address the 
risks and associated recommendations identified by Internal Audit. 

(4c) Audit Activity where a Limited Assurance Opinion has been provided on 
Control

During the period January to March 2017, one audit review has been provided with a limited 
assurance opinion on control which relates to Recruitment and Promotion. 

It is important to note that whilst a limited assurance opinion has been provided in this 
instance, management have responded positively to the recommendations made and 
actions are being taken to address them.

(4d) Satisfactory Control Assurance Opinions

Where audit activity record that a satisfactory assurance opinion on control has been 
provided, where recommendations have been made to reflect some improvements in 
control, the Committee can take assurance that improvement actions have been agreed with 
management to address these.

(4e) Internal Audit Recommendations

During the period January 2017 to March 2017 Internal Audit made, in total, 22 
recommendations to improve the control environment, 9 of these being high priority 
recommendations (100% of these being accepted by management) and 13 being medium 
priority recommendations (100% accepted by management). 

The Committee can take assurance that all high priority recommendations will remain under 
review by Internal Audit, by obtaining regular management updates, until the required action 
has been fully completed. 

(4f) Risk Assurance Opinions

There was one limited assurance opinion on risk during the period January to March 2017 
which related to Recruitment and Promotion. Where limited assurance opinions on risk are 
provided, the reports are given to the appropriate risk champion to ensure that the risks 
highlighted by Internal Audit are placed on the service area’s risk register. The monitoring of 
the implementation of the recommendations is then owned by the relevant manager and 
helps to further embed risk management into the day to day management, risk monitoring 
and reporting processes. 

In addition, the Shared Service Senior Risk Management Advisor is provided with the 
Internal Audit reports where a limited assurance opinion is provided, to enable the 
prioritisation of risk management support.

Page 159



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

5

Completed Internal Audit Activity during the period January to March 2017

Summary of Limited Assurance Opinions on Control

Service Area: Core Council

Audit Activity: Recruitment and Promotion

Background
Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) has a Starting Salary Policy, although at the time of 
the audit it only covered the promotion of internal staff.  The policy explains the principles 
that apply to existing employees who apply and are offered a post at the same grade, are 
promoted, or their existing post is re-graded.

Scope
The objectives of the audit were to:

 Ensure that appropriate policies have been adhered to with regard to:

o New starters;

o Promotion and re-grading of existing staff;

 Ensure that the appointment process is being complied with and all documentation is 
retained on personnel files; and

 Ensure that files sent for scanning have been scanned, processed and stored to the 
correct personnel file and that personnel documentation is stored securely.

Risk Assurance - Limited 

Control Assurance – Limited

Key findings
Policy

It was established that although there was a Starting Salary Policy, at the start of the audit, it 
only applied to existing employees who are promoted/change position and does not cover 
new employees appointed to the Council.  The principle of the policy is that an employee’s 
starting salary should be at the bottom of the relevant grade (providing this results in at least 
one increment if their previous grade overlaps with the new position grade) or, at the 
manager’s discretion, one scale point higher.  If a recruiting manager wants to appoint at a 
higher salary than one additional increment, a business case should be submitted and 
approved at no lower than Director level. There are separate arrangements in Children’s 
Social Care Services which apply to new and existing social workers, senior practitioners, 
deputy team managers and team managers. 

Page 160



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

6

These arrangements were outside of the scope of this review.

Testing was undertaken on a sample of staff that had either received a change in salary or 
had changed position through promotion, re-grading, etc. between July 2015 and July 2016. 
Twenty-six employees had received remuneration of more than two increments from the 
bottom of the grade or from their previous salary scale point, 13 of which were in compliance 
with policy.

Additional increments were given in respect of the remaining 13 cases, for which Director 
approval should have been sought prior to appointment.

As previously stated, no policy existed at this point in relation to the staring salary of new 
employees to the Council.  Some testing was undertaken to establish the starting salaries of 
external recruits, which showed that some of the sample were also appointed above the 
bottom of the grade. As a result, a new policy has now been produced which addresses 
starting salaries of all appointments, regarding both internal and external candidates. 

Scanning of files

GCC’s Scanning Policy states that “Files sent to a third party for scanning must be 
transmitted securely and information must be appropriately managed and accounted for at 
all times”. Testing was undertaken, which identified that there had been no confirmation that 
all files sent for scanning had been received by the scanning company and scanned 
accordingly. There was also no confirmation that all documentation had been scanned and 
saved to the correct file. A further improvement was identified in that more information needs 
to be included when documents are downloaded onto SmartOpen (personnel records 
database), once scanned, in order to enable staff to search for particular documents.

Conclusion
At the time of the audit, there was a need for a policy covering the starting salary of external 
applicants, as well as for existing staff.  It is pleasing to report that the policy has now been 
developed and staff have been made aware of its contents via managersbrief on the 20th 
March 2017. The limited assurance opinion was provided in part due to the lack of policy in 
place at the time the audit was undertaken. With regard to the scanning of personnel 
records, the process will be reviewed to ensure compliance with GCC’s Scanning Policy and 
Data Protection requirements.

Management Actions
Management have responded positively to the recommendations made in respect of the 
above issues identified.

Page 161



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

7

Summary of Satisfactory Assurance Opinions on Control

Service Area: Core Council

Audit Activity: Business Service Centre (BSC) Payroll – Limited Assurance 
Follow-up

Background 
In April 2014 the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) was revised. The new scheme 
known as LGPS14 is a career average pension scheme rather than a final salary scheme.  
Internal Audit undertook a review in 2015/16 of the implementation of the new legislation by 
the Business Service Centre (BSC) which is responsible for providing payroll services to 
2/3rds (approximately 12,000) of all active members. The original report was issued in 
December 2015 and raised 21 recommendations 11 of which were classified as high priority 
and implementation was required to ensure the:- 

 accuracy of data contained in the year end career average revalued earnings (CARE) 
report;

 accuracy of data provided to Pensions Administration on termination of an individual’s 
contract; and

 interception of errors prior to payment.

Limited assurance was given for both risk management and the control environment within 
the 2015/16 review and as a result, a follow-up audit was planned to provide assurance that 
the necessary improvements have been made.

Scope
To review progress made on the implementation of the 2015/16 recommendations.

Risk Assurance - Satisfactory

Control Assurance – Satisfactory

Key findings
It is pleasing to report that the BSC have worked hard to address the various original 
recommendations and most have now been successfully implemented. However, there were 
errors in the year end CARE report sent to Pension administration in April 2017, which 
subsequently came to light and were corrected. The reason for this was that the BSC relies 
heavily on the expertise of one member of staff; this meant that although year end CARE 
reports were checked, errors were not identified. It was recommended that the BSC should 
train other members of staff to this level of expertise to ensure that checks and balances are 
robust.

Page 162



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

8

Outstanding actions included:

 Revising management guidance on the Purchase of Additional Leave Scheme (PALS);

 Reviewing the way in which PALS operates with a view to making it more cost 
effective; and

 Developing a Service Level Agreement (SLA) between the BSC and Strategic 
Finance, to include Bankers Automated Clearing Services (BACS) checks and 
exception and variance reports and subsequently reflecting this in contracts with 
external employers.

Pension Administration used to extract information directly from SAP for leavers whose 
payroll was administered by the BSC. From 1 May 2016 this task passed to the BSC. 
Pension Administration now relies on the BSC to supply accurate information in respect of 
leavers, as they do with all other employers. Pension Administration carry out 
reasonableness checks on the information provided. As part of this follow-up review, Internal 
Audit has identified that instructions given to BSC staff completing leaver forms on how to 
calculate the final salary under the pre-LGPS14 scheme require improvements to mitigate 
against the risk of inaccurate pension calculations.

Conclusion
The response to the original audit review has been positive. In undertaking the follow up 
review Internal Audit noted that three of the original recommendations had yet to be 
implemented and these recommendations were restated in the report. With the exception of 
the development of an SLA between the BSC and Strategic Finance, which is ongoing, none 
of them were high priority. In reviewing progress, Internal Audit have made nine new 
recommendations, only one of which is categorised as ‘high’. This relates to the completion 
of the leaver forms, as detailed above. As a result we are pleased to raise the level of 
assurance from limited to satisfactory for risk and control.

Management Actions
Since the follow-up audit took place management have addressed the new 
recommendations:-

 Revising management guidance on the Purchase of Additional Leave Scheme (PALS), 
to accurately reflect the current scheme. A review of the scheme is planned for 
2018/19 which may result in further changes;

 Management have indicated that they have revised procedures; increased training and 
corrected errors identified in the audit report. In respect of leavers, Internal Audit have 
been informed that they have reviewed 10% of leavers forms and found no errors; and

 An overall SLA has been agreed for the for the HR/payroll service. Further work is on-
going to develop a detailed service catalogue and exception and variance reports will 
be considered as part of this.

Page 163



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

9

Service Area: Adults 

Audit Activity: Active Together, Healthy Together and Children’s Activity Fund 
Limited Assurance Follow-up

Background
During 2015/16, Internal Audit undertook a review of the governance, management and 
monitoring arrangements of the Active Together, Healthy Together and Children’s Activity 
Fund grant schemes.  The aim of the review was to seek assurance that the grants had 
been made in line with the criteria of the grant conditions and in compliance with the 
Council’s Accounting Instruction 15 – “Applications for Grant Aid from Outside 
Organisations”.

The findings emanating from the 2015/16 review resulted in a limited assurance opinion in 
respect of the control environment.  As a result, a follow-up audit was planned, to provide 
assurance that the agreed improvements had been made.  Funding for the Healthy Together 
scheme was only available for 2014/15 and therefore was not covered under this follow-up 
audit review.

Scope
The follow-up audit reviewed the recommendations raised and agreed management actions 
from the original audit to establish whether the recommendations had been implemented.  In 
addition, in respect of both the Active Together and Children’s Activity Fund schemes, 
further testing was undertaken:

 To ensure that grant funding allocated during 2016/17 was in accordance with the 
grant conditions criteria and the requirements of Gloucestershire County Council’s 
Accounting Instruction 15; and

 To ensure that, as part of the monitoring arrangements by operational staff, validation 
checks were being undertaken to confirm that the grants awarded had been spent in 
line with the grant criteria.

Risk Assurance - Satisfactory

Control Assurance – Satisfactory

Key findings
The audit review confirmed that five of the eight recommendations from the 2015/16 audit 
have been implemented and a further two have not applied to any applications received to 
date in 2016/17.  The remaining recommendation referred to ensuring that grant applications 
were assessed in accordance with Accounting Instruction 15 in relation to financial checks.  
Audit testing of 2016/17 grants has identified that this is not being complied with.

Page 164



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

10

A sample of 10 Active Together and 13 Children’s Activity Fund applications from the 
2016/17 grants was selected for review and all the projects met the grant criteria in respect 
of the two schemes.  In addition, 12 monitoring reports, which are completed once the 
projects have ended, were reviewed by Internal Audit.  These highlighted that evidence of 
expenditure or the physical assets had been seen for nine of the projects and evidence was 
to be forwarded to GCC for two more.  Paperwork could not be located for the remaining 
project and the assets could not be seen as they had been removed because of safety 
issues.

Although the grant criteria for the schemes was met by all the applications which were 
reviewed, guidelines were not being adhered to by GCC’s Commissioning Officers in respect 
of obtaining evidence of additional funding raised by applicants before releasing the grant 
funding and also obtaining evidence of expenditure when undertaking the monitoring visits.

Conclusion
Whilst the majority of the recommendations from the previous report have been 
implemented, there is still non-compliance with Accounting Instruction 15 in respect of 
financial checks, which has been reiterated to management.  

As a result of the follow-up audit the level of assurance has been raised from limited to 
satisfactory for the control environment.

Management Actions
Management have responded positively to the recommendations made in respect of the 
above issues identified.

Service Area: Communities 

Audit Activity: Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) – Control 
Room Refresh Project

Background
In 2004 the Government decided to replace local fire and rescue control rooms with regional 
control centres.  However in 2010 the regional control centres project was cancelled.

Fire and rescue services were then able to apply to central government for support to 
improve their existing control services, and in 2011 GFRS was awarded a grant of £1.8m 
towards procurement of a new control room system.  The procurement process took place in 
2011, with the contract being awarded in 2012.

The majority of the new control room system was implemented by 2014, with the 
procurement of an integrated command and control system (ICCS) being the last stage of 
the project.

Page 165



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

11

Scope
The objective of the audit was to review the effectiveness of the governance arrangements 
of the ICCS project as well as review the implementation of the project plan and establish 
how effectively the outcomes were achieved.

Risk Assurance - Substantial

Control Assurance - Satisfactory

Key findings
The project was led by a project manager who had responsibility for overseeing the delivery 
of the project and who reported to the project sponsor.  A project team was established, 
under the management of the project manager. Regular progress meetings were held 
between the project manager and project team.  A detailed project plan was produced which 
included key milestones, which were monitored. Any issues highlighted by the project team 
were raised by the project manager with the project sponsor.  Monthly finance meetings 
were held, which moved to quarterly as the project progressed.

Updates on the progress of the project were provided to the Strategic Leadership Team 
(SLT), either verbally at meetings or by providing written reports.  The SLT had ultimate 
responsibility for the project, as the project board and the project sponsor was a member of 
the SLT.  Progress reports on the control room project had to be provided to the Department 
for Communities and Local Government (DCLG), which included a summary of the project 
and projected completion date.  Annual savings of £394,000 were estimated, with a total 
saving of £3.152m between 2013/14 and 2020/21 and reports to the DCLG confirm that the 
savings were achieved in 2013/14 and 2014/15 and were expected to continue to 2020/21.

A risk register for the project, which was dated May 2015, was provided for the audit.  Where 
areas of concern had been highlighted at project team meetings it was noted that 
appropriate risks had been included on the risk register.  The risk register did not include the 
most up-to-date progress details, however an up-to-date risk register has since been 
provided to Internal Audit.

Conclusion
The objective of the project was to upgrade and improve the previous control room system 
and this has been delivered.  However, it took longer than anticipated to complete, due to 
delays in the procurement and installation of the upgrade to the ICCS.

Processes were in place to ensure that the project progress was well-documented and 
monitored. Any issues were raised at an appropriate senior level.  The SLT received regular 
progress updates and summary reports were provided to central government as required. 
However, once a project has closed it can be beneficial to undertake some form of post 
project evaluation to measure the success of the project and identify any lessons to be 
learned for future projects.  A recommendation was made that this review should take place.

Page 166



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

12

Management Actions
Management have responded positively to the recommendation made in respect of the 
above issue identified.

Summary of Substantial Assurance Opinions on Control

Service Area: Children and Families

Audit Activity: Gloucestershire Music - Limited Assurance Follow-up

Background
Gloucestershire Music (GM) is based at the Colwell Centre and provides a music service to 
schools and young people, including whole class tuition and music groups.  Instrument hire 
and repair services are also provided to individuals, including the general public.

In 2015/16 Internal Audit undertook an audit at GM to review the controls in place with 
regard to income, inventory, staffing and data security.  The audit report was issued in July 
2015 and included nine recommendations, five of which were regarded as high priority.  
Satisfactory assurance was given for the risk identification arrangements, however only 
limited assurance could be given for the control environment.  As a result, a follow-up audit 
was planned, to provide assurance that the necessary improvements had been made.

Scope
This follow-up audit reviewed the recommendations raised and agreed management actions 
from the original audit to establish whether the recommendations had been implemented.

Risk Assurance - Substantial

Control Assurance – Substantial

Key findings
The recommendations emanating from the 2015/16 audit covered invalid agreements and 
improvements to recording bank details, income recovery, cash collection, debt 
management, inventory recording and the approach to job evaluation and processes around 
staff expense claims. 

Documentary evidence, where appropriate, in relation to the above was reviewed and it was 
found that all recommendations have now been implemented.  As a result of the follow-up 
audit, in relation to the recommendations from the original audit the level of assurance has 
been raised from limited to substantial for the control environment and from satisfactory to 
substantial for the risk identification arrangements.

Page 167



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

13

Conclusion
The response to the original audit has been positive with internal controls being 
strengthened.  

Management Actions
Management responded positively to the recommendations made in the original audit report 
and as a result no further recommendations were raised in respect of this follow-up audit.

Summary of Consulting Activity, Grant Certification and/or Support Delivered 
where no Opinions are provided

No audit assurance opinion on risk and control are provided in this section as this section 
relates to other audit activity such as statutory Chief Internal Auditor grant certification sign 
off and consultancy work i.e. where internal audit advise management on the risk and control 
environment in relation to new and emerging risks, projects, systems and processes to help 
‘design out’ risk at the developmental stage. 

Service Area: Grant Certification

Audit Activity: Bus Subsidy Ring-Fenced (Revenue) Grant

Background
On 16th April 2015 a letter was issued by the Department for Transport (DfT) confirming the 
payment of £458,365 to Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) as a grant to cover the period 
1st April 2015 to 31st March 2016.The purpose of the grant is to provide support to local 
authorities in England towards expenditure lawfully incurred or to be incurred by them.

The letter stated that the DfT reserve the right to request data/information from Local 
Authorities and other Local Decision Bodies on the way in which devolved funds have been 
used and the cost of the services/infrastructure bought with the funds. 

Scope
The Bus Service Operators Grant (BSOG) may only be used for the purpose of supporting 
bus services (including community transport services under a section 19 permit), or for the 
provision of infrastructure supporting such services in that authority’s, or neighbouring 
authority’s, area. The Chief Executive and the Chief Internal Auditor are required to return to 
DfT a declaration by 30th September 2016 in the following terms: 

“To the best of our knowledge and belief, and having carried out appropriate investigations 
and checks, in our opinion, in all significant respects, the conditions attached to the Local 
Authority Bus Subsidy Ring-Fenced (Revenue) Grant Determination 2015/16 have been 
complied with.”

Page 168



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

14

Key findings
 £321,231.57 has been attributed and coded within SAP (the Council’s financial 

management system) to fuel costs to bus operators for financial year 2015/16;

 Management have advised Internal Audit (IA) that the balance of the grant has been 
attributed to supporting bus contracts for provision of Rural and Urban Bus Services 
during the financial year 2015/16; and

 Due to changes in personnel within the Integrated Transport Unit the following 
conditions have not been met:

o Condition 2, Annex A of the Local Authority Bus Subsidy Ring-Fenced 
(Revenue) Grant Determination 2015/16 requiring the grant declaration to be 
signed and sent to DfT by 30th September 2016; and

o Condition 3, Annex A of the Local Authority Bus Subsidy Ring-Fenced 
(Revenue) Grant Determination 2015/16, which required GCC to report how 
the devolved funds have been used by completing and returning a survey to 
the DfT and uploading the information onto their website. 

This oversight has been acknowledged by the DfT and is unlikely to result in any further 
actions.

Conclusions
Based on discussions with officers and a review of records maintained by the Council, we 
have gained assurance that the funding has been correctly used for purposes outlined in 
condition 1 of the grant determination. However, it is acknowledged that conditions 2 and 3 
of the grant determination have not been achieved due to changes in personnel within the 
Integrated Transport Unit. The DfT have been notified of this. It is important that for the 
financial year 2016/17 and any future years, that the Council can demonstrate compliance 
with the conditions relating to this grant.

Management Actions
Management have agreed to work with Strategic Finance to monitor expenditure more 
closely to reconcile payments as required by funding providers in a timely manner.

Summary of Special Investigations/Counter Fraud Activities

Current Status
The Counter Fraud Team within Internal Audit (IA) has received 14 new referrals in 2016/17 
to date, and 10 cases referred in 2015/16 and 2014/15 continue to be investigated in 
2016/17. Six of these have now been completed, all of which have previously been reported 
to the Audit and Governance Committee. In addition, IA continues to be involved in counter 
fraud work concerning staff travel, and following-up irregularities with management as they 
arise. 

Page 169



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

15

Internal Audit engages with the National Anti Fraud Network (NAFN) and disseminates fraud 
alerts to the appropriate service area. Two recent alerts included unsolicited invoices to 
schools, for services not necessarily received or were over priced. On checking within the 
Council’s accounts it was noted that some schools in Gloucestershire had made payments 
to the two companies in question. Internal Audit therefore took steps to ensure that schools 
were notified about this fraud risk through the appropriate channels.

New referrals in 2016/17

Nine of the cases received in 2016/17 have been closed, five of which have previously been 
reported to Audit and Governance Committee. Of the other four cases now closed one 
involved the misuse of a direct payment and steps have taken to recover the sum involved; a 
theft of cash at a registrar’s office was reported to the Police; a complaint received about a 
company used by the council was investigated with no actions necessary for the Council; 
and recommendations following the identification of procedural irregularities at a school have 
been made and accepted by the current leadership and Governing Body. 

Fraud Risk Assessment / Risk Register

A fraud risk register has been produced, the outcome of which will inform future Internal 
Audit activity.

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

Internal Audit continues to support the NFI which is a biennial data matching exercise 
administered by the Cabinet Office. The data was collected throughout October 2016 and 
reports have started to come into the Council. Examples of data sets include insurance, 
payroll, pensions, private supported care home patients / residential care homes, transport, 
personal budgets / direct payments and creditors.  Not all matches are investigated but 
where possible all recommended matches are reviewed by either Internal Audit or the 
appropriate service area.

The outcomes of the review will be provided to the Audit and Governance Committee. 

Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy Statement and Strategy, Anti Bribery Policy and Anti 
Money Laundering Policy 2017 – 2019. 

Effective governance requires the Council to promote values for the authority and 
demonstrate the values of good governance through upholding high standards of conduct 
and behaviour. To enable this, the Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally 2016–2019 
Strategy has been developed by local authorities and counter fraud experts and supported 
by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Counter Fraud 
Centre. It is the definitive guide for council leaders, chief executives, finance directors and all 
those with governance responsibilities. The strategy includes practical steps for fighting 
fraud, shares best practice and brings clarity to the changing anti-fraud and corruption 
landscape.

Page 170



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

16

The Chief Internal Auditor has undertaken a self-assessment against the new guidance to 
measure the Council’s counter fraud and corruption culture and response and proposed 
enhancements as required. As such, a revised Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy Statement 
and Strategy, Anti Bribery Policy and Anti Money Laundering Policy 2017 -2019 was 
approved by the Audit and Governance Committee on 20th January 2017 and a 
communications plan is currently being developed to ensure that relevant stakeholders are 
made aware of the requirements. 

Page 171



This page is intentionally left blank



Progress Report including Assurance Opinions

Department Activity Name Priority Activity Status Risk Opinion Control Opinion
Reported to Audit 
and Governance 

Committee
Comments

Core Council National Insurance Contributions High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 20/01/2017
Core Council Approval of Payments for Agency Staff High Audit in Progress
Core Council Budget Setting High Audit in Progress
Core Council BSC Payroll - Follow up of limited assurance report High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 07/04/2017
Core Council Capital: Virements and Delegated Powers Limited Assurance Follow Up High Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 20/01/2017
Core Council Compliance with Debt Policy High Deferred Carried forward to 2017/18 plan
Core Council Contractor Partnering Framework Agreement: Major Construction Works High Audit in Progress
Core Council ContrOCC (ICT) High Audit in Progress
Core Council Cyber Security High Audit in Progress
Core Council Database Administration and Security (Oracle - SQL) High Audit in Progress
Core Council Duplicate Payments - Fiscal Technology High Audit in Progress
Core Council Dynamic Purchasing System - Asset Management Property Services (AMPS) High Deferred Carried forward to 2017/18 plan

Core Council Fire and Rescue (Application and Database Security) High Cancelled Home Office invoked IT Healthcheck within GFRS
Core Council GCC Websites (to include Libraries Website Payments) High Deferred Carried forward to 2017/18 plan
Core Council ICT Managed Services Contract - Steria High Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 20/01/2017
Core Council Payroll - Payments to Third Parties High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 20/01/2017
Core Council Recruitment - Promotion High Final Report Issued Limited Limited 07/04/2017
Core Council Review of Contract Monitoring of Schools Catering Contract High Audit in Progress
Core Council SAP Access Controls High Deferred Due to current Capgemini / External Audit review
Core Council SAP Interfaces High Audit in Progress
Core Council Staff Expense Claims - MtC Support High Audit in Progress Consultancy 
Core Council VAT High Audit in Progress
Core Council Vendor Master Data High Deferred Carried forward to 2017/18 plan
Core Council BACS payments - Creditors and Payroll Medium Final Report Issued Substantial Substantial 16/09/2016
Core Council Consolidated Invoices Medium Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 16/09/2016
Core Council Freedom of Information Requests (FOI) Medium Cancelled FOI review undertaken by Information Management 

Service
Core Council Retrospective orders Medium Audit in Progress
Core Council Staff Expenses Claims High Audit in Progress
Core Council Payroll - Late Payment High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 20/01/2017 New Activity
Core Council Review of Statutory Compliance Arrangements (brought forward) High Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 16/09/2016
Core Council Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service - Information Security High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Limited 16/09/2016
Core Council Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service - Information Security follow up 

review
High Final Report Issued Substantial Substantial 16/09/2016

Core Council Data Storage - Structures (brought forward) High Final Report Issued Limited Limited 16/09/2016
Core Council Change Management (brought forward) High Final Report Issued Substantial Substantial 16/09/2016
Core Council Highways Network Asset High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 20/01/2017 Consultancy
Core Council Joint working GCC & NHS - Information Governance Review (brought 

forward)
High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 16/09/2016 Consultancy

Adults Active Together - Healthy Together - and Children’s Activity Fund Limited 
Assurance Follow Up

High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 07/04/2017

Adults Annual Care Assessment Process (re-assessment-reviews) High Audit in Progress
Adults Better Care Fund Grant High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 20/01/2017
Adults Community Capacity - Capital grant High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 16/09/2016
Adults Contract Management Arrangements Adults and Public Health High Audit in Progress
Adults ContrOCC (Adults) High Deferred Carried forward to 2017/18 plan
Adults Deaths and Discharges Limited Assurance Follow Up High Deferred Carried forward to 2017/18 plan
Adults Direct Payments (Adults - OP) - Consultancy High Planned Consultancy
Adults Electronic Call Monitoring (ECM) - Learning Disabilities (LD) High Audit in Progress
Adults Electronic Call Monitoring (ECM) - Older People (OP) High Deferred Carried forward to 2017/18 plan
Adults Financial Assessment and Benefits Team Limited Assurance Follow Up High Deferred Carried forward to 2017/18 plan
Adults Gloucestershire Care Partnership (OSJ) Limited Assurance Follow Up High Audit in Progress
Adults Community Equipment Stock - Gloucestershire Industrial Services (GIS) High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 16/09/2016
Adults Mental Health Services High Deferred Carried forward to 2017/18 plan
Adults Outcome Based Commissioning High Consultancy No management request to date
Adults Reshaping of Delivery Function - All Age Disability High Consultancy No management request to date
Adults Social Care Grant High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 16/09/2016
Adults Transforming Care Grant High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 16/09/2016
Adults Workforce Development of Social Workers - Limited Assurance Follow Up High Deferred To be included within Standards for Proficiency of 

Social Workers audit

Page 1 of 2

P
age 173



Progress Report including Assurance Opinions

Department Activity Name Priority Activity Status Risk Opinion Control Opinion
Reported to Audit 
and Governance 

Committee
Comments

Adults Gloucestershire Industrial Services - Stock Control Medium Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 16/09/2016
Adults Spot Purchase of Day Care Medium Cancelled Cancelled due to reduced risk profile
Adults Deferred Payments (brought forward) High Audit in Progress
Adults Gloucestershire Industrial Services (GIS) Healthcare High Cancelled No longer required, separate GIS audit submitted as 

part of 17/18 plan - focus on different risk
Children & Families Alternative Provision School High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 16/09/2016
Children & Families Community and Interaction Centre 1 High Audit in Progress
Children & Families Community and Interaction Centre 2 High Audit in Progress
Children & Families ContrOCC (Children's) High Audit in Progress
Children & Families Early Years - 2 year olds High Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 20/01/2017
Children & Families Gloucestershire Music Service Limited Assurance Follow Up High Final Report Issued Substantial Substantial 07/04/2017
Children & Families PODS Trial Glos City High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 16/09/2016 Consultancy 
Children & Families Referral and Assessment processes High Deferred To be considered as part of Education Service audit 

in 2017/18 plan
Children & Families Primary School 1 High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 16/09/2016
Children & Families Section 17 - Children's Act Spend (non-Auriga) High Deferred Carried forward to 2017/18 plan
Children & Families Section 20 - Children's Act High Audit in Progress
Children & Families Troubled Families Grant (Claim 1) High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 20/01/2017
Children & Families Troubled Families Grant (Claim 2) High Planned
Children & Families Children in Care Project Medium Audit in Progress Consultancy
Children & Families Recoupment Medium Deferred Carried forward to 2017/18 plan
Children & Families Section 17 Spend (Auriga) Medium Audit in Progress
Children & Families Contact Team (brought forward) High Final Report Issued Limited Limited 16/09/2016
Children & Families Child Sexual Exploitation (brought forward) High Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 16/09/2016
Children & Families Direct Payments (Childrens) - brought forward High Final Report Issued Limited Limited 16/09/2016
Children & Families Child Protection Conference Team (brought forward) High Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 16/09/2016
Children & Families Recruitment of Social Workers within Children and Families - brought forward High Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 16/09/2016
Communities Accountable Body - Homes and Communities Agency High Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 20/01/2017
Communities Fire and Rescue Capital Funding Grants High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 16/09/2016
Communities Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service - Control Room Refresh Project High Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 07/04/2017
Communities Highways and Transportation Services contract  High Deferred Carried forward to 2017/18 plan
Communities Highways Maintenance Challenge Fund - Grant High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 16/09/2017
Communities Household Recycling Centre Contract High Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 16/09/2016
Communities Local Enterprise Partnership Growth Fund High Final Report Issued Substantial Substantial 20/01/2017
Communities Local Transport Capital Block Funding (Integrated Transport and Highways 

Maintenance) grant
High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 16/09/2016

Communities Public Transport Contracts - Decision Making Limited Assurance Follow Up High Deferred Carried forward to 2017/18 plan

Communities Residual Waste Construction Phase High Audit in Progress
Communities Street Lighting - LED Replacement and Term Maintenance Contract High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 20/01/2017
Communities Streetworks High Deferred Carried forward to 2017/18 plan
Communities Fleet Management Medium Deferred Carried forward to 2017/18 plan
Communities Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service - Business Continuity Management Medium Deferred Carried forward to 2017/18 plan

Communities Integrated Transport Unit - Use of a Dynamic Purchasing System Medium Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 20/01/2017
Communities Trading Standards - Use of Surveillance Medium Cancelled Cancelled due to medium priority risk
Communities Highways: Environmental Maintenance and Safety Maintenance Medium Cancelled Cancelled due to medium priority risk
Communities Local Growth Fund 2015-16 High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 16/09/2016 New Activity
Communities Fire & Rescue IT - Follow Up High Final Report Issued Substantial Substantial 16/09/2016
Communities Bus Subsidy Ring-Fenced (Revenue) Grant High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 07/04/2017 New Activity
Communities Risk Management of the Residual Waste New Contract - brought forward High Cancelled Included within the Residual Waste Construction 

Phase audit
Pensions Pension Payments High Audit in Progress
Pensions Management of LGPS High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable Reported within the Annual Governance Statement
Pensions Teachers Pensions Scheme High Cancelled Audit to be undertaken by External Audit

Exempt Limited Assurance Report High Final Report Issued Limited Limited 20/01/2017 Brought Forward

Page 2 of 2

P
age 174



Audit and Governance Committee 7 April 2017

Agenda Item: Freedom of Information Act 2000 and Data Protection Act 1998 report 
and statistics, January – December 2016.

 Summary

This report advises Members of the impact of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOI) and 
the Data Protection Act 1998 (DPA) (and related legislation) on the council during 2016.

Key Points

 There has been an increase (4.0%) in the overall number of requests received and 
logged in comparison with 2015. 

 2276 requests received in 2016 in comparison with 2195 in 2015.

 The percentage of requests responded to within the statutory timescales in 2016 is 
78%; this is below the ICO’s target of 85%. Additional investment and improvements  
continue to be implemented, which have brought  the response rate back up to 85%.

Recommendations

That the report be noted.

Page 175

Agenda Item 9



1.   Proportion of Requests Meeting Statutory Deadlines

In 2016 the council answered 78% of requests within the statutory deadline.  Chart 1 
shows the monthly response rates and how they compare with the Information 
Commissioner’s target of 85% on time.  The year-on-year increase in volume, as well as 
the complexity and size of individual requests, has contributed to the fall in performance. 
In addition, the Information Management Service has spent 11.2% more time on 
managing reviews and complaints relating to requests (compared with 2015). 

Additional temporary resources have been made available to assist with the management 
of requests.  Improvements have been identified and measures put in place, starting in 
October, to reinstate the 85% performance rate. Improvement work continues into 2017 
to ensure the required rate of performance is maintained and additional permanent 
resources were agreed as part of the 2017/18 budget.

Chart 1: 2016 Percentage of requests responded on time (includes all FOI and SAR 
cases closed during 2016)

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec
50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2. Detailed Background Information

Requests for Information
Table 1 shows the requests received in total each year from 2013 – 2016 and the continued 
increase in numbers received. 

Table 1: Requests received 2013-2016

2013 2014 2015 2016
Number received 1755 1892 2195 2276
Percentage 
increase from 
previous year

27% 7.8% 16% 4.0%

Page 176



Chart 2 shows that in 2016, 2,276 requests were received, compared with 2,195 in 2015.  An 
average of 189.66 requests per month was received over the year; an additional 7 requests 
per month (in 2015 the average was 182.92 requests per month).

In addition to managing requests and the provision of advice to council colleagues, the 
service continues to provide advice to schools as part of the council’s Traded Service.

Chart 2: Requests received 2005-2016

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

1st Half

2nd Half

N
um

be
r 

of
 R

eq
ue

st
s

Page 177



Table 2 shows the variation in the number of requests by requester type. Requests from 
private individuals still remain the overall majority at 62.20%, although this has seen a 10% 
drop since the previous year. Requests have been received about a wide variety of topics 
including:

 Adult and Children’s social care and safeguarding
 School admissions
 Fastershire
 Road maintenance, safety on the roads, transport and parking charges
 ICT and Communications
 Public health services
 Staffing numbers and structure
 Council spend, funding, budgets, pensions and compensation claims
 Trading standards
 Fire and Rescue
 Libraries

Table 2: Distribution of requests by requester type, comparison of 2015 and 2016 

Requester Type Count 2015 % Count 2016 %
Member of public/individual 1583 72.12 1416 62.20

Company or commercial 
organisation 239 10.89 293 12.85

Press or media 170 7.74 227 9.97

NHS 67 3.05 110 4.83

Charity 24 1.09 43 1.88

Campaign group 37 1.69 37 1.62

Public Authority 12 0.55 25 1.09

Student 11 0.50 24 1.05

Legal organisation 24 1.09 23 1.01

Political organisation 10 0.46 19 0.83

Academic organisation 13 0.59 18 0.79

MP 1 0.05 18 0.79

Councillor 4 0.18 16 0.70

Union 0 0 7 0.30

Page 178



Table 3: Distribution of requests by cluster level

Cluster Number Average in 2016
Children’s and families
Includes: Children’s Social Care, Children’s 
Safeguarding, Education and Learning 
and Fostering and Adoption

707 31.06%

Communities
Includes: Highways, Waste, Gloucester Fire and 
Rescue Service, Library Services and Trading 
Standards 

610 26.80%

Adults
Includes: Adult Social Care, Adult Safeguarding, 
Learning Disabilities, Joint Commissioning and 
Public Health

582 25.57%

Core Council
Includes: Finance, Pensions, Property Services
Human Resources, Business Service Centre, 
Communications and  Information Management

261 11.46%

District
Includes all requests where the Information is held 
by District Councils. 116 5.09%

3. Refusal of Requests

The top five exemptions used were:

 s12 - Cost of compliance exceeds appropriate limit
 s21 - Information accessible to the applicant by other means
 s22 - Information intended for future publication
 s40 - Personal information
 s43 - Commercial Interests  

The top two EIR (Environmental Information Regulations) exceptions used were:
 EIR 12(3) – Personal data
 EIR 12 5(e) – The confidentiality of commercial or industrial information where such 

confidentiality is provided by law to protect a legitimate economic interest

Table 4 shows that there has been a 12% drop in refusals when compared with 2015.

Table 4: Refusal of requests, compared with 2015
Refused in part Refused in whole

2015 240 occasions 70 occasions
2016 188 occasions 84 occasions

4. Time Spent on Answering Requests

As the input required to prepare responses to requests spans all areas of the council we 
estimate the time taken; based on experience the following average times to measure the 
completion requests are used:

 Average request: 5 hours
 Sensitive request: 15 hours
 Internal review: 20 hours

Page 179



 ICO review: 35 hours

5. Freedom of Information Internal Reviews and Complaints

28 requests for internal reviews were received in 2016; a 20% reduction in reviews and 
complaints received in 2015.
Outcomes as follows:

 12 were upheld in part; 
 14 were not upheld;
 1 internal review made out of time.
 1  internal review was withdrawn

2 cases were escalated to the Information Commissioner (ICO) in 2016, as follows:
 1 relating to copies of a report submitted by Amey to Gallagher Bassett 

o The ICO upheld the council’s position. 
 1 relating to Javelin Park incinerator (Business case all financial information)

o The ICO upheld the requestor’s position.
o The case was subsequently escalated to the Information Tribunal. The Tribunal 

has upheld the Council’s appeal in part.  Some commercial information, 
including key technical details, can remain confidential. Some prices and 
information regarding termination have now been published.  

6.  Data Protection

The council received 598 requests under the Data Protection Act in 2016.  This represents a 
small increase when compared with 2015 (596 requests).

Gloucestershire County Council has a responsibility under the Data Protection Act 1998 
(DPA) to ensure appropriate and proportionate security of the personal data held and used 
(7th Principle).  The Information Management Service continues to monitor information 
security breaches and put in place appropriate measures to help prevent breaches from 
occurring.  The service also continues to provide support for schools on data protection as 
part of the councils’ Traded Service.

7.  Data Protection Internal Reviews and Complaints

 20 Internal reviews/complaints were received and investigated in 2016; 
 5 were upheld in full;
 9 were upheld in part;
 6 were not upheld. 

4 complaints were received from the Information Commissioner (ICO) during 2016:  
 1 relating to a response to a request being sent to a previous address

Page 180



o The ICO partly upheld the requester’s position, but no further action was 
required by the Council as it had already put measures in place to prevent the 
situation happening again.

 1 relating to information held in foster carers files
o The ICO partly upheld the requester’s position as additional information was 

located and provided to the requester.  Procedures have been updated to 
ensure foster carers files are checked as part of the request process in future.

 1 relating to information the requester believed to be inappropriately shared within 
social care

o The ICO did not uphold the requester’s position, but will keep a note of concern 
regarding information sharing within social care to build up a picture over time.

 1 relating to the fact that the Council had removed 3rd party data from a response to a 
request subject to expectation of confidentiality.

o The ICO upheld the Council’s position.

8. Customer Feedback

Although we invite feedback on every response it is not obligatory to complete it. 
Two comments were received in 2016, both commented that they had received a good 
service from the request management team.

Authors: Teresa Wilmshurst, Information Requests Manager 
     Jenny Grodzicka, Information Management Service Manager

                 
Owner: Jenny Grodzicka, Information Management Service Manager

7 April 2017

Page 181



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 183

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	jan17

	4 Grant Thornton Audit Plan for GCC & Pension Fund
	GPF Audit Plan 2016-17 (draft to Committee)

	5 Grant Thornton Annual Progress Report
	6 Grant Thornton Audit Standards Communication and IA Fraud Law & Regulations
	GCC GT  IA Fraud Law and Regulation - management responses - FINAL 10-3-17

	7 Internal Audit Plan 2017/18
	Internal Audit Plan report 2017-18 v3.0

	8 Internal Audit Activity Progress Report 2016/17
	Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity v0.1 FINAL
	Spreadsheet v1.1

	9 Freedom of Information Annual Report
	11 Exempt Limited Assurance Report

